
Meeting of:  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: Tuesday, 23rd July, 2019
Time: 5.30 pm.
Venue: Number One Riverside

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

4.  MINUTES 3 - 6

For the Committee to approve the Minutes of the meeting held on the 
16th July 2019.

5.  CORPORATE PLAN (2019 - 2022) 7 - 14

For the Committee to receive the Corporate Plan 2019-2022.

6.  DIRECTORATE PLANS 2019-2020 15 - 41

For Members to receive and scrutinise the Directorate Plans 2019-20.

7.  FINANCE UPDATE REPORT 2019/20 42 - 49

To consider the Council’s financial position, as at the end of May 2018.

8.  BUDGET 2020/21 TO 2022/23 GUIDELINES, TIMETABLE AND 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 

50 - 71

To inform the Committee of the budget guidelines, timetable and 
method of public engagement.

Public Document Pack



9.  EMPLOYMENT EQUALITY REPORT 2018/19 72 - 82

The Committee will receive the Employment Equality Report 2018/19.

10.  HEALTH RELATED ABSENCE REPORTING 83 - 87

The Committee will be updated on Health Related Absence Reporting.

11.  WORKFORCE WELLBEING 88 - 89

The Committee is asked to consider recommendations for building a 
workforce wellbeing framework and action plan for the organisation.

12.  TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW 90 - 205

The Committee will receive a report on Township Funds.

13.  WORK PROGRAMME REPORT 206 - 210

To consider the Committee’s work Programme 2019/20.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor David Bamford Councillor Malcolm Boriss
Councillor Michael Holly Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Amna Mir Councillor Kallum Nolan
Councillor Shaun O'Neill Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Faisal Rana Councillor Linda Robinson
Councillor Elsie Wraighte

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
John Addison

01706 924829
john.addison@rochdale.gov.uk



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 18 June 2019

PRESENT:  Councillor Michael Holly (Chair); Councillors O'Rourke and 
Robinson, Bamford, Besford and Wraighte.

OFFICERS: Julie Murphy (Deputy Chief Finance Officer), Caroline Wolfenden 
(Head of Corporate Policy and Performance) and John Addison (Senior 
Governance Officer).

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Joinson, Councillor Nolan, 
Councillor O'Neill and Councillor Rana

95 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declaration of interests.

96 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no items of business declared under this item.

97 ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

There were on items of business under this item.

98 MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 11th February 2019 be signed as 
a correct record, and that the Committee also acknowledge the informal notes 
of the meeting held on the 20th March 2019 as an accurate record of the 
discussion.

99 RESOURCES AND NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLANS 2018-19 
QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE UPDATE

The Committee received a report from the Assistant Director (Information, 
Customers and Communities) detailing the progress at the end of quarter 4 
(1st January 2019 – 31st March 2019) towards achievements of the targets 
contained in the Resources Directorate Plan 2018/2019 and in the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2018/2019.

In considering the Resources Directorate element of the report, Members 
were updated on the three actions that were still outstanding and Members 
were advised on the progress that was being made on all of these actions, 
which were due to be completed in line with revised timetables. In respect of 
the item relating to the ‘OD – Develop Workforce Planning’ (R18009) it was 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



noted that this would be subject to a separate report and reviewed at a future 
meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Members raised concerns that a new version of the Corporate Plan had not as 
yet been presented to the Committee or had been implemented for the start of 
the municipal year. It was reported that the Corporate Plan would be 
submitted to the next meeting of the Committee.

RESOLVED:

That the Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2018-19 Quarter 
4 Performance be noted.

100 DELEGATED APPROVAL REPORT 2018/19

The Deputy Chief Finance Officer presented to Members a report that 
provided details of approvals of spend under delegated powers, Financial 
Regulations 2a and 2d, in relation to Revenue and Capital Schemes funded 
by additional grants or income during 2018/19.

It was reported that capital and revenue expenditure aimed to support the 
delivery of services and the achievement of priorities and objectives. The 
Financial Regulations give delegated authority to Directors to approve 
additional expenditure up to £250,000, if the additional expenditure was 
funded by additional grants/contributions. 

It was reported that there had been no approvals for amounts between 
£250,000 and £500,000 in 2018/19. 

Members were informed that an annual report was required under Financial 
Regulations, to provide details of approvals given under delegated powers. It 
was noted that the extent to which delegated powers had been exercised to 
approve revenue and capital expenditure met from grants/income during 
2018/19 was outlined in in the report.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

101 COLLECTION FUND OUTTURN REPORT 2018/19

The Committee received a report from the Head of Corporate Finance which 
provided an update on the Council’s Collection Fund outturn position for 
2018/2019. It was reported that this report had previously been presented to 
and considered by the Cabinet at its meeting on 28th May 2019, where the 
recommendations contained therein were approved.

Members were informed that the Collection Fund outturn position for 2018/19 
was a surplus of £6.818m, this comprised of £4.044m surplus relating to 

Page 4



Business Rates and £2.774m surplus relating to Council Tax. The Council’s 
share of the 2018/19 Collection Fund outturn surplus was noted as £6.367m.

RESOLVED:

That the 208/2019 Collection Fund outturn position be noted.

102 FINANCE OUTTURN REPORT 2018/19

The Committee received a report from the Deputy Chief Finance Officer that 
provided details of the Council’s financial position at the end of 2018/2019. It 
was noted that the report had been previously considered by the Cabinet at its 
meeting on 28th May 2019 where the recommendations contained therein 
were approved.

The Finance Outturn Report informed Members that the final Revenue 
position was an overspend of £2.694m for 2018/20 and that the final position 
of the Savings target of £0.507m, as part of the Revenue budget 2018/19, 
highlighted a final balance to address of £0.150m. 

The Finance Outturn Report also provided an update on the Health & Social 
Care Pool Fund and on Final Capital expenditure of £51.789m after re-
phasing of £12.365m. Members were reminded that effective financial 
management was essential if the Council was to keep spending within 
available resources. It was vital that services made adjustments in spending 
to ensure that they spend in line with the approved budgets.

Members questioned the officer around underspent budgets and empty 
properties in the Borough and could more be done to bring them back into 
use. It was noted that budgets for projects that did not spend its whole budget 
for whatever reason was put back into the corporate account and that the 
Council had a number of policies in place to address vacant properties.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

103 WORK PROGRAMME

The Chair presented to the Committee a draft Work Programme for the 
forthcoming Municipal Year. Members considered all areas of the remit of the 
corporate overview and Scrutiny Committee in selecting what areas to 
scrutinise.

The Committee agreed that moving forward some financial reports could be 
present to the Committee via a presentation covering a number of key reports 
at once. Members also wished where possible to undertake pre-decision 
scrutiny.

Page 5



Members also requested that information relating to the Township Service be 
presented to a future meeting and the Chair advised that he was shortly due 
to meet with the Townships Manager to discuss the future scrutiny of 
Township services.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Committee’s Work Programme 2019/20 be noted.

2. That a report relating to the Council’s Townships function be submitted 
to a future meeting of the Committee.

3. That the Committee receive the Corporate and Directorate plans at the 
next meeting of the Committee.

Page 6



Report to Informal Cabinet

Date of Meeting Meeting Date 23rd July 
2019

Portfolio Portfolio Holder for 
Resources

Report Author Caroline Wolfenden
Public/Private Document

Corporate Plan 2019 - 2022

Executive Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to:-

1.1.Present a first draft of the Council’s Corporate Plan 2019 - 2022
 

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Members:-

2.1.Consider the plan content and provide any comments and amendments.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 The current plan covers the period 2016 - 2019. A new plan is required to 
outline the Council’s future direction of travel 

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 The draft plan sets out the Council’s priorities for the next three years.

4.2 It is the Policy Team’s intention to support development of simpler plans that 
are accessible and customer facing. The new draft is just 2 pages (back to back). 
We will work with the Communications Team to deliver a corporate design. 

4.3 The Council vision was agreed by Leadership Team as part of development 
sessions with the Local Government Association. It is ‘To make our borough a 
great place to grow up, get on and live well’

4.4 The Council has recently reviewed its values and behaviours which have 
been incorporated into the Chief Executives foreword. These include Passion, 
Pioneering and open and Pride. 

4.5 The Council has previously worked to the themes of People, Place and 
Prosperity. It is considered that prosperity is a condition of people and place and 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



as such we have reworked our priorities to Prosperous People and Places. The 
Leader’s foreword explains what we mean by this.

4.6 Our themes align with regional priorities as the Greater Manchester Strategy 
is titled: Our People, Our Place. Other Greater Manchester Corporate Plans that 
have followed this theme include Wigan Council: Confident Place, Confident 
People and Tameside Council: Our People, Our Place, Our Plan.

4.7 The Health and Wellbeing Board has identified 10 borough outcomes, 5 of 
which fit with the theme of people and 5 with place. It is the Council’s intention to 
seek agreement from partners in adopting these as the strategic partnership 
priorities. They include:

 People get a good start - All children are healthy and ready to succeed when 
they start school and all children and young adults achieve their potential.

 People are protected - All residents are protected from harm, through support 
in times of need and by safeguarding and protecting those who are vulnerable.

 People are resilient - All residents have good mental wellbeing, are resilient,    
enjoy life, and are able to cope with life’s challenges.

 People are healthy - All residents feel healthy and remain in good state of 
health for as long as possible.

 People fulfil their potential - All residents have the opportunities they need to 
enable them to help themselves, their loved ones and their communities to 
achieve their full potential.

 Place is age friendly - The borough is a place where people age well, can live 
With dignity and have equitable access to services and opportunities

 Place is inclusive - The borough is friendly, inclusive and co-operative.

 Place is welcoming - The borough is safe, resilient, and clean and has good 
quality places where people choose to live, work and invest.

 Place provides opportunities - The borough has thriving growing businesses 
and new enterprises and creates the conditions for high skill levels and high 
quality jobs.

 Place supports sustainable growth - The borough has sound finances and is 
able to provide services to meet resident’s needs now and in the future.

4.8 The strategic borough outcomes utilise an outcomes based accountability 
methodology. This involves outlining what you want to achieve for the population 
e.g. the whole population or a specified demographic e.g. all children are healthy 
and ready to succeed / all residents are protected from harm

Page 8



4.9 An outcomes based accountability methodology also involves identifying 
indicators. These are measures which help to quantify the achievement of an 
outcome. The Corporate Outcomes have been written as indicators to demonstrate 
what success looks like e.g. people have higher levels of qualifications and skills / 
less people dying early from diseases

4.10 The Corporate Outcomes have been informed by: research, statistics and 
consultation, to acknowledge local challenges and issues; service specific 
strategies to ensure a thread between our plans; political aspirations to reflect the 
priorities of the Labour Group and performance data to enable continued 
monitoring against local, regional and national targets. The documents include:

 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
 Labour Party Manifesto
 Resident Survey
 Greater Manchester Strategy
 Directorate Plans
 Service Strategies e.g. Locality Plan, Children and Young People Plan
 Leadership Team Performance Dashboard

    4.11 Our ways of working are reflective of the need to manage demand on public 
    services and save money and are explicit about the role of different stakeholders in 
    supporting that. They also take account of cooperative principles and the Greater 
    Manchester Model for reforming public services

Costs and Budget Summary

  5. The Corporate Plan links to the Council’s Financial Strategy.

Risk and Policy Implications

 6. The Corporate Plan serves as the strategic framework for action during the 
 lifetime of the Council. The current plan is aligned with the 2016 manifesto 
 priorities around education, environment and economy and it is considered that 
 the plan has policy gaps, particularly in respect of health and care. The new plan 
ensures that all areas of policy and service delivery are covered. 

Consultation

7. Leadership Team - 9th July
Informal Cabinet - 9th July
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny - 23rd July
Citizens Panel - Early August

Uirement 
for public 
consultation

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

Page 9



For Further Information Contact: Caroline Wolfenden 
Caroline.Wolfenden@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 10



Our Vision: To make our borough a great place to grow up, get on and live well

Our Priorities: Prosperous People and Places

“We are ambitious for the people and place of 
Rochdale. Councils have faced significant financial 
challenges, having to do more with less, but we 
continue to deliver services and make improvements to 
the local area. Our Passion to strive for excellence, is 
what underpins our Corporate Plan. It sets out a 
Pioneering and open approach, over the next three 
years, to meet the different needs and aspirations of 
our diverse communities. We are committed to our role 
as ambassadors for the borough of Rochdale and are 
Proud of the difference we make.”

Steve Rumbelow - Chief Executive of Rochdale Council

“Prosperity is the condition of being successful or 
thriving and that is what we want for our people and 
places. Prosperous People are healthy, safe, happy and 
able to participate fully in life. Prosperous Places 
continually grow and change and they have strong local 
economies that provide opportunities and quality of 
life. As a Cooperative Council we will build relationships 
with citizens and partners so that we can all work 
together in delivering outcomes and making our 
borough a great place to grow up, get on and live well. 
We will enable people to help themselves as well as 
supporting people when they really need our help.”

Councillor Allen Brett - Leader of Rochdale Council

P
age 11



Our Outcomes 2019 - 2022

People get a good start People are protected People are resilient People are healthy People fulfil their potential

All children are healthy and 
ready to succeed when they 
start school and all children 

and young adults achieve 
their potential.

All residents are protected 
from harm, through support 

in times of need and by 
safeguarding and protecting 
those who are vulnerable.

All residents have good mental 
wellbeing, are resilient, enjoy life, 

and are able to cope with life’s 
challenges.

All residents feel healthy and 
remain in good state of health 

for as long as possible.

All residents have the opportunities 
they need to enable them to help 
themselves, their loved ones and 

their communities to achieve their 
full potential.

More mothers breastfeeding 
for longer

Less mothers smoking in 
pregnancy

More children are school 
ready

All pupils are achieving at all 
key stages

More young people 
participating in 

apprenticeships and learning

Reduced risk of deliberate 
harm, accidental injury and 

neglect for both children and 
adults

Reduced rates of children 
subject to child protection or 

in care

Less children and young 
people entering the youth 

justice system

More people with Disabilities 
and Special Educational 

Needs receiving appropriate 
support 

More carers receiving 
appropriate support

Children and young people have high 
self-esteem and are free from bullying

Less people have common and severe 
mental health disorders

Less people are lonely or isolated

Less households living in fuel poverty

Less people living in deprivation or 
suffering the impact of Welfare 

Reform 

More households prevented from 
becoming homeless

More people are active

Less people are overweight

Reduced harm from drugs, 
alcohol and smoking

Less people dying early from 
diseases 

More children have good oral 
health

Less older people suffering from 
falls

People have access to good or 
outstanding places of learning

People have higher levels of 
qualifications and skills, including 

digital

People have higher levels of median 
earnings 

More people in employment and 
reduced numbers of people 

economically inactive due to illness

P
age 12



Our Outcomes 2019 - 2022

Place is age friendly Place is inclusive Place is welcoming Place provides opportunities Place supports sustainable growth

The borough is a place where 
people age well, can live with 

dignity and have equitable 
access to services and 

opportunities

The borough is friendly, 
inclusive and co-operative.

The borough is safe, resilient, 
and clean and has good quality 
places where people choose to 

live, work and invest.

The borough has thriving 
growing businesses and new 
enterprises and creates the 

conditions for high skill levels 
and high quality jobs.

The borough has sound finances and 
is able to provide services to meet 

resident’s needs now and in the 
future.

Reduced delayed transfers of 
care from hospital 

More people re-abled or living 
at home with a care package

More people managing own 
care through cash budgets

People’s long term needs met 
by residential nursing care

More people aged 50-64 are in 
employment

People come together through 
creative and cultural 

opportunities 

More people engaging in 
volunteering and acts of 

reciprocity

Equality for people across the 
protected groups

People live in harmony 
together, whatever their 

background, religion or culture 

Young people have their voices 
heard

Land is of an acceptable 
standard of cleanliness

Accessible and quality highways 
and transport options 

Reduced crime and antisocial 
behaviour

Land and sites to enable 
building of more and a mix of 

homes 

More empty homes brought 
back into use

Less pollution, more renewable 
resources and functioning 

ecosystems

More land and sites for 
employment  

More businesses relocating, 
starting up or expanding in the 

borough

More jobs created and good 
quality apprenticeships

Higher proportion of skilled 
work in the labour market 

Improved Town Centres 

Maximised income, investment, 
sponsorship and funding

Increased local spend  

Reduced demand on health services 
(A&E, hospitals and GP’s)

Stabilised and quality workforce in key 
sectors

Digital provision and practice and a 
self-serve customer experience

Better use of built, natural and historic 
assets 

P
age 13



Our ways of working

Everyone in the borough will give effort to making things better for themselves and others

Cooperation

Public services, citizens, communities and businesses will share decision making and jointly design and deliver services

Strengthening community assets

Individuals and families will use their skills, lived experiences and kindness to develop and improve their own communities

Prevention and intervention

Public services, citizens, communities and businesses will take action to stop problems from arising or becoming worse 

Behaviour change

Individuals and communities will practice self-care and make informed choices so that they are independent and in control 

Integrated and local

Public services and partners will share skills, expertise and resources to deliver services at the right time and in the right places 

P
age 14



RESOURCES

Directorate Plan 2019/20P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6



Introduction

This Directorate plan outlines the action the Resources Directorate will take over the coming year, to support the Council’s long term 
vision and strategic priorities. Our work will have due regard for equality and diversity.

Borough Vision

‘To make our Borough a great place to grow up, get on and live well.’ 

Strategic priorities

Equality and Diversity

The Public Sector Equality Duty 2011 places a legal requirement on the Council to demonstrate that it considers the needs of all 
individuals in its day to day work and has due regard for the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster 
good relations. 

People Place Prosperity

P
age 16



The Rochdale Way (currently under review via work with the LGA)

The Rochdale Way sets out the values that are at the heart of how we approach all of the work we do. To help us make these values real 
we have adopted a set of behaviours that every member of staff must demonstrate as well as two specific leadership behaviours.

Valuing 
our 

people

Using time 
& money 

wisely

Working 
together

Always 
learning & 
improving

Acting 
with 

integrity

Focusing 
on 

customer
s

Positive attitude Developing myself Improving things

Achieving my goals Communicating 
effectively

Achieving shared 
goals

Meeting customer 
needs

Encouraging 
colleagues

Empowering & 
Supporting
Managing 

Performance

P
age 17



Enabling Work Programmes

The Council is facing significant financial challenges, which means that we have reduced capacity to deliver services. We will adopt working 
practices that will improve our capacity to deliver, facilitate ongoing service delivery and support us in achieving our priorities, including:

 Working across organisational boundaries

 Sharing budgets

 Sharing services with other public sector bodies

 Developing a culture of social responsibility

 Encouraging and supporting volunteering

 Looking for ways to save money

 Looking at new models of service delivery

 Making better use of data and intelligence

 Streamlining decision making

 Managing our money

P
age 18



Directorate Structure

The management structure of the directorate is detailed below:

Director of Resources
Neil Thornton (Interim S151)

Assistant Director
Leagl, Governance & Workforce 

(Monitoring Officer)
David Wilcock

Chief Finance Officer / s151 
Officer
Vacant

Deputy Chief Finance Officer
(Interim Reporting Line)

P
age 19



Directorate functions and services

The Directorate has responsibility for a range of service areas and activities.

Service Head of Service
Finance Support Services Julie Murphy (Deputy Chief Finance Officer)
Corporate Finance Stuart Smith
Commercial, Economy and Resources Michelle Ashworth
Internal Audit, Risk, Insurance & Counter Fraud Ian Corbridge
Revenues & Benefits Keith Mackenzie
Workforce & Organisational Development Rosemary Barker 
Legal Services Anthony Harold
Governance & Committee Services Elaine Newsome

Lead Cabinet Members

Cabinet members with relevant portfolio holder responsibilities oversee Council Directorates

 Councillor Allen Brett –  Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance
 Councillor Faisal Rana – Assistant Cabinet Member for Finance – subject to change

Portfolio Holder Area:  Covering Finance, Revenues & Benefits, Insurance and Risk.

 Councillor Daalat Ali – Cabinet Member for Resources
 Councillor John Hartley – Assistant Cabinet Member for Resources

Portfolio Holder Area:  Covering ICT, Customer Access, Policy & Performance, Public Service Reform, STAR Procurement, Legal, 
Governance, HR, Organisational Development and Corporate Health & Safety

P
age 20



Directorate Responsibilities

The Directorate has the following responsibilities:

 Corporate Finance
 Finance Support Services
 Treasury Management
 Commercial Financial Advice
 Internal Audit, Counter Fraud, Insurance and Risk
 Schools Traded Finance Service
 Creditors, Debtors, invoice processing
 Financial Systems
 Council Tax and Business Rates
 Benefits and Assessments
 STAR Client (Procurement)
 Legal Services
 Manchester Shared Legal Service Client
 Democracy Services
 Elections
 Civics
 HR Business Partner and HR Advisory Service
 Payroll, Pensions and Operational HR
 Organisational Development
 Corporate Health and Safety

P
age 21



Key Documents

The directorate works in accordance with the following strategies and plans:

 Place Plan
 Locality Plan
 Medium Term Financial Strategy
 Treasury management Strategy
 Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy

Plus, as support services, supporting Directorates in delivery activity which is aligned to specific Directorate strategies and plans

P
age 22



Directorate Actions

The table outlines the action that will be taken over the coming year, to support improvement and our direction of travel. It highlights the work that must be undertaken to support the action.  (Business as Usual 
activities are not included).

Ref Directorate Action Action 
owner

Completion 
date

Work requirements Work due date Work 
owner

Strategic 
Priority

Enabling work programme

R19001 Budget Council approving 
a robust balanced budget 
for 2020/21

Interim -
Julie 

Murphy

11th March 
2020

Introduction of methodology to review Directorates and 
produce a Core Offering in line with Council’s priorities.

Categorisation to assist the budget process, aligning the 
Council’s core activities to its locally generated income.

Preparation of the Budget
1. Budget Guidelines and Timetable (Corporate O&S 19/06)
2. Public Engagement 

Consultation
1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21
2. Capital Programme 2020/21 - 2022/23 
3. Revenue Budget 2020/21 - 2022/23 
4. MTFS 2020/21 - 2024/25 

Post Consultation - Provisional Budget Information:
1. Draft Capital Programme 2020/21 - 2022/23   
2. Draft Revenue Budget 2020/21 - 2022/23
3. Council Tax and Business Rates Bases 2020/2
4. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21 

Approval at Budget Council
1. MTFS 2020/21 - 2024/25
2. Local Government Act 2003
3. Revenue Budget and Council tax 2019/20
4. Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21
5. Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy

June/July 2019

February 2020

Stuart Smith People, Place, 
Prosperity, 

Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Sharing budgets

Sharing services with other public sector bodies

Looking for ways to save money

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Streamlining decision making

Managing our money
Working across organisational boundaries

Looking for ways to save money

Managing our money

R19002 Support the pooled fund 
manager and develop 
strategies for bridging 
the pooled fund gap in 
current and future 
financial years.

Interim – 
Julie 

Murphy

March 2020 Health and Social Care – Provide robust financial support and 
information

Attendance at Integration Commissioning Board (monthly)

Attendance at Performance and Risk Sub Committee (monthly)

Integrated 
Commissioning 
Board (monthly)

Finance 
Performance and 

Risk Group Pre meet

Julie Murphy People, 
Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Sharing budgets

Sharing services with other public sector bodies

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Streamlining decision making

Managing our money

Looking for ways to save money

Managing our money

R19003 Input into Key Strategic 
Council and GM projects 
from a Finance, Legal and 
HR perspective. 

Michelle 
Ashworth

Julie 
Murphy

Anthony 
Harold

Rosemary 
Barker

By March 
2020

Ongoing attendance at regular meetings:
 Junction 19 Board (monthly)
 Town Centre Capital Programme monitoring (monthly)
 Town Centre Capital Programme Board (monthly)
 Town Hall operational meetings
 Dippy Project Group
 Contract Review Link4Life
 GM HRD and related task and finish groups 

Attendance in line 
with programme of 

board meetings

Michelle 
Ashworth

Julie Murphy

Anthony 
Harold

Rosemary 
Barker

People, Place, 
Prosperity, 

Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Looking for ways to save money

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Managing our money

Working across organisational boundaries

P
age 23



Managing our money

R19004 Provide financial advice 
on the Commercial and 
Regeneration projects 
being undertaken by the 
Council.

Michelle 
Ashworth

Ongoing Ongoing attendance at regular meetings:
 Property Growth Fund Working Group (monthly)
 Property Growth Fund Steering Group (bimonthly) incl pre-

meet with Director of Resources
 Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee (quarterly)
 Town Centre Capital Programme monitoring (monthly)
 Town Centre Capital Programme Board (monthly)
 Economy SMT (monthly)

Plus ad hoc support/advice regarding major schemes including:

 PGF acquisitions
 Rochdale Riverside
 Trading company/JV/Partnership arrangements

Attendance in line 
with programme of 

board meetings

Michelle 
Ashworth

People, Place, 
Prosperity, 

Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Looking for ways to save money

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Managing our money
Working across organisational boundaries

Managing our money

R19005 Provide legal advice on 
the Commercial and 
Regeneration projects 
being undertaken by the 
Council

Anthony 
Harold

Ongoing Support acquisition of key property investments
Support development of new joint venture vehicles as required
Trading company/ JV/Partnership arrangements

in line with 
programme 

management 
requirements

Anthony 
Harold

People, Place, 
Prosperity, 

Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Looking for ways to save money

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Managing our money

Working across organisational boundaries

Managing our money

R19006 Produce the 2018/19 
Statutory Accounts

Stuart 
Smith

By July 2019 Production of draft accounts

Draft completed, issued to external auditors &online

External auditors on site

Accounts signed off by external auditors

1st April – 30th May 
2019

31st May 2019

1st June – 30th July 
2019

31st July 2019

Rose 
Bennett

Yvonne 
Dunease

Mark Barrett

People, Place, 
Prosperity, 

Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Managing our money

R19007 Delivery of the Internal 
Audit Plan for 2019/20

Ian 
Corbridge

By March 
2020

Audit Plan 2019/20 Approved by AGC
Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/19 to AGC
Internal Audit Q1 2019/20 report to AGC

Internal Audit Q2 2019/20 Report to AGC                                    
Internal Audit Q3 2019/20 Report to AGC
Internal Audit Q4 2019/20 Report to AGC
Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 to AGC

April 2019
June 2019
September 2019

December 2019
April 2020
June 2020
June 2020

Ian 
Corbridge

People, Place, 
Prosperity, 

Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Sharing services with other public sector bodies

Looking for ways to save money

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Streamlining decision making

Managing our money

R19008 Implementation of the 
Risk Management 
Strategy

Ian 
Corbridge

By March 
2020

Implementation of Pentana risk/ performance software  

Completion of Risk Registers for Integrated Health & Social Care 
transformation projects.

Approval of Integrated Risk Management Policy by AGC

Annual Service Risk Management Self Assessments

June 2019

July 2019

Sept 2019

Jan 2020

Martin Nixon People, Place, 
Prosperity, 

Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Sharing services with other public sector bodies

Looking for ways to save money

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

P
age 24



Streamlining decision making

Managing our money

R19009 Maximising income to the 
Council

Keith 
Mackenzie

By March 
2020

Feed into income generation working group to be established by 
AD Resources

In line with working 
group’s requirements

Keith 
Mackenzie

People, Place, 
Prosperity, 

Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Sharing services with other public sector bodies

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Managing our money

R19010 Improving accessibility to 
services – Council 
Connect (Customer Self-
Service)

Keith 
Mackenzie

By March 
2020

Review services currently available and identify further processes 
to be added to My Account. 

- Link with IT to agree development plan.
- Commence work on development plan.
- Regular progress meetings and project updates.
- Consider customer feedback.
- Link with GM colleagues to share new developments and 

best practice.

See requirements Keith 
Mackenzie

People, Prosperity, 
Performance

Looking for ways to save money

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Streamlining decision making

Managing our money

R19011 Review of Local Council 
Tax Support Scheme for 
2020/21

Keith 
Mackenzie

By March 
2020

 
Review current scheme and assess the financial impact of 
potential changes.

Report to Cabinet Member and all Council Members at 
appropriate points in the process.
   
Undertake public consultation if a change is proposed.

Develop and test software to accommodate any changes 

Include testing of any changes as part of annual billing testing 
timetable.

New scheme awards included on Council Tax accounts.

See requirements Keith 
Mackenzie

People, Prosperity, 
Performance

Looking for ways to save money

Making better use of data and intelligence

Managing our money

R19012 Developing the use of our 
HR system to maximise 
customer experience and 
enhance organisational 
performance including the 
integration of the iTrent 
HR System with Civica 
the Financial Ledger

Stuart 
Smith/

Rosemary 
Barker

March 2020 Scoping exercise with Midland re Itrent capabilities

Consideration of alternative HR systems – soft market testing

Design Project Initiation Plan if alternative HR system needs to be 
procured

Work aligning Civica and I -trent

Assess functionality and capabilities of Midland iTrent 

June 2019

June 2019

July/August 2019

March 2020

March 2020

Stuart Smith

Mark Barrett

Ann Ridyard

People, Place, 
Prosperity, 

Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Sharing budgets
Looking for ways to save money

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

R19013 Financially support the 
development of a 5 year 
Children’s Strategy

Julie 
Murphy

March 2021 Develop  staffing  to Work with Greater Manchester to progress 
innovations

Work with service teams to develop Internal Fostering Service

Work with HR/Service to develop staff structure and retention 
policies for presentation to members

Progress the strategy to reduce the financial pressure, reporting to 
members and internal groups

April 2019

May 2019

June 2019

Continuous 
development/monitor
ing/reporting of the 

strategy during 

Tammy 
Faulkner

People, 
performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Sharing budgets

Sharing services with other public sector bodies

Looking for ways to save money

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Streamlining decision making

P
age 25



2019/20
Managing our money

Working across organisational boundaries

Looking for ways to save money

Managing our money

R19014 Developing the Rochdale 
Leadership Academy 
model to include 
programmes for new 
leaders and aspiring 
managers

Developing the Integrated 
Leadership and Wider 
Leadership Team and 
engender a culture of 
team development with 
the organisation

Developing the Staff 
Engagement Strategy
Explore and develop 
approaches to system 
development and culture 
change and introduction 
of new values and 
behaviours

Rosemary 
Barker

Mach 2020 Pilot for aspiring leaders

Introduce New Leaders

Recruit cohort 3

Calendar of events for Leadership network

Carry out the survey

Evaluate the survey

Action planning with LT

Approval by members

Launch new values and roll out

Redesign the PDR process

October 2019

December 2019

September 2019

March 2020

June 2019

July 2019

Sept 2019

July 2019

Sept 2019

March 2020

Martin Plant People, 
Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Sharing budgets

Sharing services with other public sector bodies

Looking for ways to save money

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Streamlining decision making

Managing our money
Working across organisational boundaries

Looking for ways to save money

Managing our money

R19015 Develop the Council’s 
strategic approach to 
Workforce Wellbeing in 
line with the Public Health 
5 pillars of wellbeing, 
maximising the resources 
within the Council and 
with partners

Rosemary 
Barker

Mach 2020 Present to leadership network

Draw up Strategy

Health and Wellbeing Strategy in place with measurable 
outcomes and action plan

May 2019

March 2020

March 2020

Martin Plant People, 
performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Sharing budgets

Sharing services with other public sector bodies

Looking for ways to save money

Looking at new models of service delivery

Making better use of data and intelligence

Streamlining decision making

Managing our money
Working across organisational boundaries

Looking for ways to save money

Managing our money

R19016 Embed good governance 
practice and articulate 
expectations within the 
Council with its senior 
leaders, staff and all 
Members of the Council

David 
Wilcock

March 2020 Increasing the examples of good practice at the Council

Benchmarking and learning from good practice in GM  through the 
implementation of the committee on standards in public life 
recommendations on the Code of Conduct and Ethical 
Governance Framework where a change in the law is not needed

Integrate the new corporate values and behaviours into code of 
conduct training

March 2020 David 
Wilcock

People & 
Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

P
age 26



R19017 To review electoral 
arrangements on 
parliamentary footprints

Elaine 
Newsome

March 2020 Following publication of the Parliamentary constituency review 
recommendations implementation prepare analyse and 
implement.

To complete the review of the number of Councillors in the 
authority

March 2020 Elaine 
Newsome

Claire Poole

People & 
Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Looking for ways to save money

R19018 To strengthen governance 
arrangements across the 
organisation at service 
level

Elaine 
Newsome

March 2020 Constitutional scheme of delegation is evolved to meet the needs 
of the organisation around place based working, health integration 
and locality working

Service based schemes of delegation will be in place

Engagement of senior officers in governance activities (including 
learning and development)

April 2020

April 2020

April 2020

Elaine 
Newsome

People & 
Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Looking for ways to save money

Streamlining decision making

R19019 Digital governance is 
enhanced and embedded

Elaine 
Newsome

March 2020 Paperless meetings are embedded

Appropriate, targeted learning and development has been rolled 
out

Savings associated with the costs of printing will be fully achieved

April 2020 Elaine 
Newsome

People & 
Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Looking for ways to save money

Streamlining decision making

R19020 To explore the potential 
for Artificial Intelligence in 
business processes

David 
Wilcock

March 2020 develop a business case/feasibility study on options, costs and 
benefits

Updates to DMT
Elaine 

Newsome People & 
Performance

Working across organisational boundaries

Looking for ways to save money

P
age 27



Neighbourhoods

Directorate Plan 2019/20

P
age 28



1

Introduction

This directorate plan outlines the action the Neighbourhoods Directorate will take over the coming year, to support the Council’s long 
term vision and strategic priorities. Our work will have due regard for equality and diversity.

Borough Vision

‘Grow our economy and develop our borough through co-operation and partnership, 
improving the lives of local people and communities.’ 

Strategic priorities

Equality and Diversity

The Public Sector Equality Duty 2011 places a legal requirement on the Council to demonstrate that it considers the needs of all 
individuals in its day to day work and has due regard for the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster 
good relations. 

The Rochdale Way

People Place Prosperity Performance

P
age 29



2

The Rochdale Way sets out the values that are at the heart of how we approach all of the work we do. To help us make these values real 
we have adopted a set of behaviours that every member of staff must demonstrate as well as two specific leadership behaviours.

Enabling Work Programmes

Valuing 
our 

people

Using time 
& money 

wisely

Working 
together

Always 
learning & 
improving

Acting 
with 

integrity

Focusing 
on 

customer
s

Positive attitude Developing myself Improving things

Achieving my goals Communicating 
effectively

Achieving shared 
goals

Meeting customer 
needs

Encouraging 
colleagues

Empowering & 
Supporting
Managing 

Performance

P
age 30



3

The Council is facing significant financial challenges, which means that we have reduced capacity to deliver services. We will adopt working 
practices that will improve our capacity to deliver, facilitate ongoing service delivery and support us in achieving our priorities, including:

 Working across organisational boundaries

 Sharing budgets

 Sharing services with other public sector bodies

 Developing a culture of social responsibility

 Encouraging and supporting volunteering

 Looking for ways to save money

 Looking at new models of service delivery

 Making better use of data and intelligence

 Streamlining decision making

 Managing our money

Directorate Structure

The management structure of the directorate is detailed below:

P
age 31



4

Director of Neighbourhoods
Mark Widdup 

Assistant Director of Place
Donna Bowler

Assistant Director - Information, 
Customers & Communities

John Rooney

Directorate functions and services

The Directorate has responsibility for a range of service areas and activities.

 Environmental Management
 Highways (including Balfour Beatty)

P
age 32



5

 Facilities management, Building & Surveying
 Property & Projects
 Public Protection
 Street lighting
 Strategic Housing, including RBH
 Corporate Policy, Performance and Improvement (including research & intelligence)
 ICT (Operations & Service Delivery)
 ICT (Business Applications Services)
 Information Governance
 Communications (Marketing, public relations, media relations, digital services)
 Customer Access (Contact Centre and Web)
 Customer Access (Community Access)
 Townships & Libraries
 Integrated Place Teams
 Neighbourhood Services (Cohesion & Anti-Social Behaviour)
 Coroners and Registrars
 Emergency planning 

Lead Cabinet Members

Cabinet members with relevant portfolio holder responsibilities oversee Council Directorates
 Cllr Neil Emmott – Cabinet Member for Environment
 Cllr Daalat Ali  – Cabinet Member for Corporate & Resources
 Cllr Janet Emsley – Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Community & Culture

Directorate Responsibilities

The directorate has the following responsibilities:

 Deliver high quality public realm and universal environmental management services
 Promote regeneration, investment and housing growth across the borough and meet the housing needs of local people
 Maintain and develop the asset portfolio for infrastructure of roads and bridges in the borough
 Deliver a Public Protection service to support an improved borough
 Work with partners to make the borough a safer place
 Promote the borough as a good place to live, work, invest and visit

P
age 33



6

 Manage information and business intelligence to support decision-making and policy development
 Streamline business processes and modernise customer access
 Implement Place-based Public Service Reform across the borough to improve outcomes for residents

Key Documents

The directorate works in accordance with the following strategies and plans:

 Place Plan
 Corporate Plan
 Safer Communities Strategy
 Digital Strategy
 Draft IT Strategy
 Asset Strategy
 Housing Strategy
 Homelessness Strategy
 GM Strategy
 Waste Management Strategy

P
age 34



7

Directorate Actions

The table outlines the action that will be taken over the coming year, to support improvement and our direction of travel. It highlights the work 
that must be undertaken to support the action. Business as usual activities are not included. 

Ref Directorate 
Action

Action 
owner

Action 
completion 

date

Work requirements Work due 
date 

Work 
owner

Strategic 
Priority

Enabling work 
programme

NDP01 Work in partnership 
to implement new 
Community Safety 
Plan to reduce crime 
and disorder

John 
Rooney

March 2020 Develop and sign off new 
Domestic Abuse Strategy for 
borough

Complete new Anti-Social 
Behaviour Strategy for the 
borough

November  
2019

January 
2020

Mark 
Dalzell

Place Working across 
organisational 
boundaries

NDP 2 Implement plans to 
prevent community 
tensions and support 
a more cohesive and 
integrated 
community 

John 
Rooney

March 2020 Through project with Government 
develop an insight into community 
settlement patterns in the 
borough and the impact on 
services. 

Support Rochdale Connections 
Trust and M6 Theatre to deliver 
‘Building Stronger Britain 
Together’ projects

Deliver with Foundation 4 Peace 
the ‘Families for Peace’ 
programme across the borough.

December 
2019

February 
2020

March 2020

Sajjad 
Miah

People Working across 
organisational 
boundaries

NDP3 Roll out work of 
integrated place 
based teams to 
reduce crisis 
demand and deliver 
value for money and  
wider benefits

John 
Rooney

March 2020 Complete annual citizen-led 
leadership challenges in 
partnership with GMCA 

Following pilot stages, have in 
place active Place Teams based 
in each of the 5 townships

December 
2019

March 2020

Helen 
Chicot

People Sharing services 
with other public 
sector bodies

P
age 35



8

NDP4 Agree plan for 
embedding Public 
Service Reform 
across the borough

John 
Rooney

March 2020 Partnership put in place to 
support reform activity across 
Council, partners and Health and 
Social Care following reform 
benchmark exercise

Begin implementation of new 
service models

September 
2019

October 
2019

Helen 
Chicot

People Looking at new 
models of service 
delivery

NDP5 Transform and 
improve customer, 
digital and 
information 
governance 
provision

John 
Rooney

March 2020 Deliver Phase 1 (analysis) and 
commence Phase 2 (delivery) of 
Customer Transformation 
Programme

Agree final partnership delivery 
plan relating to Digital Strategy

Undertake review of Contact 
Centre provision options and 
propose future operating model

October 
2019

December 
2019

March 2020

Mark 
Jones

People Looking at new 
models of service 
delivery

NDP6 Promote the 
borough as a 
desirable place to 
live, work and do 
business.

John 
Rooney

March 2020 Work with internal stakeholders to 
determine communication 
priorities for 2019/20 

July 2019 Danny 
Brierley

People/
Place/ 
Prosperity

Developing a 
culture of social 
responsibility

NDP7 Determine vision 
and priorities to offer 
strategic direction for 
the and the Borough 
and the Council

John 
Rooney

March 2020 Develop a new Corporate Plan for 
2019/ 2020 onwards

Develop a joint Equality and 
Diversity Strategy for the Borough 
for Council and CCG

September 
2019

December 
2019

Caroline 
Wolfenden

People/
Place/ 
Prosperity

Looking at new 
models of 
service delivery

P
age 36



9

NDP08 Modify the 
homelessness 
prevention strategy 
in line with 
legislative 
changes, GM and 
national priorities, .

Donna 
Bowler

June 2020 Audit existing strategy

Identify strategic priorities inc 
issues relating to housing 
access and supply; out of 
borough placements; early 
intervention and prevention

Establish a regional Strategy 
sub group

Develop a revised 
Homelessness strategy

June 2019

Aug 2019

Sept 2019

June 2020

I Jolley People Working across 
organisational 
boundaries 

NDP09  Modify the 
Council’s Housing 
Allocations Policy 
and Scheme 
meets statutory 
requirements and 
makes the 
maximises the use 
of housing stock in 
the borough

Donna 
Bowler

Review of current policy and 
scheme to ensure it is fit for 
purpose

Commission and undertake 
Phase 1 of business 
transformation study / service 
development  

Develop and implement quick 
wins and explore opportunities 
identified by Phase 1.

Phase 2 - develop consultation 
and implementation plans for 
longer term changes identified 
through Phase 1

Review housing outcomes

June 2019

August 
2019

December 
2019

January 
2020

March 
2020

Helen 
Bellis

Place Ensure the 
Council’s 
Housing 
Allocations 
Policy and 
Scheme meets 
statutory 
requirements 
and makes the 
maximises the 
use of housing 
stock in the 
borough

NDP10 Commence a CPO 
Programme for 36 
sites across the 
the borough

Donna 
Bowler

  Commence the statutory 
CPO process on the priority list 
of problem sites and buildings

March 
2020

Peter 
Maynard

7: Clean 
environm
ent & 15. 
Perceptio

Report progress 
to Township 
Regeneration 
Panels

P
age 37



10

n of 
Rochdale 
is 
changed

Reports to 
Cabinet and 
Township as 
required to 
implement 
CPOs

ND11 Sustain as a 
minimum our 
recycling rate (in 
year 2019/20) 
whilst reviewing 
current waste 
management 
strategy to improve 
rates in 
conjunction with 
the governments 
resources & waste 
strategy.

Donna 
Bowler

March 2020 Present recommendations for 
refresh of Rochdale’s Waste 
Strategy to encompass where 
appropriate recommendations 
from DEFRA Waste & 
Resources with a view to 
implementation of 
recommendations in 20/21

Implement a programme of 
targeted activities to take place 
in 2019/20 to promote 
recycling, re-use and 
reductions in household waste  

June 2019

July
 2019

Martin 
Taylor

Martin 
Taylor

Place Report to 
Cabinet June 
2019

NDP12 Improve the 
cleanliness of our 
streets and open 
spaces and public 
realm

Donna 
Bowler

March 2020 Develop a process to  address 
Fly-tipping and side-waste at 
bin collection points and 
alleyways 

Implement Highways 
Advertising Board permit 
scheme to regulate 
obstructions in high-footfall 
areas  

June 2019

Jan 2020

Martin 
Taylor

Martin 
Taylor

Place

Place

Report progress 
to O&S

Report progress 
to O&S

NDP13 Highways Input to Donna March 2020 Commence construction South Jan 2020 Place / Highways 

P
age 38



11

Support 
Economic/Housing 
growth

Bowler Heywood J19 Link Road

Support GMSF/Northern 
Gateway, 
RR Phase 2 and Station 
Gateway, 

Town Centre master planning 
including a new Rochdale 
Town Centre traffic model

March 
2020

March 
2020

Andrew 
Storey

Prosperit
y

service is 
working closely 
with Planning, 
Legal and 
Rochdale 
Development 
Agency services

NDP14 Capitalise on the 
delivery of the  
Highways Capital 
Programme & 
Additional 
Investment – 
leading to 
improved road 
condition

Donna 
Bowler

March 2020 Deliver LTP capital programme

Deliver Year 2 of 3 of 
additional leader investment 
funding – value £4m

Undertake targeted structural 
patching of areas of 
carriageway where there 
concentrated amount of 
potholes - £1.08m

Deliver Flood Resilience 
programme of High Risk flood 
sites - £500k

Maintain an acceptable 
backlog level on highway 
defect repairs. (less than 30 
jobs out of timescale at any 
one time

March 
2020

March 
2020

March 
2020

March 
2020

Ongoing

Andrew 
Storey

Place Highways 
service is 
working closely 
with BBLP to 
deliver the 
overall 
programme. 

NDP15 Capitalise on 
Rochdale’s 
registered housing 
providers 
investment monies 
available through 

Donna 
Bowler

March 2020 Work with registered housing 
providers to agree the build 
programme for delivery of both 
affordable and supported 
housing.
 

March 
2020

Helen 
Bellis

Rochdale 
benefittin
g from 
devolutio
n and 
providing 

Report progress 
to Township 
Regeneration 
Panels
Report to 
Cabinet and 

P
age 39



12

the GM Mayoral 
Fund

Bring forward inner town  
Brownfield sites to provide 
community led housing for the 
most challenged communities 
and promote town centre 
development

Engage with developers 
receiving HCA grant monies to 
ensure they are aware of 
opportunities in Rochdale

March 
2020

Review 
Sept 2019

a quality 
offer to 
local 
people, 
investors 
and 
business
es

Township as 
required.  RP 
and developer 
applications to 
Planning 
Committee

NDP/ 
PP1

Support the 
development and 
implementation of 
the GM Clean Air 
Plan to tackle 
nitrogen dioxide 
exceedances

Donna 
Bowler

March  2020 Develop and deliver the 
clustered stakeholder 
engagement events with 
Rochdale, Oldham and 
Tameside taxi trade 

Support TfGM with the 
development and delivery of 
other stakeholder engagement 
events

Support TfGM with the 
development and delivery of 
the statutory consultation 
around the GM Clean Air Plan

Support TfGM in the 
production and submission of 
the Full Business Case for the 
GM Clean Air Plan

Support TfGM with the 
location,  commissioning and 
maintenance of a real-time 
monitoring station within the 
Borough

July  2019

July 2019

October 
2019

December 
2019

March 
2020

Nicola 
Rogers

Place
People 
Prosperit
y 

Working across 
organisational 
boundariesP

age 40



13

Accelerated 
Housing 
Programme

Donna 
Bowler

June 2019

March 2020

Commission consultant study 
to inform approach to 
delivering higher value housing

Promote at an agreed annual 
programme of sites for the 
development of higher value 
housing in order to widen 
housing choice and retain 
economically active 
households.

September 
2019

November
2019

Robert 
Scott

Donna 
Bowler

Place 
People 
Prosperit
y

Working across 
organisational 
boundaries

P
age 41



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 30th July 2019
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Stuart Smith (Resources 
Directorate)

Public/Private Document Public

Finance Update Report 2019/20

Executive Summary

To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 
Council’s forecast 2019/20 financial position as at the end of May 2019.

1.1 The Finance Update Report contains detail of the following:

 Capital spend is forecast to be in line with budget after approved 
rephasing in Economy of £3.500m.

 The forecast Revenue position is a pressure of £4.805m.
 Savings of £0.135m are forecast to be achieved, as part of the 

Revenue budget.
 Forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund surplus position of £1.345m.

1.2 Effective financial management is essential if the Council is to keep spending 
within available resources. It is vital that services make adjustments in 
spending to ensure that they spend in line with the approved budget.

Recommendation

2.1 The forecast 2019/20 budget positions for Capital, Revenue, Savings and the 
Collection Fund as at the end of May 2019 are noted.

2.2 To note the capital scheme changes shown in section 4.1.2.

2.3 Cabinet note the approved rephasing request detailed in 4.1.3.

2.4 Cabinet approve the proposed virement detailed in 4.1.4.

2.5 Approval is given to the Revenue Budget Pressure Fund requests detailed in 
4.2.4.

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



Reason for Recommendation

3.1. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 
authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring the financial 
resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of variations 
against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

This report provides an overview of the forecast 2019/20 financial position for 
the Council and focuses on the position as at the end of May 2019.  A further 
detailed report will be provided at 1st October Cabinet.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Capital Budget 2019/20

The current 2019/20 Capital Budget is £134.887m.  The table below shows a 
summary of the movements:

£m £m £m
Base Budget as per Budget Council February 2019 84.730 56.979 26.430
Budget Changes - - -
Approved Balance brought forward from prior years 50.574 3.606 -
Revised allocation 3.083 - -
Rephasing Identified at the end of May 2019 (3.500) - -
CAPITAL BUDGET MAY 2019 134.887 60.585 26.430

2019/20 2021/222020/21

4.1.1 Brought Forward Budget

Services budgets brought forward from previous years which are greater than 
£1m are detailed in the table below:

Directorate Scheme
Rephasing of > £1m 
from Previous Years 

£m
Funding Method

Neighbourhoods
Vehicle Replacement 
Programme                                    1.191 Borrowing

Neighbourhoods Section 106                                    1.294 External Funding
Children's Devolved Formula Capital                                    1.146 External Funding
Children's Schools capital condition                                    2.751 External Funding
Children's New Place Planning                                    8.676 External Funding
Economy Asset Development Fund                                    1.921 Capital Receipts
Economy River Roch Flood Storage                                    3.157 Borrowing
Economy Town Centre Schemes                                    6.887 Borrowing
Economy Heywood South Junction 19                                    1.500 Capital Receipts
Economy Property Growth Fund                                 14.286 Invest to Save

TOTAL                                 42.808 

Page 43



4.1.2 Capital Budget Changes 

Details of revised allocations for scheme budgets are listed below:
 Children’s Services: £2.575m increase in Basic Need grant. £0.008m 

other minor grant increases.
 Neighbourhoods, Asset Management Group – reinstatement of 

£0.500m, provisionally reduced in 2018/19 and reported in September 
2018 Finance Update report.

4.1.3 Capital Rephasing

Economy
 Request to re-phase £3.500m into 2022/23 has been approved for 

Town Hall Square Phase 2 to align with the Town Hall Restoration 
project.

4.1.4 Capital Virement Request

Neighbourhoods

The cremators at the Rochdale and Middleton sites are at end of life with the 
Rochdale site requiring immediate replacement.   To address this immediate issue it 
is proposed to vire budget from existing schemes within the Place segment of the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate.  The list of proposed capital schemes is shown below:

Scheme Name
 Current Budget

£m 
Vehicle Replacement Programme 2.341
Replacement Parks & Machinery 0.189
Upgrade Play Equipment 0.084
Allotments 2017/18 Manifesto Funding 0.050
Waste Bin Replacement Program 0.358
Rochdale Cemetery Lodge Repair 0.066
New Cemetery Sites 0.602
Mercury Abatement Scheme 0.033
Housing Standards Fund 0.882
Compulsory Purchase Order 1.538
Travellers Authorised Stopping Site 0.130
Bowlee Park Development 0.012
Car Parks 0.199
Total Value of Place Segment Schemes 6.484

Members are asked to approve the virement of £0.943m from schemes above to the 
Asset Management Group scheme.  The final virement balances will not be 
confirmed until year end, once the 2019/20 crematorium spend is realised and the 
availability from other schemes is confirmed.

Page 44



4.2. Revenue Budget 2019/20

4.2.1. The budget set by Budget Council on 27th February 2019 was £216.221m, 
with no changes to date:

Budget Changes

Approved by When Reason for change Amount (£m)
Budget Council Feb-19 Approved budget 216.221
GRAND TOTAL 216.221

4.2.2 The overall position taking account of the projections currently being forecast 
by services as at the end of May 2019 is a pressure of £4.805m.

4.2.3 The major (>£0.250m) variations to controllable budget, by service, are 
detailed below:-

Adult Care - £1.500m Overspend

The Adult Care service is experiencing financial pressures from the number 
and costs of care packages for service users. There is a further pressure from 
the provision of statutory Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards assessments. 
These pressures are partially mitigated by in-year savings from staff turnover 
and vacancies.

The pressures are reflected in the Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled 
Budget.

Children’s Services - £4.575m Overspend

Children’s services are projecting a pressure of £4.575m, which is largely 
attributed to 2018/19 growth in looked after children numbers as they continue 
to be cared for in 2019/20. In the first quarter of 2019/20, growth is showing 
signs of settling down, however it is realistic to expect some growth and this 
has been factored into the projected pressure. 

The remaining £0.147m pressure relates to the staffing retention strategy.  
Budget pressures funding has been requested, see section 4.2.4.

Children’s Services budgets are also included in the Integrated Health & 
Social Care Pooled Budget. However as previously agreed with the CCG, the 
pressure relating to looked after children is to be retained by the Council 
during 2019/20. 

In future years, the funding of pressures relating to Adult Care and Children’s 
Services will be subject to the development of the Pooled Fund 
commissioning arrangements.

 

Page 45



Budget Pressures

The Budget Pressure Fund for 2019/20 is £0.983m - £0.723m ongoing and 
£0.260m one-off. This is after taking into account previously approved budget 
pressure requests for 2019/20.  The following requests for funding have been 
made to the end of May 2019:

Economy:

 £0.050m one-off funding is required for the income budget associated with 
the Employment Links Contract due to recent notification of a significant 
reduction in the contract value in 2019/20. The Service is awaiting a 
decision regarding sources of funding which is expected shortly, and if 
received, this could mitigate the above pressure. 

 £0.059m ongoing funding is requested to fund an additional Enforcement 
post within Planning. The Head of Planning has identified major scope to 
improve business processes and customer experience and use this 
additional resource to boost non-statutory income, as well as accelerate 
developer interest and activity within the borough. For 2019/20 the 
requirement is £0.040m (part-year) and from 2020/21 £0.059m ongoing. 

Neighbourhoods:

 Street Lighting - £0.298m ongoing funding was approved at February 2019 
Cabinet, relating to the new utilities contract for the supply of electricity. 

Children’s Service:

 £0.147m ongoing in 2019/20 increasing to £0.347m onwards from 
2020/21 is requested for the Social Worker retention strategy to stabilise 
the workforce.  A reduction in agency spend is expected as a result of this 
investment and strategy.

Resources:

 £0.025m ongoing funding is requested due to legislative changes within 
payroll (real time information to HMRC) to enable the Council payroll to 
continue.

 £0.115m ongoing funding is requested for Electoral Reform. This is due 
to a reduction in grant received and an increase in costs. It is 
anticipated the budget pressure requirement in 2020/21 will rise to 
£0.172m.

If the above are approved, there will be a balance of £0.606m remaining in the 
budget pressure fund - £0.396m ongoing and £0.210m one-off for 2019/20.

4.2 Savings Update 2019/20

4.3.1 The total savings target for 2019/20 is £0.135m:

Page 46



 £0.135m of savings were approved at Council on 12th December 2019 

4.3.2  Services have not identified any issues for their non-achievement.

4.3 Collection Fund

4.4.1 The forecast Collection Fund Position for 2019/20 is a surplus of £1.345m, 
comprising:

 £0.758m surplus relating to Business Rates;
 £0.587m surplus relating to Council Tax.

4.4.2 The Collection Fund Update table in Appendix A shows the forecast surplus 
position on the Collection Fund as at 31st May 2019, and the allocation of the 
closing surplus between precepting authorities.

4.4.3 The Council’s share of the forecast Collection Fund surplus as at 31st May 
2019 is £1.250m. 

4.4.4 The main areas of overall variance to the budget are:     
 

 Business Rates:

Explanation of variance
Variation to 
budget, £000

Forecast reduced Empty Property and Retail Relief, partially 
offset by forecast increased Small Business Rates Relief and 
Mandatory Charitable relief

(826)

Actual deficit brought forward from 2018/19 is £68k lower than 
had been forecast as part of the 2019/20 Budget process. 

68

2019/20 forecast surplus (758)

 Council Tax:

Explanation of variance
Variation to 
budget, £000

Forecast reduced Council Tax gross income partially offset by 
lower forecast discounts given.

691

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt provision. (733)

Forecast reduced level of Local Council Tax Support discount 
given.

(360)

Actual surplus brought forward from 2018/19 is £185k higher 
than had been forecast as part of the 2019/20 Budget process. 

(185)

2019/20 forecast surplus (587)

4.5. Alternatives considered

4.5.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 
are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 

Page 47



identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. See Appendix A which provides an overview of budgets for Capital, Revenue 
and The Collection Fund detailed in section 4.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no major legal implications arising as a result of this report except 
to note that debts that are recoverable can be enforced by court action in 
accordance with the court procedure rules.

6.

Consultation

7. All services engage with the production of the service based financial 
information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader, Cabinet 
Member for Finance, and Opposition Portfolio holder for Finance have been 
informed of the forecast 2019/20 financial position of the Council and its 
implications for future years. The report is presented to the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny on 23rd July 2019.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. For further information about this 
report or access to any 
background papers contact Stuart 
Smith

No1 Riverside Floor 2 

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith, 
Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
Tel : 01706 924196

Page 48

mailto:Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


FINANCE SERVICES

2019/20 P2 Finance Update Summary
Revenue Summary

Capital Summary

Revenue Key Movements/Variances
Children's
£4.575m Overspend - growth in looked after children numbers (£4.428m). The remaining £0.147m
pressure is requested as Budget Pressures funding within the report, relating to the staff retention
policy.

Adult Care are forecasting a pressure of £1.500m relating to the number and costs of care packages for
service users. There is a further pressure from the provision of statutory Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards assessments. These pressures are reflected in the Integrated Health & Social Care Pool.

Recommendations
Cabinet approves :
Budget Pressure Requests of:

Economy : £0.050m ongoing relating to Employment Links contract income target.
£0.059m ongoing funding for an additional Enforcement post within Planning,
£0.040 in 2019/20 (part year).

Children's: £0.147m ongoing, 2019/20 (£0.347m year 2020/21 onwards) relating to the
Social Worker retention policy.

Resources: £0.025m ongoing relating to Payroll software
£0.115m ongoing, 2019/20 (£0.172m 2020/21 onwards) relating to Electoral Reform.

Capital Budget Virement of:

Neighbourhoods: £0.943m of Place segment budget to enable the purchase of new
cremators at the Rochdale and Middleton sites.

Approved rephasing - Economy £3.5m
Town Hall square is rephased to bring it in line with restoration works at the Town Hall scheduled for 2022/23.

Adult Care Children's Economy Neighbourhoods Resources Total
P2 rephasing requested -                                     -                                     3,500                                 -                                     -                                     3,500                                 
Actual Spend to 31st May 2019 310                                     626                                     5,705                                 2,008                                 -                                     8,649                                 
Forecast Further Spend 2,834                                 27,212                               59,576                               27,876                               8,740                                 126,238                            
Approved Budget 3,144                                 27,838                               68,781                               29,884                               8,740                                 138,387                            

Directorate/ Detail
Budget 
Council

Virements/
Contingency Current Budget

Service and 
Corporate 

Uncontrollables

Current 
Controllable
Approved 

Net 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn

In Year Saving/
(Overspend)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Adult Care 15,415 1,577 16,992 3,997 12,995 12,995 0
Children's 21,585 1,127 22,712 19,110 3,602 8,177 (4,575)
Economy 15,993 380 16,373 804 15,569 15,659 (90)
Neighbourhoods 52,413 1,650 54,063 1,282 52,781 52,781 0
Public Health and Wellbeing 8,206 296 8,502 1,889 6,613 6,613 0
Resources 8,222 (553) 7,669 (3,692) 11,361 11,501 (140)
TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES SPENDING 121,834 4,477 126,311 23,390 102,921 107,726 (4,805)
Integrated Pool Budget Contribution 87,159 0 87,159 0 87,159 87,159 0
TOTAL POOLED BUDGETS 87,159 0 87,159 0 87,159 87,159 0
Finance Control: Corporately Held Budgets 4,139 (7,074) (2,935) (20,623) 17,687 17,687 0
Finance Control: Transformation Fund 1,719 2,984 4,703 0 4,703 4,703 0
Finance Control: Budget Pressures 1,370 (387) 983 0 983 983 0
TOTAL FINANCE CONTROL SPENDING 7,228 (4,477) 2,751 (20,623) 23,373 23,373 0

NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 216,221 0 216,221 2,767 213,453 218,258 (4,805)

P
age 49



Agenda 
Item

Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 30th July 2019
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Neil Thornton
Public/Private Document Public

Budget 2020/21 to 2022/23 Guidelines, Timetable and Public 
Engagement

Executive Summary

1.

2.

To recommend the budget guidelines, timetable and method of public 
engagement to be used in preparing the detailed 2020/21 budget and 
provisional budgets for 2021/22 and 2022/23.

To provide an update on the latest budget position for the Council and 
Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group.

Recommendation

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.1.4

2.2

2.3

Members are requested to consider and approve the following:

The proposed budget timetable detailed at Appendix 1.

The revenue assumptions detailed in section 4.2 to be incorporated into the 
budget setting process.

The revenue and capital budget principles referred to in section 4.5. 

The proposed methods of public engagement outlined in section 4.6 as part 
of the 2020/21 budget setting process.

Members are asked to note the updated Revenue Budget position for 
2020/21 to 2022/23.

Members are asked to note the Budget Review Sessions to be undertaken 
as part of the 2020/21 budget setting process.

Page 50

Agenda Item 8



Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Under the Budget & Policy Framework Cabinet is required to approve the 
proposed guidelines, timetable and methods of public engagement for setting 
the 2020/21 Budget and Provisional Budgets for 2021/22 and 2022/23 by 
September each year.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2

4.2.1

Timetable

The Council’s budget must be approved by full Council before 11th March 
each year. This is a statutory requirement. The process begins in July with 
approval being sought for the assumptions and principles on which the 
budget is to be based. These will be used as a part of the determination of 
the overall budget position.

Throughout the year we consult on the budget and savings proposals.  
Financial projections are updated as further information becomes available 
for the Local Government Finance Settlement and other known changes, 
including local decisions. The updated budget and feedback from 
consultations are reported back to Cabinet in February with 
recommendations for Budget Council, who will in turn set the budget.

Services are notified of their resource allocations following Budget Council 
in February. The full budget timetable is detailed at Appendix 1.

Revenue Budget Assumptions for 2020/21 – 2022/23

As part of the budget setting process the Council makes a number of 
assumptions in respect of the key elements of the Council’s revenue 
budget.  Appendix 2 provides a summary of these assumptions for 2020/21, 
2021/22 and 2022/23. Future reports will make Cabinet aware of any 
changes that impact on the current budget assumptions. These are outlined 
below.

Local Government Funding Reforms 2020/21

2019/20 is the final year of the Government’s 4-year funding settlement and 
there is significant uncertainty over the level of Government funding the 
Council will receive from 2020/21 onwards. In his Spring Statement 2019 
the Chancellor announced that, assuming a Brexit deal is agreed, he will 
launch a full three-year spending review before the summer break. The 
spending Review sets Government departmental budgets. Given the 
current uncertainty at Government level it is unclear whether the Spending 
Review will progress as planned.

There are multiple reforms to the system of Government funding for local 
authorities scheduled for 2020/21, including the Review of Relative Needs 

Page 51



4.2.2

and Resources, the Business Rates Baseline Reset, and changes to the 
Business Rates Retention system.

Consultations were held in December 2018 on Business Rates Retention 
Reform and the new approach to distributing funding through the Review of 
Relative Needs and Resources. No further information has been published 
on the outcome of these consultations.

The Government intends to introduce transitional arrangements that will 
determine the basis on which authorities reach their new funding 
allocations. The transitional arrangements will take into account the wider 
factors taking place in 2020/21. It is intended that the transitional 
arrangements will unwind over time so that each authority reaches its new 
funding allocations as soon as practicable. 

At this stage the impact of these reforms on individual authorities is 
unknown.  For planning purposes it has been assumed that the reforms to 
Local Government Funding will not be introduced until 2021/22, and that 
the level of funding received in 2020/21 will be at the same level as 2019/20. 
It has been assumed that funding will gradually reduce in 2021/22 and 
2022/23 under transitional arrangements. Any shortfall in the estimated 
Business Rates Top-up Grant following the reforms will be met from the 
Business Rates Reserve.

Given the current uncertainty over the Spending Review it is unclear 
whether the reforms to Local Government funding will progress as planned 
for 2020/21. We will continue to assess the likely financial implications for 
the Council, and as and when the Government issues further consultations 
on proposed funding reforms these will be reported to Cabinet. 

Business Rates

Rochdale is part of a Greater Manchester pilot for 100% business rates 
retention, which commenced in 2017/18 and will continue in 2019/20.  The 
pilot authorities each retain 100% of locally-raised business rates. In return 
Greater Manchester will forgo Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and the Public 
Health Grant. Authorities’ tariffs and top-ups are adjusted to ensure that 
these changes are without detriment to individual authorities. 

From 2020/21 it is proposed that councils will retain 75% of their Business 
Rates income, incorporating Revenue Support Grant, Public Health Grant 
and other grants, with suitable transitional arrangements. There is currently 
no information on the impact for individual authorities of this change. Further 
information will be provided when available, however previously Central 
Government has assured Pilot Authorities that these will be “without 
financial detriment” to those Local Authorities in the pilot.

It is unclear whether the current 100% retention pilots will continue beyond 
2019/20. For planning purposes it has been assumed that the GM 100% 
Business Rates pilot will continue from 2020/21 to 2022/23. Business Rates 
growth income achieved under the pilot scheme is retained locally and 

Page 52



4.2.3

4.2.4

shared 50/50 between the individual authorities and the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority. 

Since 2017/18 the Council has retained £4.8m additional growth income as 
a result of the GM 100% retention pilot scheme. This is held in the Business 
Rates Growth Reserve. The estimated additional pilot growth income of 
£2.9m for 2020/21 has been brought into the General Fund budget. No pilot 
growth income has been assumed in 2021/22 and 2022/23, pending the 
reset of Business Rates baselines as part of the current review of the Local 
Government Funding system.

The budget assumes, for planning purposes, a general increase in business 
rates charges of 2% in 2020/21, 2% in 2021/22, and 2% in 2022/23 in line 
with the estimated CPI at September each year. The budget also assumes 
additional business rates income in relation to new developments in the 
borough, including Rochdale Riverside.

Council Tax Increase

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is to maximise income 
generated locally.

In 2019/20 the Council Tax referendum limit was increased by 1% for 
General Purposes in line with inflation, meaning that the limit was 3%. This 
is the amount a Local Authority can increase Council Tax by before a ballot 
with the Council Tax Payers of Rochdale must be undertaken. 

For planning purposes, a general increase in Council Tax of 2.99% has 
been assumed for 2020/21 and 2021/22, in line with expected referendum 
limits. A general increase of 1.99% has been assumed for 2022/23. 

The 2017/18 Local Government Finance settlement offered the flexibility to 
charge an Adult Social Care Precept of up to an additional 6% on Council 
Tax for the three years 2017/18 to 2019/20. The Government has not made 
an announcement on the future of the Adult Social Care precept for 2020/21 
onwards. For planning purposes a Social Care precept of 2% has been 
assumed for 2020/21. No further precept has been assumed for 2021/22 
and 2022/23.

Any variation in the level of Council Tax increase approved will have an 
impact on the forecast budget position.

Council Tax Base

The Council Tax base is currently 55,176, representing the number of Band 
D equivalent properties that the Council can collect Council Tax from.  The 
Council Tax base will be reviewed and formally considered by Cabinet in 
November of each year. The level of Council Tax Base is a key component 
in the calculation of resources available to the Council.

Page 53



4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

Improved Better Care Fund

The Better Care Fund brings together elements of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Local Authority budgets into a pooled 
arrangement. This is to encompass integrated commissioning which will 
support the transformation and integration of health and social care 
services. 

The national Improved Better Care Fund allocation of £1.5bn in 2019/20 
assumed that councils will increase Council Tax for the Adult Social Care 
precept. The allocation methodology uses the 2013 social care relative 
needs formula and allocates funding against resources available. 
Rochdale’s allocation is £9.241m in 2019/20. 

In the March 2017 Budget the Government announced an additional £2bn 
to help local authorities provide high quality social care to more people and 
to ease the pressure on the NHS. Rochdale’s allocation is £1.568m for 
2019/20.

No information has been provided by the Government on grant allocations 
for 2020/21 to 2022/23. The budget assumes the same funding levels as 
2019/20 for planning purposes.

Additional Funding for Social Care

An additional £240m was previously announced for Adult Care winter 
pressures in 2018/19, and a further £240m for 2019/20 was announced in 
the Autumn Budget 2018. Rochdale’s allocation for both 2018/19 and 
2019/20 was £1.1m. 

A further £410m was announced for 2019/20 for Adults and Children’s 
Social Care. Rochdale’s allocation was £1.9m. 

The Government has not announced whether additional Social Care 
funding will be provided for 2020/21 onwards. For planning purposes an 
amount of £1.5m has been assumed for 2021/22 and 2022/23, based on 
the allocations received in previous years and assuming the reforms to 
Local Government Funding are introduced from 2021/22.

New Homes Bonus

The New Homes Bonus (NHB) Scheme is designed to provide incentives 
and rewards for Local Authorities who have a net increase in housing stock 
and have brought empty properties back into use in their areas. From 
2019/20 the number of years the NHB is paid for is 4 years. Growth in 
housing stock will only be rewarded above a baseline of 0.4% of opening 
housing stock. The assumed level of New Homes Bonus grant in the budget 
is based on the estimated net growth in total housing stock, net of 
demolitions and the number of long-term empty properties.

Page 54



4.2.8

4.2.9

4.2.10

4.2.11

4.2.12

4.2.13

The Government has not announced whether the New Homes Bonus 
scheme will continue following the review of Local Government Funding. 
For planning purposes it is assumed that the New Homes Bonus scheme 
will continue in its current form for 2020/21 to 2022/23.

Housing Benefit/Local Council Tax Support Scheme Administration 
Grants

The Council receives grants from Central Government for the administration 
of Housing Benefit and the Local Council Tax Support Scheme. The Council 
has yet to receive notification of the level of grants for 2020/21 and future 
years. Any shortfall in the grant received compared to the amounts 
estimated will be funded corporately.

Pay Inflation

The budget assumes for planning purposes that the pay award will be 2% 
per annum for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23. Any settlement above the 
assumed increase would increase the expenditure requirement for 2020/21 
to 2022/23. Every change of 1% equates to approximately £700k. 

The budget also reflects the Council’s commitment to pay, based on the 
Local Living Wage Rates for employees. The National Living Wage to 
increase by 4.9% from £7.83 to £8.21 per hour from April 2019.  The 
Rochdale Living Wage for 2019/20 is £9 per hour.

Increments

The Council’s biennial incremental progression policy is currently under 
review. Any savings previously assumed as a result of the current biennial 
policy have been removed from the budget pending this review.

Superannuation Rates

The employer superannuation contribution rate is assumed to increase by 
0.9% per annum in 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23. 

Price Inflation

The budget assumes 0% inflation per annum across the majority of the 
Council’s non-pay expenditure budgets. Contractual arrangements and 
other significant inflation issues will be considered on a case by case basis. 

Discretionary Fees and Charges

Discretionary Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. For 
2020/21 to 2022/23 no increase in Discretionary Fees and Charges has 
been assumed for planning purposes. 

Page 55



4.2.14

4.2.15

4.2.16

4.2.17

Budget Growth/Pressures

The budget allows for estimated growth in Adult Care, Children’s Services 
and Neighbourhoods budgets as a result of demographic issues and the 
growth in the number of properties in the borough. 

The budget also recognises the estimated financial implications of demand 
pressures on Children’s Services budgets.

Recurrent Children’s Services pressures of £2.850m have been built into 
Pooled Fund Gap. Work is continuing with the Service to address the 
budget pressures in relation to Children's Strategy. The Government's 
Spending Review will potentially address the funding issues in relation to 
Children's Services. 

Manchester Airport Group 

The Council holds 3.22% of the issued share capital in the Manchester 
Airport Group. An additional £3m per annum has been assumed, increasing 
the overall budget from the investment in Manchester Airport Group to 
£5.6m.

Waste Disposal Levy

The Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a formula across Greater 
Manchester which takes account of recycling levels. If Rochdale Borough 
did not increase recycling at the same level as other GM Authorities, there 
would be an impact on the waste disposal levy charged to the Council thus 
leading to an increased cost to the Council’s budget. 

The Waste Disposal Levy assumed for in the budget is based on the latest 
projections provided by Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA). 
The Waste Disposal levy is estimated for planning purposes to increase by 
1.6% in 2020/21, 1.6% in 2021/22 and 0% in 2022/23.  The Waste Disposal 
Levy will be subject to consideration/agreement as a consequence of the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority’s budget setting process in 
2020/21 and subsequent years.

Passenger Transport Levy

In 2019/20 the Mayoral precept will be used to invest in bus reform, through 
grants to the districts. Rochdale will receive a grant of £0.648m in 2019/20 
in order to offset the increase in the Transport Levy in respect of bus reform. 
The budget assumes a 1% increase in the underlying Passenger Transport 
Levy for 2020/21 to 2022/23. The Passenger Transport Levy will be subject 
to consideration/agreement as a consequence of the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority’s budget setting process in 2020/21 and subsequent 
years

Page 56



4.2.18

4.2.19

Greater Manchester Combined Authority Initiatives

Funding for any GMCA initiatives that have financial implications for 
individual authorities will be considered on a case by case basis.

Integration of Health & Social Care

From 2018/19 the Local Authority has been required to operate a formal 
pooled budget arrangement for health and social care, as part of the GM 
Health & Social Care Transformation Funding Programme. The pooling of 
resources across the locality will provide more opportunities to explore 
value for money, economies of scale, reduce duplication and streamline 
processes. A key driver is to have a one system approach, improving the 
quality of care provided to the individual.

The pooled budget brings together resources from a range of organisations 
including the Clinical Commissioning Group, the Local Authority, Better 
Care Funds and GM level resources to invest in transformation of service 
delivery, (known as Transformation Funding). 

The Council has continued to progress its joint Senior Manager 
arrangements with Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical 
Commissioning Group (HMRCCG) to administrate and manage the pooled 
budget created to deliver health and care integration in Rochdale. Posts are 
in place funded from the Pool. There is one post of Chief Executive of the 
Council and Accountable officer for the CCG. The Section 151 officer has 
delegated responsibility for the management of the pooled budget to the 
Chief Finance officer of the Clinical Commissioning Group to operate as one 
resource for the delivery of health and care. The pooled fund is administered 
through the Integrated Commissioning Board, which is a joint committee of 
Rochdale Council and to which members of the governing body of the 
HMRCCG are co-opted.

Integration of commissioning has progressed with health and social care 
commissioners working as one directorate to plan, organise and procure 
health, social care and public health services and support for all ages. 
Corporate services from the Council and HMRCCG are being reviewed and 
merged where this would add value and improve the service.  This has 
already taken place in finance with Human Resources, and other support 
services are being considered. The Greater Manchester Health and Social 
Care Partnership (GMHSCP) Transformation Fund has awarded to 
Rochdale/ HMRCCG the sum of £25.2m to support the move from the 
previous model of health and care to one more focused on prevention and 
out of hospital support. The money is managed through the pooled fund. 

The delivery of health and care was contracted from the Local Care 
Organisation from April 2019. Health and care services will be provided 
through this partnership and over the last twelve months service delivery of 
integrated health and care teams, urgent care support care home support 
and intermediate tier services have been expanded to provide a better offer 
to patients and people in Rochdale. The Family Services model has 

Page 57



4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.4

4.3.6

progressed focusing on Children, young people and their families and has 
enhanced its support for mental wellbeing and early help for children across 
the whole system. The Family Services Model is proposed to move forward 
into an alliance partnership during the next twelve months.

If there is a shortfall in the delivery of the savings to be generated by the 
Transformation Fund this would generate a deficit on the pooled fund, and 
could be shared by the CCG and Rochdale Council based on the agreed 
risk sharing basis.

Updated Budget Gap 2020/21 to 2022/23

Overall Budget Gap

The assumptions that underpin the Council’s budget gap have been 
reviewed in line with the latest available information, as outlined in section 
4.2. This has been combined with the latest HMRCCG budget gap to 
produce a overall budget gap for the locality.

Table 1 summarises the current estimated Overall Budget Gap, between 
the Pooled Fund and Non-pooled Fund budgets. 

Table 1 Overall Budget Gap 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
 £m £m £m
  
Pooled Fund 14.754 22.167 23.057
Non Pooled 2.821 7.748 9.351
Children's Services Pressures 5.313 3.196 1.904
Total Budget Gap 22.888 33.111 34.312

The one-off Children’s Services pressures identified in the Children’s 
Strategy are shown separately. Recurrent Children’s Services pressures of 
£2.850m have been built into Pooled Fund Gap. Work is continuing with the 
Service to address the budget pressures in relation to Children's Strategy. 
The Government's Spending Review will potentially address the funding 
issues in relation to Children's Services. 

There remains significant uncertainty around the level of funding that the 
Council will receive from Central Government from 2020/21 onwards. The 
assumptions will be continually reviewed and updated as further 
information is received on the Government’s Spending Review and the 
reforms to Local Government Funding planned for 2020/21.

An analysis of the changes to the Budget Gap from the position reported to 
Budget Council in February 2019 and ICB March 2019 is provided in 
Appendix 3.

Page 58



4.4

4.4.1

4.4.2

4.4.3

4.5

4.5.1

4.5.2

4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

Capital

A review of the capital programme is currently being undertaken. This 
review will provide a three year capital programme for 2020/21 to 2022/23 
taking into consideration the estimated reduction in capital resources and 
the limited revenue funding available for Capital Schemes in these years. 

Aims of the Capital Programme
The Capital Programme aims to:

- Deliver investment in the Borough to support the Borough wide 
priorities, including economic benefit and gross value added to the 
Borough;

- Deliver investment in Service Provision to deliver future savings;
- Maintain and enhance the Council’s assets;
- Support Devolution;
- Meet Statutory provision;
- Provide Value for Money.

A report to Cabinet in October will recommend the Capital Programme for 
2020/21 to 2022/23 for consideration. This will then be included as part of 
the 2020/21 budget consultation.

Budget Principles

Revenue Budget Principles - detailed guidelines are provided to all relevant 
staff to ensure that revenue budgets for individual services are prepared 
consistently. These guidelines contain details of the assumptions that are 
to be made in setting the revenue budget and also set out broad principles 
that are to be adhered to. The principles that are proposed for inclusion in 
the budget guidelines for 2020/21 to 2022/23 are provided at Appendix 4.

Capital Programme Principles have been developed to enable focus on the 
purpose of the Capital Programme and to seek agreement for the use of 
limited resources. The principles for the Capital Programme are provided at 
Appendix 5.

Public Engagement

The Council is intending to undertake a Public Engagement initiative during 
Autumn 2019, involving residents, businesses and other stakeholders as 
part of the consultation on the budget 2020/21 to 2022/23 and savings 
proposals.

As in previous years the initiative is intended to:

- raise awareness of the services that the Council currently delivers;

- raise awareness of the Council’s current budget position, both 
resources and expenditure;

Page 59



4.6.3

4.6.4

- explain the future challenges as a result of funding reductions, 
increased demand for services and other pressures, and the difficult 
decisions we have to make;

- explain the integration of Health and Social Care budgets between 
the Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group;

- highlight the part that residents and businesses can play in the future 
of Rochdale and in helping to reduce costs;

- highlight the need for the Council and residents/businesses to work 
together;

- highlight the development of the Co-operative Council approach;

- undertake a general conversation with stakeholders on their opinions 
and thoughts on the above.

Wherever possible the intention will be to work alongside other engagement 
initiatives to raise awareness of the budget challenges, to seek views and 
also highlight how residents can help.

Public Engagement for the Budget 2020/21 is suggested to be undertaken 
as a three stage process:

A)  General Budget Conversation during July – September by :

 Prezi animated digital presentation – updated for 2020/21. 
 Edited Prezi animation – 10 x 25 second clips that can be shared on 

the Council’s Twitter, Facebook and website.
 Posters in public areas, to promote ‘have your say’ message and the 

online consultations.
 Social media posts – with links to online proposals.
 Council website updates – homepage and landing page banners, 

plus specific ‘Budget’ section as in previous savings consultations.
 Facebook advertising – promoting participation in the online 

consultations to residents.
 Media releases at appropriate stages during the budget process.
 Messages on digital screens and public PCs in libraries and other 

public buildings.

B)  Formal consultation of the Budget 2020/21 and savings proposals during 
October – December 2019.

C)  March 2020 – provide feedback online as to the engagement process 
and what is happening as a result of the resident participation in the Budget 
process.

Page 60



4.7

4.7.1

4.7.2

4.7.3

4.8

4.8.1

Budget Review Sessions

As part of the budget process, Budget Review Sessions will be held for each 
of the Council’s Priority Areas: People; Place and Prosperity. There will also 
be sessions reviewing Support Services and Fixed Costs.

The aim of the sessions is:

 For Directors to provide service information to enable Members to 
scrutinise spend and service priorities;

 To enable a review process to be undertaken on budgets; 
 To review options for savings over the next three years to meet the 

budget gap in 2020/21 – 2022/23.

Sessions are also being held with Wider Leadership Team to explore areas 
where the Council can maximise income generation opportunities.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting 
process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is equally 
important that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are 
agreed, reasonable and consistently applied by all services.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

Risk Implications 

The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known 
levels of expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation 
of these assumptions will not be received until November/December this year. 

There are a number of areas of the Council’s budget where risks to the 
projections contained in this report have been identified. The most significant 
of these are:

 Monitoring of the 2019/20 budget will provide Cabinet with regular 
updates on any budget pressures/savings for the Council. Any 
associated on going implications will be incorporated into the budget 
projections for 2020/21 and future years.

Page 61



 Savings – the level of savings required for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 
2022/23 is currently being considered. There is a risk to the overall 
budget of the non-achievement of these savings due to the 
identification and/or implementation of the proposals. A three year 
budget is to be set in February 2020 which provides time to implement 
the level of savings required to balance the budget over the period 
2020/21 to 2022/23.

 Spending Review 2019 and Local Government Funding Reforms – 
the impact of the Spending Review 2019 and Local Government 
Funding Reforms scheduled for 2020/21 on the level of Government 
funding, including the Business Rates Top-up Grant, that the Council 
will receive from 2020/21 onwards is unknown at this stage. 

 Specific Grants and Contributions – the number and amount of 
specific grants, including the Improved Better Care Fund, Additional 
Social Care funding and New Homes Bonus, received by the Council 
may be lower/higher than anticipated. 

 Council Tax – Central Government provides a cap on the Council Tax 
increase a Local Authority can make before a referendum of the local 
residents is required. The budget assumes a 4.99% increase in 
2020/21 (2.99% increase for general purposes and 2% increase in 
respect of the social care precept); 2.99% in 2021/22 (2.99% increase 
for general purposes and 0% increase for the social care precept) and 
1.99% in 2022/23 (1.99% increase for general purposes and 0% 
increase for the social care precept). These percentage increases are 
included for planning purposes only, and will be reviewed by Cabinet 
leading up to a recommendation at Budget Council for each year. The 
impact of a 1% change in the level of Council Tax increase would be 
approximately £880k.

 Local Council Tax Support Scheme – the budget assumes that the 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme remains unchanged. The impact 
on the budget of a 5% change in the maximum discount allowed 
(currently 85%) would be approximately £530k.

 Business Rates – it has been assumed for planning purposes that the 
Greater Manchester 100% Retention Pilot will continue. Once the 
Government’s proposals for the Business Rates retention system for 
2020/21 become clear the financial implications will be reviewed and 
the budget assumptions updated.

 Council Services - the impact of the economic climate on the 
residents of Rochdale Borough and the increased demand this may 
lead to for Council services could impact on cost of services, as could 
general demographic changes.

 Health and Social Care Devolution – the impact of pooling budgets 
with the Clinical Commissioning Group within a Pooled Budget. The 

Page 62



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

financial risk is that the investment in health and social care services 
does not deliver the benefits assumed. These benefits are required 
not only to fund interventions to invest to save in the long term, but 
also to contribute towards closing the budget gaps of all partners 
delivering health and social care services.

 Waste Disposal Levy – the Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a 
formula across Greater Manchester, which takes account of recycling 
levels. Should Rochdale Borough not increase recycling at the same 
level as other GM Authorities this will impact on the levy, and would 
lead to an increased cost to the Council’s budget. 

 Inflation – impact of changes in the price of goods and services used 
by the Council compared to the percentage assumed in the budget 
projections. 

 Fees and charges income – impact of any economic slowdown on 
levels of usage of charged for Council services could lead to income 
levels not being achieved.

 Manchester Airport Group dividend – the amount of dividend received 
will be dependent on the performance of the Manchester Airport 
Group.

 Investment income – the impact of low interest rates and implications 
of any economic slowdown on the level of dividends/interest received 
by the Council.

 Academies – the impact of the Government’s policies regarding the 
conversion of schools to Academies on the Council’s budget.

Legal Implications

The Council is under a duty to calculate the budget in accordance with 
Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and must make three 
calculations namely: an estimate of the Council’s gross revenue 
expenditure; an estimate of anticipated income; and a calculation of the 
difference between the two. The amount of the budget requirement must be 
sufficient to meet the Council’s budget commitments and ensure a balanced 
budget. The amount of the budget requirement must leave the Council with 
adequate financial reserves. The level of budget requirement must not be 
unreasonable having regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its Council Tax 
payers and non-domestic rate payers.  

Failure to make a lawful Council Tax on or before 11th March could have 
serious financial results for the Council and make the Council vulnerable to 
an Order from the Courts requiring it to make a specified increase in Council 
Tax.

Page 63



6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

6.3

6.3.1

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on 
local authorities to make arrangements for ‘the proper administration of their 
financial affairs'.
 
Information must be published and included in the Council Tax demand 
notice. The Secretary of State has made regulations, which require charging 
authorities to issue demand notices in a form and with contents prescribed 
by these regulations. 

There is also a duty under Section 65 of the 1992 Act to consult persons or 
bodies appearing to be representative of persons subject to non-domestic 
rates in each area about proposals for expenditure (including capital 
expenditure) for each financial year.

To support Brexit preparations, the 2018 Budget confirmed that the 
Government will have invested over £4 billion in preparing for the EU exit 
since 2016. The settlement did not contain any announcement on funding to 
support councils to prepare for Brexit.
According to the LGA: 

 Councils are making preparations for Brexit, without extra funding to 
support this additional work

 The LGA has stated that MHCLG should ensure any new 
responsibilities or added financial pressures for councils arising from 
Brexit are fully funded 

 No such announcement has been made to date by the Treasury 
which increases the risk of a funding gap in this area  

Personnel Implications

The report outlines the proposed timetable for preparing the detailed 
2020/21 budget and this timetable includes the requirement to undertake 
formal workforce consultation with the staff and trade unions. The 
consultation will be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s established 
formal staff consultation processes including meetings of the Joint 
Consultative Negotiation Group (JCNG).

Equalities Impacts 

Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment
Workforce equality impact assessments will be provided with any savings 
proposals and an overall workforce equality impact assessment on the 
budget will be presented to facilitate final decision making.

Equality/Community Impact Assessments
Equality Impact assessments will be provided with any savings proposals 
and an overall equality impact assessment on the budget will be presented 
to facilitate final decision making.

Page 64



Consultation

7.1

7.2

Stakeholders are consulted at appropriate stages throughout the budget 
preparation process. The Council is intending to carry out a Public 
Engagement initiative during Autumn 2019 involving residents, businesses 
and their representative bodies and other stakeholders.

Consultation with the Trade Unions via the Joint Consultative Negotiation 
Group (JCNG) will be undertaken and the outcome of consultations will be 
considered by Cabinet.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Neil Thornton
neil.thornton@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 92545004

Page 65

mailto:neil.thornton@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1

Budget Timetable 2020/21 to 2022/23 – Key Meeting Dates

Date Reporting Timeline

2019

July 

Corporate O&S 23rd July
Cabinet 30th July 
  1. Budget Guidelines and Timetable
  2. Updated Budget Gap
  3. Public Engagement 

September

Informal Cabinet 3rd September
Budget Cabinet 17th September
1. Revenue Budget 2020/21 - 2022/23
2. MTFS 2020/21 - 2024/25

October

Informal Cabinet 1st October
Cabinet 29th October
1. Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2022/23 - Pre consultation
2. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21    } for consultation
3. Savings Programme 2020/21 for consultation

Consultation Starts 30th October (45 days)

November

Informal Cabinet 5th November
Budget Cabinet 12th November
Corporate O&S 19th November 
1. Revenue Budget 2020/21 - 2022/23                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
2. Council Tax and Business Rates Bases 2020/21

December Consultation ends 14th December

2020

January

Special Informal Cabinet TBC January
Cabinet 21st January
1. Revenue Budget Update 2020/21 - 2022/23
2. Capital Programme 2020/21 - 2022/23 post consultation
3. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21 - Post Consultation
4. Savings Programme 2020/21 post consultation

February

Informal Cabinet 4th February
Corporate O&S 11th February
Cabinet 12th February
Council 26th February
1. Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21
2. MTFS 2020/21 - 2024/25
3. Local Government Act 2003
4. Revenue Budget and Council tax 2020/21
5. Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy 2020/21

Page 66



APPENDIX 2

Key Budget Assumptions 2020/21 to 2022/23

 

Area of Budget 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Council Tax
General Increase 2.99% 2.99% 1.99%
Social Care Precept 2.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total Council Tax Increase 4.99% 2.99% 1.99%
LCTSS (Maximum Discount) 85% 85% 85%
Collection Rate 97.5% 97.5% 97.5%

Business Rates
Business Rates Top Up Grant -0.9% -5.8% -10.2%
RBC share of GM Pilot Growth (£m) 2.897 0.000 0.000

Other Resources
Improved Better Care Fund (£m) 10.809 10.809 10.809
Additional Social Care Funding (£m) 0.000 1.500 1.500
Manchester Airport Dividend 3.000 3.000 3.000

Service Budgets
Prices General* 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Pay Award 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Superannuation Contribution Rate 21.4% 22.3% 23.2%
Discretionary Fees & Charges 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Underlying Waste Disposal Levy 1.6% 1.6% 0.0%
Underlying Passenger Transport Levy 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%
Children's Services Pressures (£m) 5.313 3.196 1.904

* Prices – Contractual arrangements and other significant inflation 
issues will be considered on a case by case basis. 

Page 67



APPENDIX 3
Movement in Budget Gap

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Pooled Fund 
Pooled Fund Gap - LA 12.213 17.214 17.214
Pooled Fund Gap - CCG 9.545 9.545 9.545
Total Pooled Fund Gap 21.758 26.759 26.759

Non Pooled
Non Pool Gap - LA 1.956 3.344 4.025
Non Pool Gap - CCG 2.700 2.700 2.700

4.656 6.044 6.725

Children's Services Pressures 5.506 3.278 2.195

Total Budget Gap 31.920 36.081 35.679

Pooled Fund 
Changes to LA Gap Assumptions -8.814 -10.502 -9.612
Changes to CCG Gap assumptions 5.721 9.821 9.821
Pooled Fund Gap Ongoing Savings -3.911 -3.911 -3.911

-7.004 -4.592 -3.702
Non Pooled
Changes to LA Gap Assumptions -2.453 -1.996 -1.074
Changes to CCG Gap assumptions 1.000 3.700 3.700
2020/21 One-offs from 2019/20 process -0.382 0.000 0.000

-1.835 1.704 2.626

Reduction in Children's Services Pressures -0.193 -0.082 -0.291

Revised Gap
Pooled Fund 14.754 22.167 23.057
Non Pooled 2.821 7.748 9.351
Children's Services Pressures 5.313 3.196 1.904
Total Budget Gap 22.888 33.111 34.312

Page 68



APPENDIX 4

REVENUE BUDGET PRINCIPLES

1. Budget Preparation

1.1 Service estimates are required at service level for the years 2020/21 to 
2022/23.  The format of the service submissions, which are to be 
supported by appropriate working papers, will be determined by the 
Chief Financial Officer in consultation with Directors.

1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued 
from time to time on local authority accounting practices and other 
related issues.

1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable.

2. Existing Service Level Budgets

2.1 The budget will initially be prepared on the basis that current resources 
support existing service levels and with the exception of the schools 
budget should be varied to reflect:
(a) The full year effect of previous year’s savings proposals.
(b) Consequences of the approved capital programme.
(c) Adjustments in relation to specific ‘one year only’ allocations and 

other time expired funding.
(d) Other specific Council decisions.

2.2 Most education and related budgets are funded through a specific grant 
namely the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). Separate systems and 
procedures relating to DSG funded budgets operate outside of the 
mainstream budget guidelines.  

2.3 Salary budgets are to be prepared with reference to the 2020/21 budget 
(net of any vacancy factor) adjusted for pay awards, approved service 
changes, savings and other approved variations. The salary budgets can 
only be used to employ staff in established posts on approved grades in 
line with the following conditions:

(a) All changes to the establishment where Council funding is available 
in full must be approved by Cabinet, or within the requirements of the 
Scheme of Delegation.

(b) All changes to the establishment where resource implications arise, 
even if the costs are met entirely from external funding, must also be 
approved by Cabinet, or within the requirements of the Scheme of 
Delegation.

(c) Posts funded from external sources must be established as 
temporary or specific purpose posts unless it can be demonstrated 
that:

Page 69



 the external funding is permanent, or
 specific approval has been given, or
 future years’ costs can be contained within current budgets.

(d) Directors must balance service requirements against the need to 
manage within their budgets when taking decisions to fill vacant posts 
or employ temporary staff.

3.        Discretionary Fees and Charges

3.1 Fees and charges must be reviewed on an annual basis.  A report will 
be submitted to Cabinet in October each year on proposals for the 
following year. 

3.2 Services may bring forward proposals to Cabinet to amend existing fees 
and charges, or to introduce new fees and charges.  

4. External Funding

4.1 Wherever possible external funding should be used to reduce pressure 
on current expenditure, thereby releasing resources for redirection into 
priority areas.

4.2 All legal, human resources, financial and administrative support costs 
required to manage grant conditions and fulfill the role of the accountable 
body should be charged, wherever possible, against the funding regime.

5. Integration of Health & Social Care

5.1 From 2018/19 the Local Authority is required to operate a formal pooled 
budget arrangement for health and social care, as part of the GM Health 
& Social Care Transformation Funding Programme.

5.2 As part of the pooled budget arrangement, the Council and HMRCCG 
will enter into a Section 75 Agreement and a Risk Sharing Agreement.

6. Consultation

6.1 Members will take account of consultations with stakeholders at 
appropriate stages throughout the budget preparation process. This will 
include Townships, Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Trade 
Unions, partners and the public.

Page 70



APPENDIX 5 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME PRINCIPLES

1. Capital Programme Preparation

1.1 The Capital Programme is compiled at project level for the years 2020/21 
to 2022/23.  The format of the capital schemes submissions, which are 
to be supported by appropriate working papers, will be determined by 
the Chief Financial Officer in consultation with Directors. 

1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued 
from time to time on local authority accounting practices and other 
related issues. The profiling of capital expenditure into the correct 
financial years and over the project’s development will be key to ensure 
the amount of re phasing of capital resources from one year to another 
is kept to a minimum, and to reduce the amount of revenue budget 
required to finance the project.

1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable.

2. Principles for the Capital Programme

2.1 Capital Resources are to be used as follows:

 Decisions on the use of Capital Receipts will be considered as part 
of the budget process.

 Un-ring fenced and ring fenced externally funded grants are 
considered on a case by case basis.

 Any new borrowing is considered with the implications for the 
revenue budget position.

2.2 Capital projects for approval are:

 Considered by Portfolio Holders for the service who agree to the 
services requests for funding.

 Completed to ensure all implications of the Capital Scheme are 
included in the ‘Business Cases’.

 Inclusive of Multi Year Schemes with spend profiled accurately 
across the financial years.

Page 71



1 | P a g e

EMPLOYMENT EQUALITY 

REPORT 2018/19

Page 72

Agenda Item 9



2 | P a g e

CONTENTS

Page
Introduction 3

Key Workforce data

- Race

- Disability

- Gender

- Age

- Other protected characteristic groups

4

5

6

7

7

Equality Monitoring Data

- Table 1:  Rochdale Borough Council Workforce

- Table 2:  Recruitment

- Table 3:  Starters and leavers

- Table 4:  Maternity data

- Table 5:  Discipline and Grievance

8

9 – 10

11

11

11

Page 73



3 | P a g e

INTRODUCTION 

Rochdale Borough Council is seeking to ensure the composition of its workforce reflects the diverse local 
community, and to offer equality of opportunity in employment. The Council is compliant with the 
requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty to publish equality information of the workforce and this 
report illustrates our progress.  

This report provides information for the financial year ending on 31st March 2019 and aims to demonstrate 
the progress and achievements in increasing the composition over time to show how the workforce 
diversity has changed, and how this compares to the demographic of Rochdale Borough (based on the 
2011 census data).  All workforce data reported is based on figures excluding schools.

The Council has established an Equality and Diversity Steering Group to support its commitment to 
integrate equality, diversity and inclusion throughout its services.  A key component of the Strategy will be 
equality, diversity and inclusion in employment which will look to address those areas where the Council is 
under-represented when compared to the local population.

Page 74



4 | P a g e

RACE

At the end of March 2019, 11.09% of Council employees were from a Black or Minority Ethnic (BME) 
background and 85.70% of the workforce were White British.  The rate for employees from a BME 
background has been steadily increasing year on year over the last 7 years, with 8.38% of staff being from 
a BME background in 2013, to 11.09% by March 2019.  Only 3.21% of the Council workforce had not 
declared their ethnic origin.  

3%

11%

86%

Ethnicity unknown
Ethnic minority 
staff numbers
White British

Race as at 31.03.19

8.38% 8.64%
9.86%

10.54% 10.15%
10.91% 11.09%

31.03.13 31.03.14 31.03.15 31.03.16 31.03.17 31.03.18 31.03.19
0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

% Ethnic minority staff

The table below provides details of the ethnicity profiles of the local population of Rochdale, compared to 
the workforce.

Rochdale workforceEthnic 
Origin Local 

Population
March 
2019 Representative of local population

BME 18.2% 11.09% Under represented in workforce
White 
British 81.8% 85.70% Over represented in workforce

Unknown 0.00% 3.21% Over represented in workforce

Page 75



5 | P a g e

DISABILITY

At the end of March 2019, 4.18% of Council employees had declared a disability, and 90.79% had declared 
that they did not have a disability.  The number of employees who have declared a disability has also 
increased from 3.61% in 2013 to 4.18% in 2019.  There were only 4.18% of the workforce for whom the 
disability status was unknown. 

The 2011 census found that 21% of the populate of Rochdale Borough described themselves as having a 
disability, or a long term life limiting illness, of which 11.3% are of working age adults, therefore we are 
considerably under-represented in terms of disabled employees.  

4% 5%

91%

Disability declared
Disability unknown
Not disabled

Disability as at 31.03.19

3.61% 3.61% 3.81%
4.25%

4.68%
4.27% 4.18%

31.03.13 31.03.14 31.03.15 31.03.16 31.03.17 31.03.18 31.03.19
0.00%
0.50%
1.00%
1.50%
2.00%
2.50%
3.00%
3.50%
4.00%
4.50%
5.00%

% Disabled staff

Page 76



6 | P a g e

GENDER 

At the end of March 2019, the composition of the Council workforce was 68.34% female and 31.66% were 
male employees.  This has remained static over the last 7 years. The Borough’s gender make up is 51% 
female, therefore we are over-represented in terms of female employees. 

68%

32%

Women
Male

Gender as at 31.03.19

69%
70% 70% 70% 70% 70%

68%

31.03.13 31.03.14 31.03.15 31.03.16 31.03.17 31.03.18 31.03.19
60%
61%
62%
63%
64%
65%
66%
67%
68%
69%
70%

% Female employees

Page 77



7 | P a g e

AGE 

The composition of the workforce in terms of age reflects an ageing workforce, as a total of 58.31% of the 
workforce are over the age of 45, 36.38% are within the age band 25 to 44 years and there are only 5.31% 
of the workforce who are under the age of 25.  The smallest groups within the workforce are under 20 year 
olds (1.38%) and 65 years plus (2.14%).  

2%

4%
6%

30%

47%

9%

2%

Under 20

20 - 24

25 - 29

30 - 44

45 - 59

60 - 64

65 & over

Age Profile as at 31.03.19

The table below provides a comparison of the local working age population of Rochdale to the workforce.

Rochdale workforce
Age Groups Local 

Population
March 
2019 Representative of local population

Under 20 9.3% 1.38% Under represented in workforce

20 to 24 9.0% 3.93% Under represented in workforce

25 to 29 9.1% 6.22% Under represented in workforce

30 to 44 27.6% 30.16% Over represented in workforce

45 to 59 26.4% 46.86% Over represented in workforce

60 to 64 8.0% 9.31% Over represented in workforce

65 and over 10.7% 2.14% Under represented in workforce

OTHER PROTECTED CHARACTERISTIC GROUPS

The Council does not currently maintain records of staff who have declared the following status and it is 
currently not a mandatory requirement for employees to declare;

 Gender Identity 
 Sexual Orientation 
 Religion or Belief
 Caring responsibilities
 Marriage and Civil Partnership

Page 78



8 | P a g e

EQUALITY MONITORING DATA 

The following data has been taken from the Council’s HR systems as at the end of March 2019. It is split 
into the following tables:-

Table 1 Rochdale Council Workforce  

Table 2 Recruitment 

Table 3 Starters and Leavers

Table 4 Maternity data

Table 5 Grievance and Disciplinary 

Table 1:  RBC Council Workforce  

1. Ethnicity
 FTE Headcount Ethnic origin known % Ethnic minority staff Number of top earners % Ethnic Minority top 

earners
All employees 2291 2748 96.79% 11.09% 137 0.72%

2. Disability
Disability status 

known
% Disabled staff Number of top 

earners
% of disabled top earners

All employees 2604 4.18% 137 0.72%

3. Gender
Headcount % Women Number of top 

earners
% of women top earners

All employees 2748 68.34% 137 62.77%

4. Age Profile - All staff
Under 20 20 - 24 25 - 29 30 - 44 45 - 59 60 - 64 Over 65

All employees 1.38% 3.93% 6.22% 30.16% 46.86% 9.31% 2.14%

5. Age Profile by Gender
Under 20 20 - 24 25 - 29 30 - 44 45 - 59 60 - 64 Over 65 Total

Male 0.54% 1.27% 2.00% 8.73% 15.34% 2.98% 0.80% 31.66%
Female 0.83% 2.65% 4.22% 21.43% 31.54% 6.33% 1.34% 68.34%

6. Age Profile by Ethnicity
Under 20 20 - 24 25 - 29 30 - 44 45 - 59 60 - 64 Over 65 Total

BME 0.18% 0.83% 1.05% 5.19% 2.87% 0.54% 0.07% 10.73%
White British 1.20% 3.09% 5.16% 25.00% 40.78% 8.77% 2.07% 86.07%
Unknown 0.07% 0.14% 0.43% 0.76% 1.45% 0.21% 0.14% 3.20%

7. Age Profile by Disability
Under 20 20 - 24 25 - 29 30 - 44 45 - 59 60 - 64 Over 65 Total

Disabled 0.03% 0.07% 0.14% 0.87% 2.35% 0.40% 0.10% 3.96%
Non-disabled 1.34% 3.85% 6.07% 29.29% 39.31% 8.91% 2.03% 90.80%
Not declared 0.10% 0.32% 0.36% 1.92% 2.08% 0.36% 0.10% 5.24%

8. Ethnicity by Employee status
Ethnic origin 

known
% Ethnic minority 

staff
Number of top 

earners
% Ethnic Minority top earners

Part time 1007 4.39% 14 0.00%
Full time 1653 6.67% 123 0.72%

9. Disability by Employee status
Disability status 

known
% Disabled staff Number of top 

earners
% of disabled top earners

Part time 989 1.34% 14 0.00%
Full time 1615 2.84% 123 0.72%

10. Gender by Employee status
Headcount % Women Number of top 

earners
% of women top earners

Part time 1038 32.31% 14 9.48%
Full time 1710 36.02% 123 53.28%

11. Age Profile by Employee status
Under 20 20 - 24 25 - 29 30 - 44 45 - 59 60 - 64 Over 65 Total

Part time 0.00% 0.87% 1.35% 10.55% 18.11% 5.16% 1.74% 37.78%
Full time 1.38% 3.05% 4.87% 19.61% 28.77% 4.14% 0.40% 62.22%

Page 79



9 | P a g e

Table 2: Recruitment
 
Success Rate of Applicants 01.4.2018 – 31.3.2019 - Data relating to Gender, Age, Disability and 
Ethnic Origin

Applications are received and processed for Council jobs regardless of whether an applicant declares their 
personal information relating to gender, age, disability or ethnic origin and this is therefore not compulsory 
information. The following tables do however report where applicants have provided this information.  
Where an applicant has not declared this has been recorded as blank or ‘prefers not to state’. The Council 
received a total of 1006 job applications in the period 2018/19.

Gender

As shown in the table below, of the total number of 1006 job applications received, there were a higher 
proportion of females who applied for jobs, in that 70.71% were from females and 29% from males.  We do 
not have gender data for 0.29% of the applicants as they preferred not to declare their gender.

Of those who applied for jobs the number of males and females who were successfully appointed 
comprised of 59.48% female and 40.52% males.  

Gender
Number of 

applications 
received

%

Number of 
applicants 

shortlisted for 
interview

% Appointed staff %

Female 713 70.71% 276 74.28% 185 59.48%
Male 290 29.00% 94 25.43% 126 40.52%
Prefer not to say 3 0.29% 1 0.29% 0 0.00%
Grand Total 1006 100.00% 371 100.00% 311 100%

Gender

Age 

Of the 1006 job applications received, 34.29% of applicants had not declared information relating to their 
age.  Of the applicants who had provided this information, the majority number of applicants (29.08%) were 
aged between 25-39. 23.06% were aged 40-64 and 13.32% were aged 16-25 with 0.30% aged between 
65-74.  The data shows that of the applicants who were successfully appointed to posts in the Council the 
majority were in the 26-39 and 46-64 age groups.
  

Age band
Number of 

applications 
received

%

Number of 
applicants 

shortlisted for 
interview

% Appointed staff %

16-25 134 13.32% 45 12.10% 57 18.32%
26-39 292 29.02% 112 30.40% 128 41.17%
40-64 232 23.06% 98 25.69% 124 39.87%
65-74 3 0.30% 2 0.58% 2 0.64%
Prefer not to say 345 34.29% 114 31.23% 0 0.00%
Grand Total 1006 100.00% 371 100.00% 311 100%

Age

Page 80



10 | P a g e

Disability 

The number of applicants declaring a disability was 2.98% and 90.27% stated they were not disabled. The 
proportion of disabled applicants who were offered a position was consistent at 2.25%. 

Disabled?
Number of 

applications 
received

%

Number of 
applicants 

shortlisted for 
interview

% Appointed staff %

No 908 90.27% 337 90.87% 284 91.31%
Prefer not to specify 68 6.75% 21 5.64% 20 6.43%
Yes 30 2.98% 13 3.49% 7 2.25%
Grand Total 1006 100.00% 371 100.00% 311 100%

Disabled?

Race

The highest proportion of applicants was from a White British background at 68.63 %. The highest 
proportion of appointees was from a White British background at 81.07%. There were 14.97% Asian or 
Asian British applicants of whom 9.32% were appointed and 4.59% Black or Black British applicants of 
whom 2.56% were appointed.

Ethnicity
Number of 

applications 
received

%

Number of 
applicants 

shortlisted for 
interview

% Appointed staff %

Asian or Asian British - Bangladeshi 32 3.16% 6 1.65% 2 0.64%
Asian or Asian British - Indian 11 1.08% 6 1.52% 0 0.00%
Asian or Asian British - Pakistani 110 10.73% 38 9.79% 27 8.68%
Black or Black British - Black African 33 3.22% 6 1.58% 2 0.64%
Black or Black British - Black British 1 0.08% 1 0.23% 6 1.92%

Black or Black British - Black Caribbean 14 1.29% 5 1.43% 0 0.00%
Mixed Race - Any other Mixed Race 
background 9 0.84% 6 1.49% 1 0.32%

Mixed Race - White and Black Caribbean 11 1.08% 5 1.33% 4 1.28%
Prefer not to say 26 2.58% 9 2.39% 9 2.89%
White - Any other White background 6 0.58% 3 0.78% 3 0.96%
White - British 685 68.63% 270 73.46% 252 81.07%
White - Other White European 18 1.84% 4 1.11% 0 0.00%
White - Irish 6 0.59% 1 0.29% 1 0.32%
Mixed Race - White and Pakistani 3 0.31% 1 0.29% 0 0.00%
Asian or Asian British - Kashmiri 15 1.46% 4 1.07% 0 0.00%
Mixed Race - White and Indian 9 0.92% 1 0.29% 0 0.00%

Mixed Race - White and Black African 5 0.46% 1 0.21% 0 0.00%

Mixed Race - White and Bangladeshi 3 0.29% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Other ethnic background 9 0.87% 4 1.11% 4 1.28%
Grand Total 1006 100% 371 100% 311 100%

Race

Page 81



11 | P a g e

Table 3:  Starters and Leavers

Equality monitoring data relating to new starters (appointed staff) is included within the section Table 2: 
Recruitment.  With regards to leavers, there were 290 employees who exited the organisation between 1st 
April 2018 – 31st March 2019.  The following information has been gathered in relation to leavers:

 13.47% were from a black or minority ethnic background
 3.97% had declared a disability
 72% were women
 The age bands of leavers were as follows:

o 16 – 24: 5.5%
o 25 – 34: 12.06%
o 35 – 44: 22.06%
o 45 – 54: 17.24%
o 55 – 64: 31.77%
o Over 65: 11.37%

The table below details of the reasons provided for leaving.

Reason for leaving % of leavers

Died in Service 0.34%
Dismissal 5.17%
End of Temporary Contract 3.44%
Resignation 61.08%
Retirement - Ill Health 1.72%
Transfer 0.34%
Tupe Transfer Out 3.44%
Redundancy - No pension 0.34%
Redundancy - With pension 5.86%
Retirement 18.27%

Table 4:  Maternity data

During the financial year 2018/19, 2.2% of Council employees took a period of maternity leave.  This is 
slightly less than last year, when 2.6% took maternity leave.

Table 5:  Breakdown of Employee Relations cases by Gender, Ethnicity and Disability for 2018/19

For the reporting period of 1st April 2018 – 31st March 2019, there were 30 Grievance and Disciplinary 
cases.  Of these 33% were female, 10% were of a BME background, 7% had a disability and 27% were 
classed as part time workers.

Page 82



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 23 July 2019
Portfolio Corporate & Resources
Report Author Rosemary Barker
Public/Private Document Public

Health Related Absence Reporting

Executive Summary

1. The report provides third quarter, fourth quarter and year end health related 
absence figures to Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

Overall the number of days lost per FTE is 9.86 for 2018/19 with the main 
reasons for absence being stress/depression and operative/post operative.  
The directorates with the highest number of days lost per FTE are Adult Care, 
Children’s Services and Neighbourhoods.

Looking at the latter part of 2018/19, the third quarter health related absence 
figures (October - December 2018) indicate that 2.26 days per FTE were lost, 
with an increase in the fourth quarter (January – March 2019) to 2.47 days per 
FTE lost.

When compared to the same period in 2017/18 the trend is the same in that 
Q4 FTE days lost increases slightly compared to Q3 FTE days lost.  However 
the percentage increase for 2018/19 between the quarters is higher than that 
for 2017/18.  

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee notes the Council’s position for 2018/19.

Reason for Recommendation

3. To provide Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
an update of the health related absence data.

Key Points for Consideration

4. The third quarter health related absence figures indicate that the overall level for 
the Authority was 2.26 days per FTE (a reduction of 0.10 from the same quarter in 
2017/18).  63% were due to long term sickness absence with the remaining 37% 

Page 83

Agenda Item 10



due to short term absence.  When compared to the same period in 2017/18, the 
percentage split is similar with long term absence taking 66% of the number of FTE 
days lost and 34% for short term absence.

The fourth quarter figures show a slight increase compared to the same period last 
year in that 2.74 days were lost per FTE, an increase of 0.03 days (2.71 days lost).

Compared to the same period last year, long term absence has reduced in the 
fourth quarter with 1.40 days (51%) of the total days lost (a reduction of 0.11 days 
compared to 2017/18). 1.33 days (49%) were lost to short term absence (an 
increase of 0.13 days compared to 2017/18).

Table 1 below shows the third and fourth quarter absence data per Directorate.

Quarter 3 absence data 

(September – December 2018)

Quarter 4 absence data

(January – March 2019)

Directorate Days 
lost to 
long 
term 

absence

Days lost 
to short 

term 
absence

Total 
Days lost

Days 
lost 
per 
FTE

Days 
lost to 
long 
term 

absence

Days 
lost to 
short 
term 

absence

Total 
Days 
lost

Days 
lost 
per 
FTE

Executive 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Adult Care 
Service 378.22 265.53 643.75 1.92 190.89 682.68 873.57 2.59

Public Health 0.00 3.00 3.00 0.17 0.00 4.41 4.41 0.25
Children’s 
Services 986.71 542.25 1528.96 2.30 911.72 860.17 1771.89 2.67

Economy 87.81 87.88 175.69 2.07 125.92 36.87 162.79 1.91
Neighbourhoods 1573.12 838.25 2411.37 2.66 1687.29 1142.18 2829.47 3.09
Resources 193.98 161.69 355.67 1.43 270.00 305.97 575.97 2.31
Total 3219.84 1898.60 5118.44 2.26 3185.82 3032.28 6218.10 2.74

Schools 4439.03 2601.96 7040.99 2.05 4794.37 3835.73 8630.10 2.53

Adult Care has seen an increase in short term absence.  One of the main reasons is 
due to cold/flu, despite it being a milder winter this year.   Stress/depression has 
also increased in short term absence.  It should be noted that this is not related to 
work as work related stress is recorded under a separate category. 

Neighbourhoods has also seen an increase since quarter 3, in both long term and 
short term absence, with Customers & ICT, Environmental Management, Facilities 
Management and Capital Projects and Highways showing the most significant 
increases.  However previous year’s data shows that absence is generally slightly 
higher in quarter 4, and days lost for quarter 4 this year, compared to quarter 4 last 
year for this Directorate is similar.  

There were a number of other smaller services (Governance, Legal, Finance, 
Practice Improvement ) whose absence increased in the 4th quarter, however due 
to the relatively small number of FTE’s, this can have a more significant effect on 
the days lost per FTE compared to larger services, but it’s not to suggest any 

Page 84



particular cause for concern.

The year-end absence figures indicate that the overall level of days lost for the 
Council was 9.86 days per FTE, compared to 9.22 days per FTE for 2017/18.  Of 
the 9.86 days lost per FTE, 6.20 (63%) were lost to long term absence, and 3.66 
(37%) to short term absence.  This is similar to the breakdown of days lost in 
2017/18 where 5.90 (64%) were lost to long term absence, and 3.32 (36%) were 
lost to short term absence.

Table 2 below shows the year-end absence data per Directorate, and the year-end 
position compared to each Directorate’s target.

Year-end absence data (April 2018 – March 2019)

Directorate
Days lost to 

long term 
absence

Days lost to 
short term 
absence

Total Days 
lost

Days lost 
per FTE

2018/19 
Target

Executive 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00
Adult Care Service 1926.79 1601.08 3527.87 10.47 9.00
Public Health 0.00 17.53 17.53 0.97 5.00
Children’s Services 4627.84 2301.96 6929.80 10.44 7.90
Economy 441.38 199.34 640.72 7.51 5.00
Neighbourhoods 6073.39 3394.48 9467.87 10.33 8.00
Resources 1018.28 799.49 1817.77 7.30 6.13
Total 14087.68 8313.88 22401.56 9.86 8.45

Schools 18224.10 10682.88 28906.98 8.49 7.00

Compared to last year, absence in Children’s Services has increased, particularly 
within Practice Improvement for both short term and long term absence.

Economic Affairs (within the Economy Directorate) has also shown a significant 
increase in long term absence.  Whilst there have been a small number of long term 
absences, this will have impacted overall due to the relatively small size of the 
service.

Neighbourhoods Directorate has shown an increase in days lost, particularly in 
Community Services and Environmental Management.  Public Protection, which 
were previously within the Public Health Directorate transferred to Neighbourhoods 
in 2018/19 and have therefore contributed to the increase in the Directorate’s 
figures.   

It should be noted that 73% of individuals working in schools are employed by the 
Council, and the remaining 27% are employed by the Governing Body.  

Based upon an analysis of the data for 2018/19, long term absence accounted for 
the majority of absences.  Stress/depression, was the top reason for long term 
absence, with operative/post operative and back/neck problems being the other 2 
top reasons. These are the same top reasons for long term absence in 2017/18.

Page 85



Short term absence accounted for 37% of absences, with colds/flu/viral infections 
being the top reason for short term absence, and gastric/stomach/kidney/ liver and 
stress/depression accounting for the other 2 top reasons.  These were the same top 
3 reasons for short term absence in period in 2017/18.

Although stress/depression is in the top two reasons for short and long term 
absence, it should be noted that only 3.3% (748.20 days in total) relate to work 
related stress.

At the last O&S Committee meeting, Members asked for a 3 year trend by 
Directorate of the days lost.  Table 3 below provides this information.

Please note that Public Protection transferred from Public Health to Neighbourhoods 
with effect from 1st October 2018, and therefore whilst this has had a positive effect 
on the final out-turn for Public Health for 2018/19, it has impacted on the final out-
turn for Neighbourhoods.

Below is the sickness absence information for the GM Authorities with Rochdale 
Council appearing fourth out of the ten councils:

GM Council No of days lost per FTE
Tameside 6.34
Oldham 9.61
Stockport 9.85
Rochdale 9.86
Trafford 10.07
Wigan 10.35
Bolton 11.40
Salford 11.50
Bury 11.84
Manchester 12.29

This report notes that the year-end absence figures for the Council has increased 
slightly compared to last year.  Although this is disappointing, each Directorate is 
committed to continue to monitor and manage absence to meet the challenging 

Page 86



targets set on an annual basis.  In addition, the HR Service continues to provide 
strategic advice and support to Services in the development of action plans targeted 
at the needs of each Directorate which includes attendance at Absence clinics.  In 
addition monthly support is provided to managers who have staff off on long term 
sick or persist short term absences.  The HR Service also continues to provide 
training (including e-learning and face to face training) and support to managers 
across the Authority on effective absence management, whilst also providing 
support to staff.

The Corporate and Directorate targets are based on continuous improvements from 
previous years, the known factors and issues arising within each Directorate.  The 
targets for 2019/20 are to be considered and agreed by Leadership and will be 
included in the next report.

Alternatives Considered

As this is part of the Council’s performance management process, there are no 
other alternatives. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The number of working days lost to absence for the period 2018/19 is a total 
of 22,401 days.  The cost of working days lost can be calculated using an 
average salary of £103 per day and equates to £2,307,303.  Any financial 
implications arising from sickness absence are reported by Directorates 
through the Revenue Finance Updates reports presented to Cabinet on a 
quarterly basis. 

Risk and Policy Implications

6. Significant health related absence will impact on the Council`s capacity to 
deliver its corporate objectives, therefore effective management of health 
related absence is a whole organisation responsibility.

Consultation

7. In compiling this report, Directors and Assistant Directors have been advised 
on performance relating to their service areas. Trade Unions have also been 
provided with information.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers 
to this report.

N/A

For Further Information Contact: Rosemary Barker
rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 926245

Page 87

mailto:rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk


Report to Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 23rd July 2019
Portfolio Health and Wellbeing
Report Author Rosemary Barker
Public/Private Document Public

Executive Summary

1. Following a workforce As a result of a workforce wellbeing survey in July 2018, a paper to 
Leadership Team in December 2018 (Appendix.1), and a number of 
stakeholder workshops and meetings, a wide range of information has been 
captured specific to our workforce wellbeing needs and assets. The purpose 
of this report is to propose recommendations for building a workforce 
wellbeing framework and action plan for the organisation, based on the 
information collated and co-produced with our staff.

Recommendation
2. It is recommended that Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee members 

note workforce wellbeing as a priority for the organisation and support the 
proposed next steps.

Reason for Recommendation

3. Improving employee wellbeing has well documented cost savings relating to 
sickness absence and presentism rates. At a time when budgets are being 
reduced, and the workforce is ageing, improvements in workforce wellbeing 
have corporate and individual benefits, strengthening employee engagement 
and satisfaction and helping to achieve the organisations objectives.

Key Points for Consideration

4. In July 2018 671 employees, just under 25% of the overall workforce, 
completed the RBC Employee Wellbeing Survey. Responses came from 
across a wide range of services. The responses were scrutinised and shared 
at a stakeholder workshop in May 2019, attended by 55 stakeholders including 
Elected Members, Trade Union representatives and employees representing 
various RBC services and the CCG. At the workshop views were captured 
around priorities and key themes were further explored including Leadership 
and Communication, Working environment, Health and Safety, Mental Health 
and Wellbeing, Smoking and alcohol related ill health, 
Physical Activity and Healthy Eating. These themes align to the National 
Workplace Wellbeing Charter topics.  The key issues and priorities were then 
discussed and shared with the Joint Leadership Network ahead of a session 
with our 27 self-nominated Wellbeing Champions (Appendix 2) who were 

Page 88

Agenda Item 11



given the opportunity to prioritise actions for the key themes.  
The final three overarching themes that have been recognised as significant, 
and incorporate all the previous 6 themes are; Culture and Working 
Environment, Positive People and Relationships, and Our Healthy Habits. 
A draft workplace wellbeing framework (Appendix 3) has been produced 
summarising our 9 priorities for the coming year, as highlighted by the 
wellbeing champions, with 3 priorities sitting under each theme. Once agreed 
the 9 priorities in the workplace wellbeing framework will be developed into an 
implementation plan, embedding the new Values of Passion, Pride, Pioneering 
and Open. This process will be overseen by a workplace wellbeing steering 
group, chaired by the Director of Public Health and Wellbeing.

Costs and Budget Summary

5 The majority of the actions to address workplace wellness are cost neutral but 
it has been agreed that the Healthy Workplaces programme manager, based 
in Link4Life, dedicates 2 days a week of her capacity to drive the work forward 
with support from colleagues in workforce development, communications, 
public health and human resources.

Risk and Policy Implications

6 Significant health related absence will impact on the Council`s capacity to 
deliver its corporate objectives, therefore effective management of health 
related absence is a whole organisation responsibility.  

Consultation

7    Informatino Information has been collated from mini Health assessments, sickness absence 
data, an employee wellbeing survey and consultation has ensued with the joint 
leadership network, and a group of Wellbeing Champions from throughout the 
organisation. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. 

Leadership Report 
Dec 18 Final.docx

Wellbeing Champion 
Role Description.docx

RBC Workplace 
Wellbeing Priorities v2.pptx

For Further Information Contact: Dianne Gardner, Public Health Specialist
Dianne.gardner@rochdale.gov.uk
Rosemary Barker, Head of Workforce 
and OD 
rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 89



Agenda Item

Report to Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 23 July 2019
Portfolio Neighbourhoods, 

Community & Culture
Report Author Valery White
Public/Private Document Public Document

Township Funds Review

1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report reviews the Townships revenue and capital expenditure during 
2018/19.

1.2 Members are asked to note the information relating to the allocation, spend 
and carry forward of Township Funds during 2018/19.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and carry forward of Township 
revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2018/19. (Appendix 1).

2.2 Members note the evaluations received to date for some of the projects 
funded (Appendix 2).

2.3 Members note the terms and conditions for Township revenue and capital 
funds for 2019/20 (Appendix 3).

2.4 Members note the delegation arrangements for Township Funds 2019/20 as 
detailed at 4.4 of this report.

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Management of the Township Funds is delegated to the Township Devolved 
Sub-Committees.

3.2 Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the Borough’s 
communities and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

3.3 To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Township Funds to 
ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

Page 90

Agenda Item 12



4. Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Township revenue 
and capital funds 2018/19 (Appendix 1). 

4.2 An annual review of Township revenue and capital funds has been undertaken 
by the Township Committees in June this year. Findings have influenced 
funding streams, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration 
procedures for grant applications for 2019/20.

4.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Townships relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of 
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their 
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed 
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Township 
Funds.  Grants awarded and projects funded have made a difference to the 
local community with improvements to local facilities, increased social 
interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  All successful 
applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that they complete a 
project evaluation form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of 
evaluation information received on projects which have been funded as 
detailed in Appendix 2.

4.4 The delegation arrangements for Township Funds 2019/20 are as follows:

Heywood
a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 

Vice Chair of Heywood Township Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under.

b) Township Officer will refer projects over £5,000 to the next Heywood 
Township Delegated Sub-Committee for decision.

c) Township Office will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Ward 
Councillors to seek their support. Decisions on Ward Funds are delegated 
to the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with the Ward 
Councillors with the decision based on majority agreement. Any disputes 
concerning allocation of Ward Funds will be referred to the next Heywood 
Township Delegated Sub-Committee.

d) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Heywood 
Township Delegated Sub-Committee to ensure all Members are aware of 
projects that have been approved.

Middleton
a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 

Vice Chair of Middleton Township Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under. Any disputes 
concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub-Committee for 
decision.

b) Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub-Committee for 
decision.

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Middleton 
Page 91



Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub-Committee to 
ensure all Members are aware of projects that have been approved.

Pennines
a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 

Vice Chair of Pennines Township Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under. Any disputes 
concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Pennines 
Township Delegated & Funding Sub-Committee for decision.

b) Pennines Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub-Committee for decision.

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Pennines 
Township Delegated & Funding Sub-Committee to ensure all Members 
are aware of projects that have been approved.

Rochdale North
a) Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, 

Vice Chair and Opposition Spokespersons of Rochdale Township Action 
& Resources Delegated Sub Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £3,000 and under.  Any disputes 
concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee for decision.

b) Rochdale Township Office will refer projects over £3,000 to the next 
Rochdale Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee for 
decision.

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee to ensure all 
Members are aware of projects that have been approved.

Rochdale South
a) Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, 

Vice Chair and Opposition Spokespersons of Rochdale Township Action 
& Resources Delegated Sub Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under.  Any disputes 
concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee for decision.

b) Rochdale Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Rochdale Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee for 
decision.

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee to ensure all 
Members are aware of projects that have been approved.

4.5 Alternatives Considered

In considering the reports at the Township Committees, Members decided 
whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt 
the terms and conditions.

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Township Committees receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor 
the use of the Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

Page 92



5.2 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports are presented to Township committees.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 Unspent or carried forward funds risk a reduction in the budget – the Capital 
budget was reduced by £140k during 2018/19, pro-rata across the Townships. 
There are a number of measures that could mitigate this risk:

a) Townships consulted prior to the Council Calendar being approved.   
Township Officers could then ensure that meetings are scheduled to allow 
for Members to make decisions in a timely manner, so funds can be 
paid/transferred to services prior to financial year-end.

b) Increase decisions being made under delegated arrangements and  
reduce the number of deferred decisions at committees.

c) Members should not allocate any funds, particularly Ward and Members 
Funds, to projects that have not been properly assessed as viable, and 
formally costed.

d) Services could be more responsive to requests for site visits, the 
submitting of project briefs and progressing commissioned schemes.

6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  Funds are 
allocated across the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities.

6.4 Rochdale North Township Committee has agreed a limit of £3,000 for 
delegated decisions, whilst all other Townships have agreed to delegate 
decisions up to £5,000. This may be open to challenge if it is found that 
Rochdale North has, without justification, departed from the consistency of 
decision making which may be deemed as lacking in fairness.

7. Consultation

7.1 None

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Valery White
Valery.white@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924858

Page 93



OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE           £  % Actual 
Spend 

 % Actual + 
Committed 

Budget b/f 2017/18 17,583         64.61% 88.17%
Base Budget 2018/19 58,000         
Income/Adjustments 2018/19 - 
Budget Available 2018/19 75,583         
Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 48,836         
Commitments 17,809         
Total Actual + Commitments 66,644         
Budget Remaining 2018/19 8,939           

Forecast Outturn 75,583         
Potential under/(over)spend - 

Fund
 Balance b/f 

2017/18
£ 

 Base 
Budget 
2018/19

£ 

 Income/
Adjustments

2018/19 

 Revised 
Budget 
2018/19 

 Actuals to 
Period
         £ 

 Committed 
to Period

     £ 

 Virements 
within 

Township 
Funds 

£ 

 Virements to 
Services 

£ 

 Total to 
Period 

£ 

 Budget 
remaining 

2018/19 
£ 

Projects Fund 4,554           42,000         - 46,554         27,004          9,150             - 9,295             45,449    1,105          
Events Fund - 8,000           - 8,000           7,521            - - - 7,521      480              
North Ward Fund 4,874           3,000           - 7,874           2,085            3,452             - - 5,537      2,337          
West Ward Fund 1,725           3,000           - 4,725           1,984            700 - - 2,684      2,041          
Hopwood Hall Ward 6,430           2,000           - 8,430           947 4,506             - - 5,453      2,977          
Total 17,583         58,000         - 75,583         39,541          17,809           - 9,295             66,644    8,939          

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

APPENDIX 1

P
age 94



OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2017/18 44,490       72.98% 98.19%

Base Budget 2018/19 53,600       

Income/Adjustments 2018/19 (18,760)      

Total budget for 2018/19 79,330       

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 57,893       

Commitments 20,000       

Total Actual + Commitments 77,893       

Budget Remaining 2018/19 1,437         

Forecast Outturn 79,330       

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2017/18

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments 

2018/19  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19

  £ 

Capital Fund 44,490       53,600       (18,760) 79,330        20,000          3,250          54,643       - 77,893     1,437 

Total 44,490       53,600       (18,760) 79,330        20,000          3,250          54,643       - 77,893     1,437 

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

APPENDIX 1

P
age 95



OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2017/18 48,054 65.82% 74.82%

Base Budget 2018/19 92,800 

Income/Adjustments 2018/19 - 

Total budget for 2018/19 140,854 

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 92,712 

Commitments 12,677 

Total Actual + Commitments 105,390 

Budget Remaining 2018/19 35,464 

Forecast Outturn 140,854 

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2017/18

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19

  £ 

North Ward 3,976 5,000      - 8,976         111 874 - 1,220          2,205       6,771 

South Ward 11,259 5,000      - 16,259       - 2,200        - 1,220          3,420       12,839 

East Ward 8,248 5,000      - 13,248       3,500 762 - 2,736          6,998       6,250 

West Ward 1,000 5,000      - 6,000         3,500 (971)          - 2,295          4,824       1,176 

Hopwood Hall Ward 3,028 1,700      - 4,728         - - - 1,220          1,220       3,508 

Events 7,430 35,000    - 42,430       2,413 37,587      - - 40,000     2,430 

Projects 13,113 36,100    - 49,213       3,154 40,870      - 2,700          46,723     2,490 

Total 48,054 92,800    - 140,854     12,677         81,321      - 11,391        105,390   35,464 

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

APPENDIX 1

P
age 96



OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2017/18 141,558    31.87% 39.54%

Base Budget 2018/19 86,800      

Income/Adjustments 2018/19 (30,380)     

Total budget for 2018/19 197,978    

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 63,090      

Commitments 15,181      

Total Actual + Commitments 78,271      

Budget Remaining 2018/19 119,707    

Forecast Outturn 197,978    

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2017/18

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19

  £ 

North Ward 2,020        4,500       - 6,520 - 266 - 4,000 4,266 2,254 

South Ward 13,835      4,500       - 18,335 - - - 5,708 5,708 12,627        

East Ward 19,776      4,500       - 24,276 - - - 7,100 7,100 17,176        

West Ward 14,250      4,500       - 18,750 - - - 10,013 10,013         8,737 

Hopwood Hall Ward 5,050        1,500       - 6,550 - 950 - - 950 5,600 

Armed Forces 10,937      - - 10,937 10,937         - - - 10,937         - 

Projects 75,690      67,300     (30,380) 112,610 4,244 (8,449)      - 43,502 39,297         73,313        

Total 141,558    86,800     (30,380) 197,978 15,181         (7,233)      - 70,323 78,271         119,707      

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

APPENDIX 1

P
age 97



OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f (2017/18) 64,197       64.36% 87.35%

Base Budget 2018/19 81,500       

Income from other funds/services 2018/19 - 

Budget Available 2018/19 145,697     

Budgets transferred to services/actuals 93,766       

Commitments 33,499       

Total Actual + Commitments 127,265     

Budget Remaining 2018/19 18,432       

Forecast Outturn 145,697     

Potential under/overspend 2018/19 - 

Funds

 Balance 

b/f 2017/18

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments 

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19 

 Actuals to 

Period  

 £ 

 Committed 

to Period  

£ 

 Virements 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 Virements 

to Services 

£ 

 Total to 

Period  

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19  

£ 

Projects Fund 44,456       64,500       - 108,956     57,953 24,439         (4,875) 20,892         98,409     10,547      

Events Fund - 5,000         - 5,000         5,000 - - - 5,000 - 

Pennines Town Centres Fund 15,628       - - 15,628       2,743 5,000 - - 7,743 7,885        

Littleborough Lakeside Ward Fund 400 3,000         - 3,400         2,053 - 1,347 - 3,400 0 

Milnrow & Newhey Ward Fund 3,385         3,000         - 6,385         90 2,060 - 4,235 6,385 - 

Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Fund 328 3,000         - 3,328         800 - 2,528 - 3,328 - 

Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Fund - 3,000         - 3,000         - 2,000 1,000 - 3,000 - 

Total 64,197       81,500       - 145,697     68,639 33,499         - 25,127         127,265   18,432      

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

APPENDIX 1

P
age 98



PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f (2017/18) 14,498 92.92% 94.87%

Base Budget 2018/19 77,600 

Income/Adjustments 2018/19 (27,160)

Budget Available 2018/19 64,938 

Budgets transferred to other services/actuals 60,338 

Commitments 1,270 

Total Actual + Commitments 61,608 

Budget Remaining 2018/19 3,330 

Forecast Outturn 64,938 

Potential under/(over)spend 2018/19 - 

Funds

 Balance b/f 

2017/18

£ 

 Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments 

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19 

 Actuals to 

Period   

 £ 

 Committed 

to Period  

£ 

 Virements 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 Virements 

to Services 

£ 

 Total to 

Period   

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19    

£ 

Capital Fund          14,234          69,600 (27,160)        56,674 5,475 1,006 (5,288)          52,151   53,344          3,330 

Littleborough Lakeside Ward Capital Fund 264 2,000 - 2,264         - 264 2,000 - 2,264 - 

Milnrow & Newhey Ward Capital Fund - 2,000 - 2,000         - - - 2,000 2,000 - 

Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Capital Fund - 2,000 - 2,000         264 - 1,736 - 2,000 - 

Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Capital Fund - 2,000 - 2,000         448 - 1,552 - 2,000 - 

Total          14,498          77,600 (27,160)        64,938 6,187 1,270 -          54,151   61,608          3,330 

APPENDIX 1

P
age 99



OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2017/18 156,432 61.57% 87.32%

Base Budget 2018/19 185,800 

Income/Adjustments 2018/19 - 

Total budget for 2018/19 342,232 

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 210,699 

Commitments 88,141 

Total Actual + Commitments 298,839 

Budget Remaining 2018/19 43,393 

Forecast Outturn 342,232 

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2017/18

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments 

2018/19  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19

 £ 

Members Fund - 54,000 - 54,000      13,660 23,628 3,062          13,650       54,000       - 

Ward Fund - 72,000 - 72,000      16,521 17,606 626 37,246       72,000       0 

Projects Fund 7,529 19,800 - 27,329      11,659 5,093 (41,182)       8,367         (16,063)      43,392        

Clean & Green Priority Fund - 20,000 - 20,000      4,488 2,025 465 13,022       20,000       - 

Communities & Engagement Priority Fund - 20,000 - 20,000      6,288 11,376 2,336          - 20,000       - 

Township Allocated Funds (pre 2018/19) 148,903 - - 148,903    35,524 41,931 34,693        36,755       148,903     - 

Total 156,432 185,800 - 342,232    88,141 101,659        (0) 109,040     298,839     43,393        

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

APPENDIX 1

P
age 100



OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2017/18 105,972     100.00% 100.00%

Base Budget 2018/19 182,000     

Income/Adjustments 2018/19 (63,700)      

Total budget for 2018/19 224,272     

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 224,271     

Commitments - 

Total Actual + Commitments 224,271     

Budget Remaining 2018/19 1 

Forecast Outturn 224,272     

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2017/18

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments 

2018/19  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19

  £ 

Armed Forces Fund 6,332         - - 6,332          - 6,332          - - 6,332       - 

Capital Fund 99,640       182,000     (63,700) 217,940      - 21,222        - 196,717     217,939   1 

Total 105,972     182,000     (63,700) 224,272      - 27,554        - 196,717     224,271   1 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

APPENDIX 1

P
age 101



APPENDIX 2 

“We felt the project had successfully given 
people a high quality experience, raising their 
awareness of their local area and inspiring 
them to get involved in its long term care” 
Jude Murray 
Director 
NatureEd CIC

Recipient: NatureEd CIC 
Project: Explore Your Environment 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £1,450 

NatureEd CIC is a not-for profit organisation committed to helping local communities enjoy 
and benefit from their local green spaces through exciting environmental opportunities.  
Working from their education base at Hollingworth Lake Visitor Centre, NatureEd offer high 
quality environmental education experiences at an affordable cost through a range of site-
based and outreach learning opportunities. 

Explore Your Environment provided eco-activity sessions for five local voluntary sector 
groups based in Heywood Township.  Participants were Heywood in Bloom, Friends of 
Hopwood Park, St Margaret’s Brownies, St Luke’s Brownies and St Luke’s Guides.  The 
sessions helped people to explore their local green spaces and to take an active role in 
caring for it.  Activities included bug hunting, making mini-beast homes, pond dipping, bird 
ID, making bird feeders and piloting the new EYEspy Heritage Trail.  Mini-beast  
homes and bird feeders created during the sessions have made physical  
improvements to the biodiversity of the local area. 

Page 102



  

 
NatureEd created a family-friendly Explore Your Environment map of Queen’s Park and a 
new heritage activity.  The EYEspy Heritage Trail uses the  
map together with photographs and facts about features in the  
park to help local people to discover more about their local  
green space.  The new resources have been shared with the  
Friends Group and St Luke’s Primary School adjacent to  
the park.  Packs with a hard copy of the map and a CD of  
the graphics will be a resource for use by the Friends Group  
and St Luke’s Primary School and members of the public  
can download their own copies free from NatureEd’s website. 
 
Young people who participated in the eco-activity 
sessions used the experience towards achieving their nature  
and wildlife badges.  NatureEd received 100% feedback rating from eco-activity group 
leaders about the activities with everyone expressing an interest in  
booking again.  The EYEspy resources for Queen’s Park will encourage families to explore 
their local park, increasing physical exercise and having fun while learning about local 
heritage, so enhancing their health and wellbeing.  NatureEd has included the activity in an 
educational programme for Heap Bridge Village Primary School.  The resources are also a 
legacy for community groups.  The Friends of Queen’s Park can use the new map for events 
in the park and also design their own bespoke orienteering challenges.  Explore Your 
Environment provided local people with the opportunity to get actively involved in 
understanding and caring for wildlife and raising environmental awareness. 

School children 
learning about 

mini-beasts and 
gardening with 

Heywood in 
Bloom 

“The children had a lot of fun and your enthusiasm kept the children 
engaged throughout!” 
Leader for Heywood in Bloom comments about a great mini beast hunt 

Page 103



 

 

 

 

  

Local families having fun finding out about the wildlife in Hopwood Park as part of the Friends 
Group annual hay meadow raking event 

“Participants have shared their experiences with others including family, friends and 
colleagues.  The comments from St Luke’s Guides who piloted the new EYEspy 
Heritage Trail were particularly helpful.  The Guides felt the map was easy to use and 
helped them to explore their local area.  However, they also suggested that it would 
be good to have some flexibility to adapt the activity for different age ranges which is 
a feature that has been built into the overall resource pack” 
Jude Murray 
Director, NatureEd CIC 

St Margaret’s 
Brownies learning bird 
ID skills …… then 
making some 
incredible bird feeders 
in preparation for 
taking part in the 
RSPB Big Garden 
Birdwatch 

St Luke’s Guides testing out their map skills and 
helping pilot the new Queen’s Park EYEspy Heritage 
Trail 

Page 104



 

  

“It brings together grandads and 
grandmas, parents, children and people 
with learning disabilities in a positive 
environment. This has been shown to 
reduce hate crime as people with 
disabilities are seen in a positive light and 
stigma reduces” 
Jane Holland 
Community Connector, PossAbilities 

 
Recipient: PossAbilities CIC 
Project: Cherwell Wellbeing Hub Summer Fayre 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £1,074 
 
PossAbilities is a Community Interest Community that supports people with learning 
disabilities, dementia and young people leaving care to live the life they choose.  Service 
provision to improve the well being of the local community includes family based support; 
Homeshare involving an individual providing a spare room, and another offers up to 10 hours 
of social support in return; respite, short breaks and supported holidays; supported living and 
outreach packages that are tailored to individual needs to develop the skills necessary to 
improve and maintain independence; day services at one of their four Wellbeing Hubs or out 
in the local community that create stimulating and engaging activities for people with a range 
of different needs and abilities; dementia care and employment opportunities through 
Workchoice and Specialist Employability Support programmes. 
 
Cherwell Wellbeing Hub provides opportunity, support and encouragement for adults with 
learning and physical disabilities to learn new skills and to improve their existing ones, paving 
the way into employment or voluntary opportunities and a more active role in the local 
community.  It also encourages confidence building, team work, friendships and health and 
wellbeing.  The Cherwell Garden and Farm is one acre site with a performance space, mud 
kitchen, dipping pond, sensory garden, growing zone, outdoor eating area, wildlife corridors, 
a bee hotel and hedgehog houses. 

Page 105



    

 
The Cherwell Wellbeing Hub’s annual Summer Fayre attracted some 800 local people who 
enjoyed activities and the final of the Inclusive World Cup when the winners were presented 
with their trophy and medals.  England’s blind footballer Azeem Amir performed the opening 
ceremony. 
 
The Summer Fayre was an opportunity to bring people together in a joyous endeavour that 
reinforces the view that Heywood is a great place to be, encouraging friendships, 
togetherness and a feeling of greater community cohesion. 

Page 106



  

“Through past experience and reputation 
people know what a good scheme this is – 
local children were encouraged to join and 
parents wanted their child to be active 
throughout the summer holidays” 
Michelle Krauza, Library Officer - Digital & 
Young People and  
Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer 
Services Team Leader) 

 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 
Project: Fit, Feed and Read at Darnhill Library 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £2,138 
 
Darnhill Library’s Fit, Feed and Read was an initiative delivered in partnership with Link4Life 
throughout the school summer holidays (30 July to 7 September 2018) aimed principally at 
children aged 5-11 in receipt of free school meals who might not otherwise have a meal at 
lunchtime in the school holidays.  The children had an opportunity to read and discuss the 
books they are reading, participate in arts and crafts and get active with outdoor sports 
sessions.  Link4Life promoted the initiative to all local primary schools by attending 
assemblies with information leaflets and registration forms.  Libraries promoted the scheme 
through the local press and on social media.  Local early help services also referred families 
to the initiative; supporting families key workers, social workers, integrated neighbourhood 
teams and community safety teams. 
 
Mischief Makers was the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge for 2018 that aimed to 
get children into libraries to keep up their reading skills and confidence during the long 
holidays.  The Challenge has a different theme each year and children can read any book 
as long as they are borrowed from the library.  Children receive special rewards each time 
they read a book and every child that completes the challenge is awarded a certificate and 

Page 107



  

 
a medal.  The Summer Reading Challenge is open to all primary school aged children and 
is designed for all reading abilities. All local primary schools are contacted and given 
resources to work with their local library to actively promote the National Reading Initiative.  
Every child is given information regarding the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge and 
encouraged to take part. 
 
Celebrating the 80th anniversary of the much loved comic, Beano, Mischief Makers Summer 
Reading Challenge provided each child who signed up with their own map of Beanotown to 
help Dennis, Gnasher and friends to find mysterious buried treasure.  By reading and visiting 
the library, children received stickers to discover where the treasure is hiding plus a medal 
and a certificate when they read any six books over the summer holidays.  Mischief Makers 
had a dedicated website for children taking part in the Challenge that allowed them to keep 
track of the books they read, write book reviews, enter competitions and chat to other 
readers. 
 
Children got up to all sorts of mischief enjoying craft activities and workshops from creating 
Dennis the Menace hair and mask, a Dennis in a box, a Bananaman shooter, Beano skittles, 
designing a cartoon character competition, designing a Fit, Feed and Read logo and a comic 
storyboard workshop.  Entertainment included Storytelling with Can ‘O’ Worms, Skylight 
Circus, John Piper’s Puppets, Craig Bradley the Poet, The Zoo Lab and Cartoon Storyboard 
Creations with Cat Jessop. 
 

Multi-sport coaches delivered the sport sessions utilising space in and around the library and 
Rochdale Supply Agency (RoSA) with Libraries’ staff and young volunteers facilitated the 
Read and Feed sessions.  The Fit, Feed and Read initiative provided the opportunity for young 
people to volunteer and develop new skills that will help them with their college and job 
applications. 

Page 108



  

 
Libraries partnership with Link4Life enabled resources to be optimised and offer a wider 
provision to those children who needed it.  A free meal for those children who might 
encounter difficulty receiving lunch when not in school was facilitated through a link 
established with FareShare (a charity that helps organisations working with people who could 
go hungry by distributing surplus food from the food industry).  A local caterer prepared and 
delivered a variety of sandwiches alongside the food from Fareshare to guarantee each child 
received a lunch and not be solely reliant on the fluctuating quantity of surplus food.  Tesco 
also provided a one-off supply of fresh fruit which was distributed between participating 
libraries and sports locations.  Over 332 meals were offered to the young people who 
attended the Fit, Feed and Read sessions across the borough. 
 
Fit, Feed and Read has attracted young people into the library to experience reading for 
pleasure, inspire their creativity, develop relationships with others and get active.  The 
provision of a free lunch has ensured some consistency for those children who are in receipt 
of free school meals. 

The scheme in 2018 was a success.  Key benefits: 
 Enhanced and supported mission for all children to read widely and for pleasure 
 Encouraged parental engagement and family involvement in reading 
 Helped schools make links with their local library and the wider community 
 Was intrinsically inclusive and contributed to the achievement of ALL pupils, 

including SEN disadvantaged pupils and the most able 
 Prevention of the tendency for children’s reading to dip over the holidays 
 Ensured consistency of the provision of a free lunch for those children in receipt of 

free school meals 
 
Michelle Krauza (Library Officer - Digital & Young People & Libraries) and 
Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer Services Team Leader) 

Page 109



 

 

  

“The project has insulated the room 
completely helping reduce our carbon 
footprint and reducing energy charges. 
The room is much more in tune with the 
rest of the building and appreciated by our 
users” 
Steve McLoughlin 
Secretary 
Sandon House Community Centre 

 
Recipient: Sandon House Community Centre 
Project: Sandon House Community Centre Function Room Upgrade 
Fund: Capital Fund 
Awarded: £3,250 
 
Sandon House Community Centre provides support and services to older people and people 
in need with the aim of reducing isolation, increasing employability skills; improving health 
and wellbeing and addressing financial hardship.  Working in partnership with Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing, local GP surgeries, Link4Life, NHS and local community groups, the 
centre responses to the needs of the local community.  A variety of services provided include 
a luncheon club on Monday, Wednesday and Thursday to offer home cooked meals for 
reasonable prices together with entertainment and activities to the local elderly, a drop in 
centre for veterans, advice and support for the homeless and families in crisis, and 
placement of volunteers to help them gain skills and keep them in the employability market. 
 
The centre is a prefabricated structure that has experienced increased demand from service 
users.  The function room was in need of renovation/insulation to create a welcoming and 
cost efficient environment.  Building works involved the insulation of all external walls, 
plastering walls/ceiling, fitting new skirting and architrave and PVC window cills, latex screed 
floor, fit vinyl plank floor and wire sockets and lighting. 

Page 110



 

 

  

”The sessions provided opportunities for 
families to meet one another and develop 
friendships whilst participating in fun and 
enjoyable activities thus helping to reduce 
isolation and inactivity” 
Dawn Fox 
Director, Fullcircle nw CIC 

 
Recipient: Fullcircle nw CIC 
Project: Queen’s Park Family Summer Sessions 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £1,265 
 
Fullcircle nw CIC (Community Interest Community) was established to address concerns 
surrounding the significant impact that the current economic climate is having on local 
communities.  At a time of significant reductions in government and local council expenditure, 
many local providers are unable to continue to provide children, young people and 
communities with the services and support they need.  Fullcircle works with young people, 
residents and community groups within the North West specialising in three areas of work; 
community development, children and young people and alternate education.  Services 
provided by Fullcircle in local neighbourhoods aim to inspire and empower people to be 
actively involved in issues that affect their community, provide innovative and responsive 
effective services which reflect the needs of the community and offer young people with the 
best opportunities to achieve their full potential. 
 
A coordinated programme of free family friendly activities in Queen’s Park, Heywood was 
delivered by Fullcircle during the summer holidays.  Families participated in a range of fun, 
positive and diversionary sessions.  The programme consisted of five activity sessions with 
each session for two hours, free of charge and open access for people of all ages to enjoy.   

Page 111



“The arts and crafts activities provided allowed the children and young people to 
be creative and develop their arts and craft based skills whilst having fun.  They 
felt a sense of pride and accomplishment after they produced their work.  The craft 
activities included creating pencil toppers, summer spirals, bracelets, colourful 
fans, painting and more.  The adults (parents/carers) gained ideas and increased 
their own knowledge of the benefits of playing outdoors and the positive impact 
this has on children and their families particularly in relation to health and 
wellbeing” 
Dawn Fox 
Director, Fullcircle nw CIC 

  

 
Sessions incorporated a range of activities including arts and crafts, circus skills, outdoor 
games, multi sports and play.  Parents and children were able to participate in a range of 
physical activities and games with a positive impact on their health and wellbeing.  Activities 
encouraged families and individuals to make use of other facilities within the park which had 
a positive impact on the number of people using the park independently. 

Page 112



 

  

“Joshua has continued to thrive with Great 
Britain.  The funding makes a huge 
difference as the costs are high.  Most 
training takes place in Europe as they need 
to be playing against that level of 
competition” 
Lyndsay Beers 
Mother of Joshua McDaid 

 
Recipient: Lyndsay Beers 
Project: Talented Athlete Scheme – Joshua McDaid (Handball) 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £1,999 
 
Joshua McDaid is a member of the North East Manchester Hawks Handball Club who 
compete in the men’s league (Premiership) and the team finished 4th in the league and cup 
runners up.  Handball is a team sport with seven players (six outfield players and a 
goalkeeper) who pass a ball using their hands with the aim of throwing it into the goal of the 
other team.  A standard match consists of two periods of 30 minutes and the team that 
scores more goals wins.  Joshua was selected to train and represent the Great Britain 
National Team at under 18’s level in 2018 and he was offered the opportunity to train with 
the under 20’s handball squad that will provide him with valuable experience. 
 
Travel to the matches, training and equipment are funded by Joshua’s mother as the squad 
receives limited financial support under a joint International Handball Federation/IOC 
programme.  The grant awarded contributed to match shoes, training kits, travelling 
expenses to training sessions and competitions plus match fees. 
 
In August 2018 Joshua travelled with the Great Britain under 18’s handball squad to 
compete in the European Championships in Tullin, Austria.  The squad played against 
Montenegro, Turkey, Czech Republic, Kosova and Ireland before winning the play-off game 
for a placement.  The outcome of the Championships means the squad were invited to 
compete in Kosova at the end of October 2018 in the National Handball Competition that 
forms part of Joshua’s six year plan towards competing in the 2024 Olympics in Paris. 

Page 113



  

 
At the IHF Tournament in Pristina, Kosova, the Great Britain squad beat Moldova to set up a 
gold medal encounter against the hosts for a place for the winners in the IHF Trophy 
Intercontinental Championship to be held later in 2018.  Josh McDaid, Charlie Fletcher and 
Sebastian Hesk were named as most valuable players.  The squad achieved a silver medal 
after they were narrowly defeated by Kosova in the youth final and the British Ambassador to 
Kosova, Ruairi O’Connell, presented the medals to Great Britain who can be proud of their 
achievement. 
 
Joshua’s training regime and ensuring he gets the right nutrition aids his performance in the 
sport and his ultimate aim to be part of the Olympic GB squad and represent his country at 
the Olympic Games. 

Page 114



  

“Visitors and exhibitors travelled from as far 
away as Kent, all praised our town for its 
friendly atmosphere and the effort and 
funding put in by the Council and local 
businesses” 
Melanie Caffrey 
Secretary, Heywood Business Group 

 
Recipient: Heywood Business Group 
Project: Heywood 1940’s Day 2018 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £10,000 
 
Heywood 1940’s Day on Saturday 23 June 2018 was organised by Heywood Business 
Group in partnership with Heywood Township.  Entertainment and fun activities from the 
1940’s era provide a historical, educational and nostalgic interest to both young and old.  
This community event promotes the town nationally as a destination for leisure, recreation 
and shopping. 
 
This event is as popular as ever for all the family with numerous free activities and it has 
become the highlight of Heywood’s social calendar.  Locals and visitors to the town enjoyed 
a fly past by a Spitfire, the many military and classic vehicles on show, crowds were 
serenaded with wartime tunes and period dance performances, photo opportunities with 
authentic fighter planes, re-enactors in period uniforms and dress, traditional street 
musicians, vintage carousel, street theatre and stalls offering 1940’s style crafts, cakes and 
sweets.  Local businesses joined in the fun with 1940’s themed window displays, staff 
dressing in vintage clothing, bunting, memorabilia exhibits and providing refreshments.  
Local people and visitors were encouraged to dress in forties outfits to maintain the 
momentum of the themed event. 

Page 115



  

 
Record crowds were in attendance throughout the day with the date of the event chosen to 
coincide with Armed Forces Week to show the town’s support for the men and women who 
make up the Armed Forces community from currently serving troops to Service families, 
veterans and cadets.  The Scots Guards Association Pipes and Drums Band led the Armed 
Forces Parade with a large number of veterans and cadets through the town centre with 
massive applause from the community lining the streets before the flag to recognise Armed 
Forces Day was raised by Heywood Veterans Association in Heywood Memorial Gardens. 

Page 116



  

Page 117



  

“…a pleasure to bring together a team of 
over 60’s who had given up on sport and 
exercise and watch them become such 
good friends and improve their health 
and fitness levels through football has 
been great to see” 
Paul Wright 
Chairman, Roach Dynamos JFC 

 
Recipient: Roach Dynamos JFC 
Project: Club Development 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £2,500 
 
Roach Dynamos JFC established in 1975 provides high quality and affordable junior football 
for young people living across Heywood from age 4 to open age (16+).  With a total of 27 
teams and in excess of 340 members, the club provides high quality, disciplined football for 
all those with a passion for the game and promotes the values of sportsmanship.  Each team 
is registered with a league and during the football season the club provides weekly training 
sessions and access to weekly football games against opponents in relevant leagues.  Also 
additional opportunities to participate in football tournaments.  At the end of the season the 
club hosts presentation events where participation and achievement is recognised and 
celebrated.  All players are presented with a trophy with their name and age group on to 
mark their contribution to their team and individuals are selected for personal acclaim in 
recognition of their footballing ability, their consistent contribution to the team and Players 
Player of the Season. 
 
To make fitness through football accessible to even more members of the local community 
who are interested in football and challenge traditional stereotypes around football being 
solely a male game, Roach Dynamos launched a girls football team and a walking football 
team for the over 60’s.  The popularity in both these areas has resulted in the club being in a 
position where they could realistically attract players, form full teams and enter them to play 
within local leagues.  Kits, equipment and associated costs such as pitch hire enabled these 
non-traditional teams to be registered with the league and attend weekly training sessions 
and play a match every week for a local league. 
 
Roach Dynamos are committed to providing positive free time activities to people living 
across Heywood and promote healthy lifestyles by encouraging regular exercise and a good 
diet.  The club endeavours to provide a warm welcome to all participants and their families 
and endorses the benefits of social interaction and camaraderie formed via team sports. 

Page 118



 

 

  
“…crowds turned out in huge numbers and 
the town was very busy throughout the entire 
day…this year the addition of the Sky Rider 
and Pendulum Ride were very popular as 
was the massive fireworks display at a grand 
finale which wowed the crowds” 
Melanie Caffrey 
Secretary, Heywood Business Group 

 
Recipient: Heywood Business Group 
Project: Heywood Christmas Festival 2018 
Fund: Events Fund 
Awarded: £6,000 
 
Heywood Business Group is a well-established, independent, business group run voluntarily 
by local business people.  The group promotes Heywood and the town centre businesses in 
a positive light, and organises activities in the town to create a feel good environment in 
Heywood with the aim of generating prosperity for the town and wider community. 
 
Heywood Christmas Festival was organised by Heywood Business Group on behalf of 
Heywood Township to promote the town as a destination for leisure, recreation and 
shopping.  The festival on Saturday 17 November 2018 provided many family attractions, 
entertainment and themed food and drink that brought the people of Heywood and the wider 
community together.  Activities, stalls and entertainment included a local talent contest 
outside St Luke’s Church, arts and crafts sessions for children, magic show, performances 
from Blackley Brass Band and Littleborough Brass Band, market stalls to support local 
charities or purchase a festive treat, vintage carousel, miniature train rides, stilt walkers, 
photo opportunities with costumed characters of Cinderella, Rapunzel, Darth Vader, Wonder 
Woman, Ironman and Batman plus Elfie the Elf on a special mission to add well behaved 
children to Santa’s nice list and take present requests.  A nativity scene took the lead in the 
lantern parade with illuminated floats with festive characters of Frozen’s Arendelle with Elsa 
and Olaf, Jack Skellington from the Nightmare Before Christmas and The Ginch, voluntary 

Page 119



  

 
groups and Santa on the newly refurbished Rotary Santa Sleigh.  New attractions this year 
that proved very popular were Sky Rider and Pendulum Ride.  Heywood’s Christmas lights 
were switched on as St Luke’s Church chimed and The Olde Queen Anne hosted a fantastic 
firework display in the grand finale. 
 
The festival is an inclusive and cohesive event that helps build links between the different 
communities in Heywood.  It provides social and economic benefits for the town with the 
event attracting shoppers and visitors to enjoy the festive celebration. 

Page 120



  

Page 121



  

“…seeing each step of the renovation project 
gradually transforming a disused, abandoned 
building into a hub of the community where a 
wide variety of people of all ages choose to 
visit on a regular basis, the success has been 
the greatest highlight. …the dedication and 
hard work involved has now paid off” 
Sandra Trickett 
Chair 
Friends of Hopwood Park 

 
Recipient: Friends of Hopwood Park 
Project: Hopwood Park Café/Community Hub 
Fund: Capital Fund 
Awarded: £10,000 
 
Friends of Hopwood Park was established in 2010 to improve the facilities and condition of 
Hopwood Park and create a safe, stimulating, local green space for the enjoyment and 
recreation of all ages within the local community but with emphasis on children’s recreation.  
This thriving community organisation has been successful in securing investment into 
Hopwood Park for a modern play area for older children with a nearby picnic area and 
younger kids play area, multi-use games areas and bowling green, a path around the park 
and drainage scheme that feeds into a wildlife pond. 
 
Rochdale Borough Council agreed a 25 year lease with the Friends of Hopwood Park for the 
derelict bus shelter/toilet block on Manchester Road, Hopwood for renovation into a 
café/community hub.  The improvements made to Hopwood Park have led to increased 
visitors to the park and access to an indoor facility to provide refreshments and toilet facilities 
enhances the user experience, generates ongoing revenue for investment into Hopwood 
Park in the long term and nurtures a sense of community and focal point for local residents.  
The building has been transformed from a dilapidated and unwelcome eyesore at the 
entrance to the park into The Tree House Café with a welcoming vista on a gateway road 
from the motorway into Heywood town centre. 

THEN 
Original bus shelter built 1953 

NOW 
The Tree House Cafe 

Page 122



 

Page 123



APPENDIX 2 

Recipient: Friends of Hopwood Woods Nature Reserve 
Project: Hopwood Woods Nature Reserve Wheelchair Friendly Access 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £2,400 

Hopwood Woods was official designated as a nature reserve in 1996 as it was deemed to 
have a special value as a habitat for wildlife.  This woodland area around the grounds of 
Hopwood Hall has Beech and Sycamore species dominating Hopwood Clough with native 
species of Ash, Oak and Birch and the ancient woodlands of Lords Woods has Turkey Oak 
and common Lime with numerous types of fern on the woodland floor.  A number of ponds 
within the nature reserve contain a variety of aquatic plants and wildlife.  Friends of Hopwood 
Woods Nature Reserve was established to protect the environment of the nature reserve, 
encourage environmental awareness and community spirit whilst working with other 
organisations, groups and individuals in pursuance of these objectives. 

Hopwood Woods Nature Reserve’s public path access needed improvement as although it 
met disability access criteria it had proven to be non-user friendly for wheelchair users.  
Friends of Hopwood Woods Nature Reserve with the Countryside Ranger met with Newlands 
Primary School to discuss the potential for a Forest School in Hopwood Clough.  The 
installation of rest points and a firmer path surface was recommended to provide a safer 
route for wheelchair users to access the Forest School and an area of the woods that was 
inaccessible due to gradient.  The improvements to the paths involved extensive areas being  

“We are now having the Newlands School 
accessing the Forest School which is amazing 
and a fantastic opportunity for them to have 
access to outdoor learning” 
Keeley O’Mara 
Chair 
Friends of Hopwood Woods Nature 
Reserve 

Page 124



 cleared of vegetation by the Green Volunteers before a local contractor could commence re-
grading and creation of the paths, installation of the level plateaus from the entrance to the 
bridge, laying of floor mesh and placement of stones to form the level surface of the paths. 

Improved access to Hopwood Woods Nature Reserve will provide the local community with 
opportunities to explore and discover the beauty of the natural environment and nurture 
public involvement and ownership of this special green space. 

Page 125



“Through past experience and reputation people 
know what a good scheme this is – local children 
were encouraged to join and parents wanted their 
child to be active throughout the summer 
holidays” 
Michelle Krauza, Library Officer - Digital & 
Young People and  
Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer 
Services Team Leader) 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 
Project: Fit, Feed and Read at Junction Library and Langley Library 
Fund: Ward Fund 
Awarded: £2,471 and £1,661 

Junction and Langley Libraries’ Fit, Feed and Read was an initiative delivered in partnership 
with Link4Life throughout the school summer holidays aimed principally at children aged 5-11 
in receipt of free school meals who might not otherwise have a meal at lunchtime in the 
school holidays.  The children had an opportunity to read and discuss the books they are 
reading, participate in arts and crafts and get active with outdoor sports sessions.  Link4Life 
promoted the initiative to all local primary schools by attending assemblies with information 
leaflets and registration forms.  Libraries promoted the scheme through the local press and 
on social media.  Local early help services also referred families to the initiative; supporting 
families key workers, social workers, integrated neighbourhood teams and community safety 
teams. 

Mischief Makers was the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge for 2018 that aimed to 
get children into libraries to keep up their reading skills and confidence during the long 
holidays.  The Challenge has a different theme each year and children can read any book 
as long as they are borrowed from the library.  Children receive special rewards each time 
they read a book and every child that completes the challenge is awarded a certificate and 

Page 126



 a medal.  The Summer Reading Challenge is open to all primary school aged children and 
is designed for all reading abilities. All local primary schools are contacted and given 
resources to work with their local library to actively promote the National Reading Initiative.  
Every child is given information regarding the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge and 
encouraged to take part. 

Celebrating the 80th anniversary of the much loved comic, Beano, Mischief Makers Summer 
Reading Challenge provided each child who signed up with their own map of Beanotown to 
help Dennis, Gnasher and friends to find mysterious buried treasure.  By reading and visiting 
the library, children received stickers to discover where the treasure is hiding plus a medal 
and a certificate when they read any six books over the summer holidays.  Mischief Makers 
had a dedicated website for children taking part in the Challenge that allowed them to keep 
track of the books they read, write book reviews, enter competitions and chat to other 
readers. 

Children got up to all sorts of mischief enjoying craft activities and workshops from creating 
Dennis the Menace hair and mask, a Dennis in a box, a Bananaman shooter, Beano skittles, 
designing a cartoon character competition, designing a Fit, Feed and Read logo and a comic 
storyboard workshop.  Entertainment included Storytelling with Can ‘O’ Worms, Skylight 
Circus, John Piper’s Puppets, Craig Bradley the Poet, The Zoo Lab and Cartoon Storyboard 
Creations with Cat Jessop. 

Multi-sport coaches delivered the sport sessions utilising space in and around the library and 
Rochdale Supply Agency (RoSA) with Libraries’ staff and young volunteers facilitated the 
Read and Feed sessions.  The Fit, Feed and Read initiative provided the opportunity for young 
people to volunteer and develop new skills that will help them with their college and job 
applications. 

Page 127



Libraries partnership with Link4Life enabled resources to be optimised and offer a wider 
provision to those children who needed it.  A free meal for those children who might 
encounter difficulty receiving lunch when not in school was facilitated through a link 
established with FareShare (a charity that helps organisations working with people who could 
go hungry by distributing surplus food from the food industry).  A local caterer prepared and 
delivered a variety of sandwiches alongside the food from Fareshare to guarantee each child 
received a lunch and not be solely reliant on the fluctuating quantity of surplus food.  Tesco 
also provided a one-off supply of fresh fruit which was distributed between participating 
libraries and sports locations.  Over 332 meals were offered to the young people who 
attended the Fit, Feed and Read sessions across the borough. 

Fit, Feed and Read has attracted young people into the library to experience reading for 
pleasure, inspire their creativity, develop relationships with others and get active.  The 
provision of a free lunch has ensured some consistency for those children who are in receipt 
of free school meals. 

The scheme in 2018 was a success.  Key benefits: 
 Enhanced and supported mission for all children to read widely and for pleasure
 Encouraged parental engagement and family involvement in reading
 Helped schools make links with their local library and the wider community
 Was intrinsically inclusive and contributed to the achievement of ALL pupils,

including SEN disadvantaged pupils and the most able
 Prevention of the tendency for children’s reading to dip over the holidays
 Ensured consistency of the provision of a free lunch for those children in receipt of

free school meals

Michelle Krauza (Library Officer - Digital & Young People & Libraries) and 
Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer Services Team Leader) 

Page 128



 
Recipient: Link4Life 
Project: Middleton Holiday @ Home 2018 
Fund: Events Fund 
Awarded: £15,000 
 
Link4Life hosted a programme of activities aimed at children and young people during the 
summer holidays (from 23 July to 31 August 2018) and this year the programme linked in 
with Fit & Fed, a national campaign lead by the charity StreetGames to combat holiday 
hunger, isolation and inactivity.  Middleton Holiday @ Home was originally conceived as a 
response to a lack of co-ordinated leisure opportunities for children and young people 
during the summer holidays and consequent problems of anti-social behaviour and 
nuisance. 
 
Prior to the summer holidays, local community groups were invited to a meeting to provide 
them with details about Fit & Fed and share ideas about how projects could incorporate food 
within their sessions.  It was also an opportunity for groups to plan when their projects would 
take place so that there was no duplication and the provision could extend throughout the 
summer holidays, allowing children to attend more activities.  A promotional brochure was 
produced to market the programme throughout  
Middleton.  Link4Life made in kind contributions in  
respect of officer time to oversee and develop the  
programme and all administration costs involved,  
the cost of the design of the Middleton Holiday @  
Home brochure and end of summer trip. 
 
Fit & Fed sessions included fun and energetic  
physical activity sessions, a nutritious meal as  
well as arts and crafts.  The activities were free  
for children to attend and took place in each ward  
of Middleton Township.  A total of 11 projects  
were delivered across Middleton with a Fit & Fed  
session running every day with children engaging  
in activities such as netball, drama, circus skills,  
crafts, sports and outdoor adventure.  Also the  
Fit & Fed sessions linked in with Junction and  
Langley Libraries’ Fit, Feed and Read project  
where children were able to participate in the  
Summer Reading Challenge. 

 

  

“The aims of the programme were 
communicated to schools, health services, 
council services, nurseries, community groups, 
etc was to promote it to the families that were in 
the most need of the provision.  On the majority 
of the projects places were taken up quite 
quickly with some reaching full capacity” 
Leigh-anne Carnall 
Programme Manager, Link4Life 

Page 129



Food was an integral part of this year’s programme with a nutritious meal provided for every 
child who attended a session.  Also children were given the opportunity to prepare and cook 
their meals including picking berries, fruits and herbs from allotments to add to their meals, 
use gas burners and log fires to cook outdoors.  FareShare who distribute surplus food from 
the food industry to charities provided fruit, cereal bars and fruit juices.  Each child who 
attended a session over the summer was given a free water bottle to keep them hydrated 
during the sessions and a free swim pass to be used over the summer at Middleton Arena.  
At the end of the summer holidays two young people were nominated from each project to 
attend a trip to Hollingworth Lake Water Activity Centre to experience sailing, canoeing, raft 
building and kayaking. 

A successful programme of activities was delivered engaging many young people and groups 
within the Township during the summer of 2018 to build upon the success of the previous 
year.  Middleton Holiday @ Home made a significant contribution towards increasing sport, 
art, culture and leisure opportunities for children and young people during the summer 
holidays across the Township delivered by Link4Life and other providers. 

Page 130



“…their participation in Middleton in Bloom with 
the litter pick and planting gave a much needed 
boost to the local community.  The children’s 
group painted poppy pebbles for the horse 
which was a feature of the Middleton in Bloom 
display.  Burnside received a Level 3 Advancing 
Award due to the help of the volunteers” 
Joan Aspinall, Centre Manager 
Burnside Community Centre 

Recipient: Burnside Community Centre 
Project: Burnside Centre Volunteer Project 
Fund: Projects Fund and Ward Fund 
Awarded: £5,206 

Burnside Community Centre is a hub for the benefit of the local neighbourhood and provides 
a quality environment to facilitate a wide range of recreational and educational activities 
across all age groups.  Local people have the opportunity to develop their skills and 
knowledge through the centre’s accredited training, taster sessions, awareness events and 
IT courses.  The centre is a home and a point of contact to various groups and organisations 
all working towards the aim of supporting those on the margins and in need of that first step 
towards better opportunities. 

‘Take the First Step’ was a volunteer project launched at Burnside Community Centre in 
2018 with the aim of providing the local community with opportunities to gain experience in 
different working and volunteering environments.  The volunteers achieved accredited 
training and skills to support them into employment and enhance their personal lives.  The 
initial stages of the project were development courses such as Cooking from Scratch and 
THRIVE life coaching sessions to build bonds within the group of volunteers.  Participation in 
the Peer Mentoring and Volunteer course gave the group accredited skills and knowledge 
that they could use in their volunteering role and a  
distance learning Customer Service Level 2 course  
provided some of the volunteers with a qualification  
recognised for employment in the customer service  
sector.  Working in partnership with various agencies,  
Burnside Community Centre supported the volunteers  
in achieving a varied range of qualifications.  Two  
volunteers achieved a Level 2 Sports Leaders Award  
through the programme delivered by Link4Life that  
teaches generic leadership skills through the medium  
of sport.  It is a nationally recognised qualification  
that allows the volunteer to independently lead small  
groups of people in sport and recreational activities  
within community settings.  Acorn Recovery that  
provides a range of recovery services which enable  
individuals and their families to break free of  
addictions, provided training for two volunteers to  
gain Level 2 Counselling.  Other volunteers took 

Page 131



the opportunity to train with Talk English Rochdale to support people with low levels of 
English to improve their language skills, access services and get more involved in the 
community, and these volunteers now support the Talk English Class at the Burnside 
Community Centre.  One of the volunteers will be moving onto the Access Course at 
Hopwood Hall College with a view to training to be a primary school teacher.  The training 
opportunities have enabled three of the volunteers to gain employment and all the volunteers 
have been able to prepare CVs listing their new qualifications and skills that enhance their 
career prospects. 

Burnside Community Centre’s service provision to the community benefited from the 
volunteers’ involvement in their Stay and Play sessions and Time to Talk Café and some of 
the volunteers supported the Summer Play Scheme.  Food Safety/Hygiene and Sports 
Leaders qualifications achieved by the volunteers enabled them to produce health snacks for 
the children attending the Summer Play Scheme and support the Breakfast Club during the 
February Half Term and assisting the Play Worker in delivering team games sessions and 
play activities. 

An event was held to celebrate the achievements of the volunteers and showcase their 
progress with awards in recognition of their support for Burnside Community Centre and the 
local community over the 12 months. 

“It has been fabulous to see the participants in this programme not only 
grow so much in confidence but each one has been on their own personal 
journey of development, education and social interaction.  A positive impact 
has been achieved by all but for some this transformation has been a 
massive realisation of previously untapped potential” 
Kate Alderson 
Employment and Training Officer, Riverside 

“The project brought together a fantastic group of people who have worked 
hard with one another and done all kinds of things they might not 
otherwise have done.  There's been lots of fun but also a serious focus on 
getting new skills.  They're a jewel in the crown of Burnside Centre!  I hope 
they stick around for a good long time” 
Canon Phillip Miller 
Chair of Burnside Directors 

Page 132



Recipient: Groundwork Oldham & Rochdale Trust 
Project: Irkside Community Woodland Improvements 
Fund: Project Fund and Ward Fund 
Awarded: £5,000 

Groundwork Oldham & Rochdale Trust is a local environmental charity that aims to build 
people’s skills and improve job prospects, redesign neglected open spaces, help people 
make their own decision about their area, motivate and develop our young people and 
promote greener ways of working and living.  Working with schools, community groups, 
housing associations and local authorities, Groundwork Oldham & Rochdale Trust improve a 
wide range of green spaces to meet the needs of the local community and create beautiful 
havens for wildlife. 

Irkside Nature Reserve is woodland connected to Alkrington Woods and features a circular 
route passing woodland, hedgerows, pond, glades and wetland meadow habitats within a 
relatively short walk from the Alkrington Park Road entrance.  Groundwork Oldham & 
Rochdale Trust in partnership with the Friends of Alkrington Woods recruited volunteers 
affiliated to both groups and through an open invite to members of the public with the aim of 
giving opportunities to enhance the local neighbourhood and get active.  Improvements 
undertaken in the nature reserve included the repair of fencing adjacent to the south western 
kissing gate, removal of carpets/moss from the boardwalk and affixing galvanised mesh to  

“Footpaths previously blocked by windblown 
trees have been opened up, glades have been 
cut back and repairs have been made to items 
that will allow visitors to better access the site” 
Adam Holt 
Land Manager 
Groundwork Oldham & Rochdale Trust 

Replacement and repair of fencing at the entrances to Irkside Nature Reserve and along the 
boundary line 

Page 133



the treads, replacement of timber cross members on the barrier adjacent to the pond, litter 
pick the site, removal of overhanging trees and shrubs encroaching onto the path and 
refurbishment of the sign at the entrance.  Habitat was enhanced with coppicing in the 
woodland glade, creation of a brash pile to attract birds and mammals, and eradication of the 
invasive Himalayan Balsam in the area. 

Five participants involved in completing the physical improvements in the nature reserve 
used the opportunity to evidence vocational skills and achieved ABC Level One qualifications 
in Practical Countryside Skills.  Three participants have subsequently gained full time 
employment and one is currently completing a Prince’s Trust course. 

Irkside Nature Reserve improvements have been welcomed by the Friends of Alkrington 
Woods and it’s created a more accessible and inviting location for the local community to 
visit and get active. 

Removal of carpets/moss from the boardwalk and affixing galvanised mesh 

Management of the woodland glades and creation of a brash pile 

Page 134



Recipient: Langley Theatre Workshop 
Project: Youth Theatre 
Fund: Ward Fund 
Awarded: £1,300 

Langley Theatre Workshop provides the local community with the opportunity to participate in 
the performing arts and gain knowledge, experience and skills which enable them to 
appreciate and progress in the areas of dance, drama and music.  Weekly workshops and 
outreach provision build confidence and self-esteem as participants are encouraged to 
express themselves creatively without judgement. 

The Youth Theatre Group consists of expressive individuals who create dynamic plays and 
drama pieces themed on current issues affecting young people.  Greater Manchester’s youth 
theatres, schools and colleges were given the opportunity to perform at HOME in the 
National Theatre’s Connections Festival which is a celebration of young people, theatre 
making and the important of access to the arts.  Ten new plays are commissioned each year 
by the National Theatre for young people to perform.  Langley Theatre Workshop on 27 
March 2018 performed ‘When They Go Low’ by Natalie Mitchell, a play about everyday 
feminism and the changing face of teenage sexuality in an online world.  Twenty young 
people received drama coaching in all aspects of theatre and experienced giving a 
performance on a prestigious stage to a live audience.  The group’s dedication and 
commitment to the project achieved an outstanding portrayal of the play. 

“The project was a huge highlight of the year 
for me but the best moments are at HOME 
Theatre watching the young people step out 
onto the stage and give such believable and 
heartfelt performances is truly incredible” 
Georgina Jacques 
Chief Executive Officer 
Langley Theatre Workshop 

Page 135



APPENDIX 2 

“We felt the project had successfully given 
people a high quality experience, raising 
their awareness of their local area and 
inspiring them to get involved in its long 
term care” 
Jude Murray 
Director 
NatureEd CIC 

Recipient: NatureEd CIC 
Project: Explore Your Environment 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £1,450 

NatureEd CIC is a not-for-profit organisation committed to helping local communities enjoy 
and benefit from their local green spaces through exciting environmental opportunities.  
Working from their education base at Hollingworth Lake Visitor Centre, NatureEd offer high 
quality environmental education experiences at an affordable cost through a range of site-
based and outreach learning opportunities. 

Explore Your Environment provided eco-activity sessions for five local voluntary sector 
groups based in Pennines Township.  Participants were Wardle Brownies, 21st Rochdale 
(Dearnley) Brownies, 26th Rochdale (Milnrow) Brownies, 35th Rochdale (Newhey) Brownies 
and 24th Rochdale (Smithy Bridge) Brownies.  The sessions helped people to explore their 
local green spaces and to take an active role in caring for it.  Activities included bug hunting, 
making mini-beast homes, tree ID, creating decorations from natural materials, bird ID, 
making bird nesting stations and pond dipping.  Mini-beast homes and bird  
feeders created during the sessions have made physical improvements to  
the biodiversity of the local area. 

Page 136



NatureEd created a family-friendly Explore Your Environment map of Hare Hill Park and a 
new heritage activity.  The EYEspy Heritage Trail  
uses the map together with photographs and facts  
about features in the park to help local people  
to discover more about their local green space.   
The new resources have been shared with the  
Friends Group and they have been using the map for 
their events in the park.  A hard copy of the map  
has been made available for loan at Littleborough  
Library and members of the public can download  
their own copies free from NatureEd’s website. 

Young people who participated in the eco-activity 
sessions used the experience towards achieving their nature  
and wildlife badges.  NatureEd received 100% feedback rating from eco-activity group 
leaders about the activities with everyone expressing an interest in booking again.  The 
EYEspy resources for Hare Hill Park will encourage families to explore their local park, 
increasing physical exercise and having fun while learning about local heritage, so enhancing 
their health and wellbeing.  The Friends of Hare Hill Park are interested in using the Heritage 
Trail as part of their events programme and plan on developing other activities using the new 
map.  Explore Your Environment provided local people with the opportunity to get actively 
involved in understanding and caring for wildlife and raising environmental awareness. 

Wardle Brownies taking a close look at the 
wildlife living in the Sensory Garden at 

Hollingworth Lake then making homes for 
the mini-beasts to overwinter in 

“Wardle Brownies finding lots of creatures and having hands-on fun.  The 
Brownies favourites were holding snails, doing crafts and making bug 
houses” 

Leader for Wardle Brownies 

Page 137



Brownie Packs from Newhey and Milnrow finding out how birds build their nests and having a 
go themselves with clothes peg beaks, natural materials and clay eggs…then making nesting 
socks for the birds in their local area and own gardens 

Smithy Bridge Brownies finding out about the 
wildlife in the pond and woods in Ealees Valley 
(after their making bird nesting socks session 
was postponed due to the Beast for the East!) 

21st Rochdale Brownies learnt winter tree 
ID skills at St Andrew’s, Dearnley and made 
some fantastic traditional seasonal 
decorations from natural materials 

Page 138



“We have children who have specific needs 
and attending our Fun Days helps them in 
mixing and communicating with others who are 
not generally in their specific environment.  The 
Fun Days also give parents sometimes a much 
needed break during the long holidays” 
Deborah Davies 
Organiser/Treasurer/Secretary 
Cray Junior Activity Club 

Recipient: Cray Junior Activity Club 
Project: Summer Fun & Fitness Days 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £942.49 

Cray Junior Activity Club provides children with the opportunity to learn different skills and 
meet other children from local schools.  Club membership is open to all children from four 
years old who live on the Cray estate and immediate vicinity.  The club enables the children 
and young people to work together in a group environment to increase their self-confidence 
and awareness of other children’s needs.  Children are introduced to indoor/outdoor 
activities in a safe environment and encouraged to participate in activities of art, dance, team 
games, healthy eating, etc and trips to various establishments, ie farms, galleries, rock 
climbing, etc. 

Summer Fun & Fitness Days provided local children aged 4 to 14 years old with the 
opportunity to enjoy fun activities, healthy eating and exercise during the school holidays.  
The children engaged in sport with Link4Life coaches, circus skills workshop, learnt about 
birds of prey during a visit from Owl Rescue, created masks, lanterns and decorative 
coasters, clay modelling and painting in arts and crafts sessions, a lesson in Kai Zoku Hou 
kickboxing to learn basic self-defence in this martial art, making fruit kebabs and healthy 
sandwiches.  The sports encouraged the children to be more active and learn the 

Page 139



importance of teamwork.  Fruit kebabs and healthy sandwich making provided the children 
with an alternative to crisps, cakes and sweets as snacks.  Children realised their potential 
for creativity and imagination in crafting items to keep or gift to others.  Friendships were 
made as children of different ages and schools participated in the activities and the older 
children helped the younger club members. 

School holidays, especially the long summer breaks, can be isolating and boring for many 
children.  Cray Junior Activity Club delivered activities for local children that promoted 
healthy eating, regular exercise and acquiring new skills, knowledge and confidence.  The 
Summer Fun & Fitness Days gave the children experiences to broaden their horizons and 
great memories to embrace and share. 

“An average of 25 children came to each Fun Day had lots of fun and learnt 
new skills.  Word of mouth at schools has been a part of new children 
coming to the club” 

Deborah Davies, Organiser/Treasurer/Secretary, Cray Junior Activity Club 

Page 140



Page 141



“The refurbishment of the gallery has enabled 
us to put on a summer of high quality events, 
exhibitions and workshops.  Our excellent 
disabled access now means we can 
accommodate a wider demographic, 
especially for our ongoing programme of 
regular classes with the participants often 
having additional needs” 
Angela Tait 
Treasurer, Ebor Studio Group 

Recipient: Ebor Studio Group 
Project: Ebor Gallery Renovation 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £3,617 

Ebor Studio is an independent artist-run studio facility incorporating professional artist 
studios, sculpture resources and an informal educational programme.  The studio was 
originally built as ‘Ebor Mill’ around the 1870’s and it is a four storey building with well-
equipped workshop facilities and spacious accommodation.  The studio offers project 
opportunities and teaching resources catering for all levels of experience – regular classes 
and specialist short courses.  It is a productive environment for the creation of artistic works 
and promotes community engagement and education with a programme of exhibitions, 
residences and projects that benefit its members. 

In 2017 the gallery space on the ground floor of the studios was renovated and a portable 
ramp installed for accessibility.  Ebor Studio’s continued renovation of the building in 2018 
involved the opening up of the room next door to the gallery as a dedicated teaching/meeting 
room to free the gallery for a more diverse range of exhibitions as sculptural and installation 
shows were limited because of the multiple demands on the space.  For improved 
accessibility, changes were needed to the toilets and external/internal handrails.  Alterations 
to the toilets included fitting a wider door frame, altering the cubicle system to accommodate 
wheelchairs and removing and replacing one toilet with an accessible toilet with handrails. 

Ebor Studio’s refurbishment of the toilets will enable them to host a more extensive and 
inclusive range of classes and workshops with the improved accessibility of the building. 

Page 142



“The overall ‘food festival’ effect is very 
apparent – people are buzzing on the day 
and after the event, it really has a feel good 
factor and it gets people looking forward to 
subsequent events such as Rushbearing” 
Neela Jackson 
Voluntary Sub-Committee 
Member/Deputy Event Manager 
Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 

Recipient: Littleborough Food & Drink Festival Committee 
Project: Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2018 
Fund: Town Centre Fund 
Awarded: £2,155.64 

Littleborough Food & Drink Festival on Saturday 9 June 2018 saw unprecedented numbers 
of visitors come to Littleborough centre to enjoy the event.  Hare Hill Road and Victoria Street 
areas formed the ‘festival hub’, accommodating two undercover seating areas, over 20 food 
and drink stalls, an entertainment marquee, the cooking demonstration kitchen and face 
painting for children.  The Children’s Cookery School led by Andy McKay was developed this 
year to offer three sessions and more places for children – its popularity resulted in the 
places being filled within 48 hours of being advertised.  A fun, learning opportunity was 
provided to the children and their parent/guardian, engaging children with cookery, sparking 
an interest and inspiring them through working with a qualified and experienced chef. 

The demonstration kitchen gave local chefs from The Green Door Restaurant the opportunity 
to showcase their talents, provide informative demonstrations for the public to watch and 
show the audience how they too could cook something similar.  This year the demonstrations 
took an impromptu interactive twist which saw chefs set an ‘Omelette Challenge’ with 
members of the public.  A fun additional element enjoyed by all and also made extra use of 
the kitchen. 

The Festival aims to give all participating businesses, whether food related, goods or 

Page 143



services, the opportunity to showcase their products and services and promote themselves 
to a much wider audience than they would usually have on a regular Saturday.  Each shop is 
responsible for their own ideas, offers and level of participation with those businesses 
embracing it seeing the best return. 

Littleborough Food & Drink Festival, now in its fourth year, was again successful in achieving 
an event that attracted large numbers of people, local and from outside the area, putting 
Littleborough on the map and creating a thriving event for all to enjoy.  The festival brings 
together local businesses with mutual relationships and connections made and also the 
community comes together for a day of fun and food. 

After the success of this year’s festival, Littleborough Food & Drink Festival Sub Committee 
have set the date for the event in 2019.  Ideas to improve the event include a different site 
plan to encourage more visitors into shops and reduce queues, provide more children with 
the opportunity to attend Children’s Cookery School led again by Andy and Jade McKay of 
Littleborough Deli and encourage additional local chefs to join in the cookery demonstrations. 
The event area should ideally accommodate 25 food stalls and the entertainment marquee to 
have a raised stage with PA, the cooking demonstration kitchen, children’s cookery school 
and two seating areas for the public.  Festival organisers anticipate that the event will grow 
year on year providing they can maintain the support they have received. 

Page 144



“A ‘stand out’ exemplary business that fully embraced the event and 
made the most of their opportunities was Taystees, Victoria Street. 
Taystees, recently under new ownership with a new Caribbean menu, 
used the opportunity fully to promote themselves and the event. They 
promoted themselves in the run up to the festival, created menus to give 
out on the day, voucher deals, took their food outside their premises for 
people to taste, directed people to their premises and generally took a 
wholly positive attitude to the event. What is rewarding is that it provided 
the springboard to launch into events and much to our delight they joined 
in Littleborough Rushbearing Festival in July” 
Neela Jackson, Voluntary Sub-Committee Member/Deputy Event Manager 

Page 145



“Through past experience and reputation 
people know what a good scheme this is – 
local children were encouraged to join and 
parents wanted their child to be active 
throughout the summer holidays” 
Michelle Krauza, Library Officer - Digital & 
Young People and  
Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer 
Services Team Leader) 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 
Project: Fit, Feed and Read 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £1,801 

Smallbridge Library’s Fit, Feed and Read was an initiative delivered in partnership with 
Link4Life throughout the school summer holidays aimed principally at children aged 5-11 in 
receipt of free school meals who might not otherwise have a meal at lunchtime in the school 
holidays.  The children had an opportunity to read and discuss the books they are reading, 
participate in arts and crafts and get active with outdoor sports sessions.  Link4Life promoted 
the initiative to all local primary schools by attending assemblies with information leaflets and 
registration forms.  Libraries promoted the scheme through the local press and on social 
media.  Local early help services also referred families to the initiative; supporting families key 
workers, social workers, integrated neighbourhood teams and community safety teams. 

Mischief Makers was the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge for 2018 that aimed to 
get children into libraries to keep up their reading skills and confidence during the long 
holidays.  The Challenge has a different theme each year and children can read any book as 
long as they are borrowed from the library.  Children receive special rewards each time they 
read a book and every child that completes the challenge is awarded a certificate and a  

Page 146



medal.  The Summer Reading Challenge is open to all primary school aged children and is 
designed for all reading abilities. All local primary schools are contacted and given 
resources to work with their local library to actively promote the National Reading Initiative.  
Every child is given information regarding the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge and 
encouraged to take part. 

Celebrating the 80th anniversary of the much loved comic, Beano, Mischief Makers Summer 
Reading Challenge provided each child who signed up with their own map of Beanotown to 
help Dennis, Gnasher and friends to find mysterious buried treasure.  By reading and visiting 
the library, children received stickers to discover where the treasure is hiding plus a medal 
and a certificate when they read any six books over the summer holidays.  Mischief Makers 
had a dedicated website for children taking part in the Challenge that allowed them to keep 
track of the books they read, write book reviews, enter competitions and chat to other 
readers. 

Children got up to all sorts of mischief enjoying craft activities and workshops from creating 
Dennis the Menace hair and mask, a Dennis in a box, a Bananaman shooter, Beano skittles, 
designing a cartoon character competition, designing a Fit, Feed and Read logo and a comic 
storyboard workshop.  Entertainment included Storytelling with Can ‘O’ Worms, Skylight 
Circus, John Piper’s Puppets, Craig Bradley the Poet, The Zoo Lab and Cartoon Storyboard 
Creations with Cat Jessop. 

Multi-sport coaches delivered the sport sessions utilising space in and around the library and 
Rochdale Supply Agency (RoSA) with Libraries’ staff and young volunteers facilitated the 
Read and Feed sessions.  The Fit, Feed and Read initiative provided the opportunity for 
young people to volunteer and develop new skills that will help them with their college and job 
applications. 

Page 147



Libraries partnership with Link4Life enabled resources to be optimised and offer a wider 
provision to those children who needed it.  A free meal for those children who might 
encounter difficulty receiving lunch when not in school was facilitated through a link 
established with FareShare (a charity that helps organisations working with people who could 
go hungry by distributing surplus food from the food industry).  A local caterer prepared and 
delivered a variety of sandwiches alongside the food from Fareshare to guarantee each child 
received a lunch and not be solely reliant on the fluctuating quantity of surplus food.  Tesco 
also provided a one-off supply of fresh fruit which was distributed between participating 
libraries and sports locations.  Over 332 meals were offered to the young people who 
attended the Fit, Feed and Read sessions across the borough. 

Fit, Feed and Read has attracted young people into the library to experience reading for 
pleasure, inspire their creativity, develop relationships with others and get active.  The 
provision of a free lunch has ensured some consistency for those children who are in receipt 
of free school meals. 

The scheme in 2018 was a success.  Key benefits: 
 Enhanced and supported mission for all children to read widely and for pleasure
 Encouraged parental engagement and family involvement in reading
 Helped schools make links with their local library and the wider community
 Was intrinsically inclusive and contributed to the achievement of ALL pupils,

including SEN disadvantaged pupils and the most able
 Prevention of the tendency for children’s reading to dip over the holidays
 Ensured consistency of the provision of a free lunch for those children in receipt

of free school meals

Michelle Krauza (Library Officer - Digital & Young People & Libraries) and 
Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer Services Team Leader) 

Page 148



“…we achieved fantastic results including 2018 
Champion Leader in the Dinky section, 2018 
Champions in the Tinies section, and runner up 
Troupe of the year for our Seniors” 
Joan Jones 
Treasurer 
Milnrow Morris Troupe

Recipient: Milnrow Morris Troupe 
Project: Morris Dancing Championships 2018 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £1,500 

Milnrow Morris Troupe was formed in 1983 to teach the traditional art of Morris dancing that 
has its origins in the industrial towns of the region.  In the 19th century the dances often 
accompanied the local rushcarts or Rose Queen carnivals, or were performed during Wakes 
Weeks, when the local mills closed for the week.  The troupe of 30 dancers meets every 
Thursday to practice the four teams and socialise.  Milnrow Morris Troupe is run by 
volunteers and the teams regularly participate in displays and carnivals.  Members of the 
troupe all work extremely hard throughout the year to attend the annual championships. 

East Lancashire Morris Dancing Championships was held at Pontins in Prestatyn over the 
weekend of 12 to 15 October 2018.  The competition provided the girls/dancers from Milnrow 
Morris Troupe with the opportunity to experience the excitement of participating in the annual 
end of the season championships.  The troupe achieved Champion Leader in the Dinky 
section, Champions in the Tinies section and the Seniors obtained runner up Troupe of the 
year.  The amazing achievements of the troupe at the Championships has resulted in an 
influx of new dancers.  Families and friends of the troupe members joined them at the 
competition and shared their successes and it was truly a community occasion. 

Page 149



“People were very complimentary about 
what we were doing and some called on 
the sites every day to see progress.  It 
was very encouraging for our members” 
Ray Smith 
Chair 
Pennines in Bloom

Recipient: Pennines in Bloom 
Project: Pennines in Bloom 2018 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £5,000 

Pennines in Bloom aims to promote the development of new and existing facilities in all 
areas of Pennines Township to create and restore the environment.  A voluntary group 
consisting of representatives from across the community are working towards sustainable, 
long term environmental improvements that will benefit the local community and nurture 
understanding, appreciation and respect of our natural landscapes and the build 
environment. 

Summer bedding plants and shrubs for landscaping/planting schemes across Pennines 
Township have been provided to create attractive horticultural displays and support the 
Pennines in Bloom’s entry to the RHS North West in Bloom Competition 2018 that rewards 
horticultural excellence, community involvement, environmental friendliness and 
sustainability.  An established team of volunteers have worked in partnership with schools, 
community groups, businesses and Rochdale Council’s Environmental Management to 
enhance existing green spaces and create new horticultural features.  Planting schemes 
were created at Littleborough Fire Station, Smithy Bridge Library, Littleborough Canal Side, 
Littleborough Village Medical Centre, Milnrow Precinct, Milnrow Library, Hare & Hounds 
Public House and Globe Public House in Wardle, Wardle Library and the Play Area with a 
beautiful mix of blooms selected to complement the locations from Trailing Golden Nepeta in 
the boat planters to Antirrhinum along the railings at Littleborough Fire Station.  Three new 
boat planters (two on Hollingworth Road and one at Durn Lock) were features that enabled 
the Pennines in Bloom members to showcase their horticultural abilities. 

Page 150



RHS North West in Bloom recognised the efforts of Pennines in Bloom with a Gold Medal in 
the category Large Town with individual awards of Gold for Hollingworth Lake Country Park, 
Silver Gilt for Wardle Village as Best Large Village and Milnrow Memorial Park for RHS Parks 
Award.  Empowerment of the local community to make a difference to their green spaces and 
where they live ensures our environment is safeguarded for the future. 

Canal side at Hollingworth Road, Littleborough 

The Globe Public House, Wardle 

Littleborough Fire Station Crab apple trees, Wardle 

Page 151



“…works will certainly now assist our 
mixed community club to evolve and 
prosper for the good of everyone locally” 
Ken Davies MBE 
Club Chairman 
Milnrow (Ladybarn) Bowling Club 

Recipient: Milnrow (Ladybarn) Bowling Club 
Project: Milnrow (Ladybarn) Bowling Club Car Park Development 
Fund: Capital Fund 
Awarded: £6,000 

Milnrow (Ladybarn) Bowling Club is a community bowling and social club that aims to 
provide facilities for the local community and their guests to enjoy the game of crown green 
bowls.  This social activity is enjoyed by young and old (members aged from 8 to 80 plus) 
with the sport encouraging mutual understanding and respect between the generations.  
Crown green bowls provides the opportunity for young people to participate in this 
diversionary activity plus it is a socially inclusive sport for older people. 

Land adjacent to the main disabled access path into Milnrow (Ladybarn) Bowling Club was 
gifted to the club from a developer and the club have taken the opportunity to create eleven 
parking spaces and one disabled parking bay on this land to enhance the facilities for 
members, guests, visiting groups and the local community.  Work commenced on site after 
a lengthy legal transaction to acquire the gifted land.  The contractor laid a tarmac surface, 
installed concrete kerbs, marked out the parking bays with thermoplastic white lines, placed 
parking signage on the site and constructed a path from the car park to the entrance gate of 
the Bowling Green to ensure accessibility. 

Milnrow (Ladybarn) Bowling Club with about 100 members and 10 teams is a thriving club 
and the additional parking provision has been welcomed by visiting groups and the local 
community who can take advantage of the ‘open member’ facilities offered by the club.  The 
club’s enhanced access to the entrance and garden area was recognised in the RHS North 
West in Bloom 2018 It’s Your Neighbourhood competition with a Level 5 Outstanding 
Award. 

Page 152



“…this has significantly improved the 
area and thus the enjoyment of visitors to 
the Enviro Gym” 
Jane Taylor-Holmes 
Secretary 
Friends of Hollingworth Lake 

Recipient: Friends of Hollingworth Lake 
Project: Enviro Gym Improvements 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £2,828 

Friends of Hollingworth Lake aim to develop new and existing facilities at Hollingworth Lake 
Country Park to improve, create and restore the environment of the area and increase 
usage of this valued local beauty spot.  Hollingworth Lake Country Park was known as “The 
Weighvers Seaport” in Victorian times and spans 130 acres with the beautiful Blackstone 
Edge moorland providing a dramatic backdrop.  The Country Park is a prime tourist 
destination for the Rochdale Borough and beyond, with numerous activities that promote 
the preservation of the environment, ensure the potential for tourism is realised, while 
encouraging responsible public use and support for green infrastructure investment.  
Signage about local flora and fauna is located in relevant locations around the park to 
enable visitors to enjoy the wildlife and many species of plants.  Rangers with the help of 
green volunteers conduct wildlife surveys and monitor species at this beautiful location.  
Working in partnership with local schools, educational programmes are developed and 
delivered that create a greater understanding and awareness of the importance of the 
nature areas, wildlife and environment for future generations.  Hollingworth Lake Country 
Park hosts wildlife safaris for young children, bush craft skills events, guided walks, 
community arts, environmental exhibitions, angling, rowing, sailing and boating sessions. 

The Enviro Gym was installed at Hollingworth Lake in 2010 and it features a variety of 
equipment for children up to 15 years old to explore and challenge themselves with different 
obstacles.  The equipment constructed primarily out of wood is in keeping with the environment 
of Hollingworth Lake Country Park and provides users of the Enviro Gym with the opportunity to 
be active in safe and pleasant surroundings. 

Page 153



The Friends of group organised the creation of paths to enhance the access areas to the 
Enviro Gym.  Grassed areas were replaced with rubber mulch constructed of recycled 
material that has an appearance of bark to provide a slip resistant and wheelchair or pram 
accessible natural looking surface.  Also the water permeable safety surface was placed 
beneath some items of play equipment as it offered a durable solution to issues with 
drainage and child fall protection.  Turf was installed to reinstate grassed areas near the 
new paths that had become worn and unsightly.  Improvement works to the Enviro Gym 
have enhanced the visitor experience and ensured the facility is accessible and can be 
enjoyed all year round. 

Page 154



“…unexpected difference that the new 
decoration and curtains have made to the 
feel of the space.  The Trust could not be 
more pleased with the outcome in terms of 
the way the room now looks” 
Mark Pearson 
Secretary 
Littleborough Coach House Trust 

Recipient: Littleborough Coach House Trust 
Project: Littleborough Coach House Harvey Room Refurbishment 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £2,340 

Littleborough Coach House Trust is a registered charity with the custodian of a Grade 2 
listed building of architectural and historical interest within an important conservation area in 
the heart of the Littleborough community.  The Trust is managed by a voluntary Board of 
Directors and supported by a voluntary Friends of organisation.  Open to the public daily, 
Littleborough Coach House is a heritage centre with tourist information, gallery space for 
local artists and craft displays, venue for community groups to meet and host public events 
with the Harvey Room and Victoria Room function/conferences spaces with an area for 
provision of refreshments and licensed bar.  Cherry Tree Café offers a range of drinks, 
snacks and light meals to visitors and caters for meetings and events. 

A programme of refurbishment in the Coach House consisting of new flooring to the main 
staircase and first floor lobby, loft access for storage, security gate and external signage has 
been resourced from a mixture of the Trust’s own funds and grant aid.  The principal 
function/meeting room for local groups and events known as the Harvey Room required 
redecoration and the replacement of curtains and track/poles to freshen the appearance of 
this meeting space.  This room is used on a regular basis each week as a venue for local 
tutors to deliver classes primarily relating to health/relaxation and it is made available on a 
quarterly basis for the Craft Market to complement the Farmers Market as well as throughout 
the year for weddings, christenings and other parties.  Walls throughout the room were 
painted cream and eight pairs of curtains in the design Memphis Aqua Blue on steel poles 
have been installed.  The Harvey Room has been given a more attractive, modern feel 
creating a pleasant environment for community groups and private hire users, and ensuring 
the income stream required by the Coach House Trust to continue its work in the 
community. 

Page 155



APPENDIX 2 

“The children’s reaction and interaction was 
quite wonderful to see.  All thoroughly enjoyed 
the sessions and have been interested in our 
other activities” 
Johanna Yeomans 
Senior Library Assistant 
Rochdale Central Library 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 
Project: Little Bookworms 
Fund: Members Fund 
Awarded: £150 

Little Bookworms is an interactive storytelling session for young children which brings books 
to life through performing arts.  Rochdale Central Library organised sessions in Autumn and 
Spring delivered by a qualified drama teacher.  Each week Little Bookworms explored a new 
book using puppets and props with activities such as action songs, singing, dancing, messy 
play, sensory drama and arts and crafts.  The sessions promoted positive relationships with 
books and reading, introduced new words to extend vocabulary, encouraged exploration and 
imaginative role play and enhanced speaking and listening skills. 

‘The Gingerbread Man’ and ‘We’re Going on a Bear  
Hunt’ were the books selected for each of the storytelling 
sessions.  Children under 5 and their parents/carers  
were encouraged to participate in  the storytelling  
through interaction and drama; the children joined  
in the story by exploring the sensory areas set up  
by storyteller.  Even the very young children were  
totally engaged in the story and the activities.  The  
sessions have really helped encourage early literacy  
skills and the development of a love of reading. 

Page 156



“The children had an absolutely fab time on their bear hunt!  Thank you 
again for supporting Rochdale Central Library to put on these fantastic 
sessions which really encourage early literacy and the development of a 
love of reading” 

Joanna Yeomans 
Senior Library & Information Assistant 

Page 157



“We felt the project had successfully given 
people a high quality experience, raising their 
awareness of their local area and inspiring 
them to get involved in its long term care” 
Jude Murray 
Director 
NatureEd CIC 

Recipient: NatureEd CIC 
Project: Explore Your Environment 
Fund: Clean & Green Priority Fund 
Awarded: £1,450 

NatureEd CIC is a not-for-profit organisation committed to helping local communities enjoy 
and benefit from their local green spaces through exciting environmental opportunities.  
Working from their education base at Hollingworth Lake Visitor Centre, NatureEd offer high 
quality environmental education experiences at an affordable cost through a range of site-
based and outreach learning opportunities. 

Explore Your Environment provided eco-activity sessions for five local voluntary sector 
groups based in different wards of Rochdale Township.  Participants were Norden Ladybirds 
& Brownies, Spotland Cubs, Sparth Saturday Club, Heybrook Families and Bamford 
Rainbows.  The sessions helped people to explore their local green spaces and to take an 
active role in caring for it.  Activities included bug hunting, making mini-beast  
homes, tree ID, creating decorations from natural materials, bird ID treasure  
hunt, making bird feeders, a spring scavenger hunt and making bird nesting  
stations.  Bird feeders and nesting stations created during the sessions have  
made physical improvements to the biodiversity of the local area. 

Bamford Rainbows learning about birds then making nesting socks for the birds in the Chapel 
Grounds and their own gardens 

Page 158



NatureEd created a family-friendly Explore Your Environment map of Balderstone Park and a 
new heritage activity.  The EYEspy Heritage Trail  
uses the map together with photographs and facts  
about features in the park to help local people  
to discover more about their local green space.   
The new resources have been shared with the  
Friends Group and nearby schools.  A hard  
copy of the map has been made available for loan  
at Balderstone Library and members of the  
public can download their own copies free  
from NatureEd’s website. 

Young people who participated in the eco-activity 
sessions used the experience towards achieving their nature  
and wildlife badges.  NatureEd received 100% feedback rating from eco-activity group 
leaders about the activities with everyone expressing an interest in booking again.  The 
EYEspy resources for Balderstone Park will encourage families to explore their local park, 
increasing physical exercise and having fun while learning about local heritage, so enhancing 
their health and wellbeing.  The Friends of Balderstone Park are interested in using the 
Heritage Trail as part of their events programme and plan on developing other activities using 
the new map.  Explore Your Environment provided local people with the opportunity to get 
actively involved in understanding and caring for wildlife and raising environmental 
awareness. 

Norden Brownies & 
Ladybirds taking a close 

look at the wildlife living in 
the green space on Black 
Pitts then making some 
homes for mini beasts to 

overwinter in. 

“Absolutely fantastic, it is an activity we will do again with the group 10/10” 

Leader of Norden Ladybirds & Brownies about mini beast hunt in the rain 

Page 159



“Participants have shared their experiences with others including family, friends and 
colleagues.  Parents of the Bamford Rainbows said lots of the girls had gone home 
talking about what they had done and how interesting it was.  The Norden Brownies 
Leader was going to repeat the activity at the school in Rochdale where they taught. 
Heybrook Sure Start shared details of the activity with other families on Twitter and 
one of the parents felt their children had enjoyed themselves so much that they 
subsequently joined in a Forest School session at Ealees Woods” 
Jude Murray 
Director, NatureEd CIC 

Spotland Cubs 
learning winter tree 

ID skills while making 
some fantastic 

traditional seasonal 
decorations from 
natural materials 

Sparth Saturday Club learning bird ID 
skills and making bird feeders in 
preparation for the RSPB Big Garden Bird 
Watch 

Heybrook 
families braving 
a hailstorm 
while on their 
hunt to find out 
which birds visit 
their outdoor 
play area… 

“It was so nice to look at what’s 
outside.  My child had really good 

concentration.  What a fab session” 

Parent about Heybrook Bird ID 

…while back indoors, making some 
feeders to help the birds survive the 
rest of winter 

Page 160



      

“The new PXB is designed for significantly 
faster rescue times, improved safety and 
reduces demands on staff, enabling them 
to continue to monitor other swimmers and 
perform key roles in a rescue situation” 
Jo Potts 
Facility Manager 
Castleton Health & Leisure CIC 

 
Recipient: Castleton Health & Leisure CIC 
Project: Castleton Swimming Pool PXB & Cover 
Fund: Ward Fund 
Awarded: £990 & £1,715 
 
Castleton Health & Leisure CIC is a not-for-profit organisation providing a wide range of 
treatments, services, classes, training, education and workshops to benefit the Castleton 
community.  Castleton Baths was closed to the public for almost a year before re-opening as 
Castleton Health & Leisure Centre mornings, evenings and weekends.  Local schools use 
the pool for swimming lessons and galas.  Castleton Swimming Club has been reinstated 
and Aquabears train in the pool.  The building’s maintenance and improving the facilities is a 
priority such as reinstating the public viewing gallery above the pool. 
 
A Pool Extraction Board (PXB) was funded to ensure faster rescue times for users of the 
swimming pool and reduce manual handling demands placed on staff whilst extracting a 
casualty from the water.  Effective safety equipment gives the community peace of mind 
whilst enjoying the facilities.  The existing swimming pool cover was unusable 
(worn/damaged).  A new cover reduces heating costs by 15-20% plus contributes to reducing 
their carbon footprint.  The savings in heating costs can be reinvested into the pool facilities. 

Page 161



“Through past experience and reputation 
people know what a good scheme this is – 
local children were encouraged to join and 
parents wanted their child to be active 
throughout the summer holidays” 
Michelle Krauza, Library Officer - Digital 
& Young People and  
Penny Butterworth (Libraries & 
Customer Services Team Leader) 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 
Project: Fit, Feed and Read at Balderstone Library 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £2,363 

Balderstone Library’s Fit, Feed and Read was an initiative delivered in partnership with 
Link4Life throughout the school summer holidays (30 July to 7 September 2018) aimed 
principally at children aged 5-11 in receipt of free school meals who might not otherwise have 
a meal at lunchtime in the school holidays.  The children had an opportunity to read and 
discuss the books they are reading, participate in arts and crafts and get active with outdoor 
sports sessions.  Link4Life promoted the initiative to all local primary schools by attending 
assemblies with information leaflets and registration forms.  Libraries promoted the scheme 
through the local press and on social media.  Local early help services also referred families to 
the initiative; supporting families key workers, social workers, integrated neighbourhood teams 
and community safety teams. 

Mischief Makers was the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge for 2018 that aimed to 
get children into libraries to keep up their reading skills and confidence during the long 
holidays.  The Challenge has a different theme each year and children can read any book as 
long as they are borrowed from the library.  Children receive special rewards each time they 
read a book and every child that completes the challenge is awarded a certificate and a  

Page 162



  

 
medal.  The Summer Reading Challenge is open to all primary school aged children and is 
designed for all reading abilities. All local primary schools are contacted and given resources  
to work with their local library to actively promote the National Reading Initiative.  Every child 
is given information regarding the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge and encouraged 
to take part. 
 

Celebrating the 80th anniversary of the much loved comic, Beano, Mischief Makers Summer 
Reading Challenge provided each child who signed up with their own map of Beanotown to 
help Dennis, Gnasher and friends to find mysterious buried treasure.  By reading and visiting 
the library, children received stickers to discover where the treasure is hiding plus a medal and 
a certificate when they read any six books over the summer holidays.  Mischief Makers had a 
dedicated website for children taking part in the Challenge that allowed them to keep track of 
the books they read, write book reviews, enter competitions and chat to other readers. 
 

Children got up to all sorts of mischief enjoying craft activities and workshops from creating 
Dennis the Menace hair and mask, a Dennis in a box, a Bananaman shooter, Beano skittles, 
designing a cartoon character competition, designing a Fit, Feed and Read logo and a comic 
storyboard workshop.  Entertainment included Storytelling with Can ‘O’ Worms, Skylight 
Circus, John Piper’s Puppets, Craig Bradley the Poet, The Zoo Lab and Cartoon Storyboard 
Creations with Cat Jessop. 
 

Multi-sport coaches delivered the sport sessions utilising space in and around the library and 
Rochdale Supply Agency (RoSA) with Libraries’ staff and young volunteers facilitated the Read 
and Feed sessions.  The Fit, Feed and Read initiative provided the opportunity for young 
people to volunteer and develop new skills that will help them with their college and job 
applications. 

Page 163



  

 
Libraries partnership with Link4Life enabled resources to be optimised and offer a wider 
provision to those children who needed it.  A free meal for those children who might encounter 
difficulty receiving lunch when not in school was facilitated through a link established with 
FareShare (a charity that helps organisations working with people who could go hungry by 
distributing surplus food from the food industry).  A local caterer prepared and delivered a 
variety of sandwiches alongside the food from Fareshare to guarantee each child received a 
lunch and not be solely reliant on the fluctuating quantity of surplus food.  Tesco also provided 
a one-off supply of fresh fruit which was distributed between participating libraries and sports 
locations.  Over 332 meals were offered to the young people who attended the Fit, Feed and 
Read sessions across the borough. 
 
Fit, Feed and Read has attracted young people into the library to experience reading for 
pleasure, inspire their creativity, develop relationships with others and get active.  The 
provision of a free lunch has ensured some consistency for those children who are in receipt of 
free school meals. 

The scheme in 2018 was a success.  Key benefits: 
 Enhanced and supported mission for all children to read widely and for pleasure 
 Encouraged parental engagement and family involvement in reading 
 Helped schools make links with their local library and the wider community 
 Was intrinsically inclusive and contributed to the achievement of ALL pupils, 

including SEN disadvantaged pupils and the most able 
 Prevention of the tendency for children’s reading to dip over the holidays 
 Ensured consistency of the provision of a free lunch for those children in receipt of 

free school meals 
 
Michelle Krauza (Library Officer - Digital & Young People & Libraries) and 
Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer Services Team Leader) 

Page 164



“Bringing different groups from all over 
the community was a huge chance to 
help reduce isolation, socialise with new 
faces, improve mental wellbeing and 
learn and educate each other on different 
cultures” 
Hayley Tomlinson 
Community Builder, The Big Life 
Group 

Recipient: The Big Life Group 
Project: Community Engagement Knitting Event 
Fund: Communities & Engagement Priority Fund 
Awarded: £1,000 

The Big Life Group consists of social businesses, services and charities that offer a range of 
opportunities that help people to improve their own lives that include employment, family 
support, housing, lifestyle and behaviour change, health and wellbeing, mental health 
support, child care and volunteering.  Living Well Rochdale is a community-based health and 
wellbeing and prevention service that supports people using behaviour change techniques, 
to make positive lifestyle changes.  The service values and builds on the skills, knowledge, 
connections and the potential that all people and communities have to offer. 

A community engagement event organised in Rochdale  
Town Hall on 20 March 2019 was an opportunity for knitting, 
crocheting and cross stitch/needle craft groups to mix  
with people from different communities, share their talents,  
skills, knowledge and achievements, and change  
perceptions in the wider community about these hobbies. 
The participants also were able to learn and interact with 
different services such as Living Well, Link4Life and  
Mind who work to have a positive impact on their  
wellbeing. 

Page 165



“The highlight to me would be looking out across the whole of the room in the Town 
Hall to a room full of smiling faces, being proud of their hard work and skills and 
communicating with new people, creating new friendships, surrounded with the bright 
colours of the things knitted and being showcased.  I would also highlight the sheer 
creativity the knitters of Rochdale have shown, from knitted clothing, to knitted chicks 
and rabbits, to blankets, premature baby garments, hats, scarves, knitted fruit bowls 
and veg baskets, to the digestive system being knitted, a blood transfusion stand, a 
poppy river, afternoon tea - the list is endless.  I was amazed and inspired” 
Hayley Tomlinson 
Community Builder, The Big Life Group 

Organisations who have received donations from these groups were invited to the event to 
meet, network and thank the groups for all their continuous hard work and dedication.  It was 
a chance for homeless services, premature baby wards and local churches to put a face to 
the donators.  It was also an opportunity for organisations to know what is available and to 
know where to refer clients to in the future. 

The event created and promoted community cohesion with different ethnicities, ages and 
genders who made up the membership of the groups sharing their skills and passion in their 
chosen crafts. 

Page 166



  

“We set out to show people that Rochdale has 
some wonderful green spaces and parks and 
that between them they offer something for 
everyone.  Parks are not just about exercise; 
they are about bringing people together across 
the whole community and enjoying food and the 
company of your neighbours” 
Tracie Powers 
Director, Vintage Worx Community 
Development Trust 

 
Recipient: Vintage Worx Community Development Trust 
Project: Wonderful Versatile Parks 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £6,849 
 
Vintage Worx (a community led voluntary group based in Falinge Park) delivers services, 
activities and projects that aim to improve personal development, increase skill levels, assist 
unemployed people to gain sustainable employment, reduce isolation and increase social 
interaction and improve community cohesion.  Local residents from predominantly the 
Falinge, Spotland and North Central wards can participate in their job club, attend training 
courses, undertake personal development projects and access support services.  Weekly 
workshops in card-making, glass painting, ceramic mosaics, upcycling, textiles, photography, 
art for beginners, sweet-making and digital inclusion reduce isolation and encourage people 
to get involved in arts and crafts.  A programme with a holistic approach to tackling obesity is 
available consisting of a twice weekly weight management plan that includes nutrition advice, 
weigh-in, rebound fitness and Zumba classes, health walks and healthy cooking classes.  
Vintage Worx also deliver a weekly gardening club, ESOL classes, and offer community 
enterprise and community group advice sessions.  Twelve community events are organised 
in the park each year with different themes and activities and Vintage Worx operates a 
community café which offers work experience opportunities to young people of the borough. 

Page 167



Vintage Worx delivered a number of events in Falinge Park aimed at promoting the 
advantages, convenience and sheer value of using local parks to improve health and 
wellbeing, family cohesion and community interaction with the objective of encouraging more 
people to use their parks on a regular and repeating basis. 

Page 168



  

“With one of the hottest summers on record the community events held in Falinge 
Park brought people of all ages, backgrounds, ethnicities and abilities together from 
across the borough and allowed us to showcase one of Rochdale’s beautiful green 
spaces.  Attendance figures at all events bar the Fun Run were in excess of 400. The 
Fun Run had a lower attendance but the fact that it was held on the hottest day of the 
year may have contributed to this.  However on the back of the Fun Run we now hold 
a monthly PARK RUN and the numbers from this are steadily growing” 
Tracie Powers 
Director, Vintage Worx Community Development Trust 

 
A family fun run with intermittent inflatable obstacles to encourage families to utilise their 
park for health and fitness attracted people of all abilities.  A monthly Park Run on the first 
Sunday of the month now takes place in Falinge Park with 1 mile, 2 mile or 5 kilometres for 
experienced runners to enhance their fitness levels or the beginners to run at their own pace 
and enjoy their surroundings. 
 
It’s a Knockout (Junior Edition) encouraged children aged 11-16 to set aside their 
PlayStations and Xboxes and enjoy a full day of physical activity in their local park.  Teams 
competed across an eye-catching array of colourful inflatable obstacles that filled the main 
field of Falinge Park.  This event aimed to bring a diverse range of people and groups 
together, improve community cohesion particularly amongst young people and offer 
participants an enjoyable physical challenge. 
 
Around the world community celebration on Sunday 22 July 2018 was a festival with 
international food and crafts that aimed to enhance the understanding of different countries’ 
traditions whether this be cuisine, dance, costume or crafts.  Representatives from 18 
different countries (Ukraine, France, Guinea Bissau, Guinea Conakry, Portugal, Spain, Cape 
Verde, Angola, Pakistan, England, Sao Tome & Principe and Jamaica, Nigeria, Poland, 
Greece, Italy, Congo and Brazil) attended the festival with stalls showcasing traditional 
dishes to sample and displays of national dress and crafts.  The Ukrainian Club created a 
wonderful heritage display with a “typical home layout” with embroidered tablecloths and 
national dress plus they hosted craft workshops.  Children and their families were 
entertained throughout the day with crafts activities, a puppet show, children’s theatre 
workshops, dance performances and music. 
 
The series of events concluded with a showcase of Rochdale’s talented young people with 
Footlight Theatre’s dancing displays, improv-sketches and beautiful singing.  High Crompton 
Morris Dancers delivered a fantastic and varied performance and drummers from Guinea 
entertained with awesome sounds. 
 
The variety of events ensured a wider spectrum of visitors attended with many visiting the 
park for the first time.  Leaflets and pamphlets made available at the events promoted the 
parks and attractions around Rochdale to encourage support for these important green 
spaces. 

Page 169



 

“The stumpery has featured in both the 
North West in Bloom and Britain in Bloom 
competitions, both competitions of which 
Rochdale received a gold award” 
Michael Buczman 
Denehurst Park Project Development 
Officer, Rochdale Borough Council 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Environmental Management 
Project: The Stumpery at Denehurst Park 
Fund: Ward Fund 
Awarded: £1,000 

Denehurst Park has been transformed over the past few years with new paths around the 
entire park, restored formal garden, two fruit orchards, scrumping lane, Troll bridges, 
wildflower meadow and pirate themed play area.  Friends of Denehurst Park and Rochdale 
Council’s Environmental Management wished to create a new feature in the park opposite 
Denehurst House to add interest to the formal garden area of the park. 

The Victorian style stumpery in Denehurst Park required logs, stumps and interesting pieces 
of timber to be added and arranged to complete the structure.  Topsoil was imported to build 
up the different areas of the stumpery for a creative planting scheme including plants such as 
Ferns, Foxgloves, Hostas, Hellebore, Primrose, Epimedium and Native English Bluebells.  
The first stage of the stumpery was planted by students from Redwood Secondary School and 
the second stage was planted by volunteers who work in the park every week over the spring 
and summer months.  A formal gravel path was constructed to meander through and around 
the stumpery to allow park visitors to view the feature and improve accessibility to this part of 
the park as it was only accessible via the old steps leading up to the raised platform. 

The stumpery was planted with Ferns, Foxgloves, 
Hostas, Hellebore, Primrose, Epimedium, Native 
English Bluebells, Lungwort, Solomon's Seal, 
Japanese Anemone, Astilbe and Hart’s Tongue Fern 

Page 170



The new landscape feature has been welcomed by the community/park visitors as different, 
creative and ecologically friendly.  The feature enhances the shaded area of the park with 
plants selected to ensure they would thrive and provide much needed colour.  With the 
addition of a formal path in the stumpery (through an area that was waterlogged a majority of 
the year), it has enabled people to view a part of the park they would otherwise not venture.  
The new path leads from the far side of the raised platform to bypass the steps and connect 
with the tarmac path through the trees on the other side.  This area of the park with its new 
paths and access ramp is now accessible to all and the stumpery was the setting for the 
inaugural Easter egg hunt hosted in April 2019 enjoyed by over 300 children. 

The stumpery is a Victorian style feature 
similar to a rockery but made from parts of 
dead trees instead.  Some stumps used 
weighed close to a ton.  Over 45 tons of top 
soil was imported to raise the levels around 
the feature stumps and ensure the plants 
were given the right environment to grow in.  
The stumpery is a perfect habitat for several 
types of wildlife and they are known to host 
small mammals, toads, stag beetles and 
numerous insects. 

Page 171



 

 

 

 

  “Feedback has revealed our visitors 
valued the opportunity we created – that 
of interaction with scientific researchers 
and the diversity of attractions we had to 
offer” 
Mohammed Rahman 
Project Leader/Volunteer 
Wardleworth Community Centre 

 
Recipient: Wardleworth Community Centre 
Project: Rochdale Science Extravaganza 
Fund: Communities & Engagement Priority Fund 
Awarded: £1,226 
 
Wardleworth Community Centre aims to improve the quality of life of the local community 
through the provision of educational, social welfare, leisure and recreational services.  
Working in partnership with statutory and voluntary organisations, the centre delivers a wide 
variety of activities and events to support the needs of local residents such as a multi faith 
luncheon club for over 50’s, IT skills courses, driving theory training, play scheme, Talk 
English classes, job club, youth clubs for boys and girls and welfare advice sessions. 
 
On Sunday 10 March 2019 Wardleworth Community Centre hosted a Rochdale Science 
Extravaganza to celebrate science with support and advice from the British Science 
Association about providing entertaining and engaging activities for people of all ages.  
Rochdale Science Extravaganza’s theme this year was Women in Science to enlighten 
participants of how women are taking great strides in science, how they made breakthrough 
discoveries in the past and look to shape the future.  Exhibitions, demonstrations and 
presentations to educate and inspire the local community were a theatrical science show, 
exotic live animal zoo exhibition, experiments conducted inside a mobile science lab, 

Page 172



planetarium to wonder at the night sky, ‘Dippy on the road’ stall and women in science Q&A 
hosted by women working in a variety of science fields including a Clinical Biochemist, 
Audiologist, Science Teachers, Research Fellow in Bio-Mechanics and Occupational 
Therapist.  Presentations were given by event founder Labib Rahman, Hajrah Matlub 
(Nuclear Medicine Technologist) and Habiba Begum (Bio Scientist working for Cancer 
Research UK, Manchester Institute). 

Rochdale Science Extravaganza each year endeavours to boost the diversity and inclusivity 
of science with their inspirational exhibitions and presentations to engage the under-
represented into science. 

Page 173



“Because of the barriers such as language, culture and economical marginalisation, 
people of our community seldom engage with science.  It’s a privilege to be able to 
create opportunities for people of our community to get scientific entertainment and 
engagement.  It was wonderful to see women wearing hijabs and young people 
engrossed with all the activities” 
Mohammed Rahman 
Project Leader/Volunteer 
Wardleworth Community Centre 

Page 174



“…seeing the children experimenting 
and trying anything and everything with 
the Lego and just enjoying it all, with 
the added bonus of getting books out 
afterwards and becoming regular 
Library users” 
Angela Butcher 
Senior Library & Information 
Assistant, Norden Library 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 
Project: Norden Library Lego Club 
Fund: Members Fund 
Awarded: £716.27 

Norden Library is a community hub for various groups/individuals and organisations with 
resources made available to help people gain access to free information, learn, improve their 
wellbeing and aspire.  The library is an integral part of the community in bringing people 
young and old from all backgrounds together to create a fun, safe and learning environment 
for everyone. 

The Lego Club established at Norden Library with sessions every Saturday between 10am 
and 12pm has proved very popular with both children and adults, attracting new young 
members including boys who are underrepresented.  Children and their parents/carers are 
encouraged to be more innovative together and the club supports the national curriculum as 
part of STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths) that promotes creativity, 
problem solving, enhances communication skills, develops critical thinking and literacy 
ability.  A range of Lego sets were chosen including a number of specific education packs 
which enable the children to partake in creative, free play or themed building sessions.  The 
Lego items acquired for the club included Duplo for younger children, building boards and 
Technic Lego for older children with lights, motors and programmable functions to construct 
advanced, intricately designed and authentically detailed builds to enhance the children’s 
play experience.  Lego clubs in libraries are becoming more common across the country and 
they have proven to be a great way of libraries engaging with children. 

Page 175



“It has been very successful in making another positive move to get children to use the library 
service as some children have a preconception of libraries and just think of it as books and 
you can’t enjoy yourself and you have to be quiet.  They found out that when they are in 
Norden they can express themselves and be creative and have fun and this in turn has made 
them want to take books out when they have finished playing with the Lego” 
Angela Butcher 
Senior Library & Information Assistant 
Norden Library 

Page 176



Page 177



“…supporting participants to feel 
confident to cycle in traffic and enable 
them to consider cycling as a means of 
transport to commute as well as a 
leisure activity” 
Martin Topham 
Assistant Project Leader 
Petrus Community 

Recipient: Petrus Community 
Project: Women’s Roadability Cycle Project 
Fund: Members Fund 
Awarded: £750 

Petrus Community provides services to vulnerable adults in housing need.  Individuals can 
feel valued and realise their potential by being involved in daily activities that will enable 
them to regain a higher level of independence and make a positive contribution to the 
community. 

Petrus Pedals was a successful cycling project with a majority of male participants so 
Women’s Roadability Cycle Project was developed to address the balance by offering an 
opportunity for women to explore the health and leisure benefits of cycling. 

A group of women from the Kingsway area over a six week period build on basic safe cycling 
skills they had acquired from the women’s bikeability training.  The Women’s Roadability 
sessions were facilitated by two trained instructors who encouraged the group to participate 
in commuting and leisure cycle rides.  Each session aimed to build confidence to enable the 
cyclists to transition from a traffic free environment to cycling on a road.  Each participant 
was issued with a safety helmet and high vis clothing and instructed how to undertake a 
basic ‘M check’ so they could ensure their bike would be safe to ride.  A closed service road 
on Kingsway Business Park was used to assess cycling skills and teach road riding skills 
including hand signals, road positioning, left and right turns and riding in single file.  The 
group then progressed to using the cycle lane around Kingsway Business Park in  

Page 178



preparation for cycling on a road with traffic.  A circular route following side roads from 
Kingsway Business Park to Morrison’s supermarket was their first opportunity cycling in 
traffic and the group on their next session planned a route from the Kingsway Business Park 
to Falinge Park that also followed the Sustrans Route 66.  All participants accomplished the 
journey and enhanced their ability to navigate junctions, communicate with other road 
users/pedestrians and identify/react to potential hazards to ensure a safe riding experience. 

Petrus Community in conjunction with TfGM have also delivered a basic and intermediate 
bike maintenance course where the group had the opportunity to participate in hands on 
sessions to learn how to mend a puncture, adjust gears and brakes, replace cables and 
routine servicing to keep their bike on the move. 

Women’s Roadability Cycle Project has enabled a group of local women to achieve bike 
handling techniques and develop cycling fitness for their daily commute or recreation to 
improve their health and wellbeing. 

Page 179



 

 

  

   “A group from Iceland visited the session 
as part of an exchange trip.  They were 
impressed with the work that was being 
delivered on the ‘doorstep’ of 
communities” 
Scott Hardy 
Programme Manager 
Link4Life 

 
Recipient: Link4Life 
Project: Fit and Fed at Turf Hill Community Centre 
Fund: Members Fund 
Awarded: £1,500 

 
Link4Life is a charity that works in the heart of the Rochdale Borough community, inspiring 
people to live more active, creative and healthy lifestyles.  The organisation connects people 
with their cultural heritage, encourage creativity and foster wellbeing for each and every 
member of our diverse community.  Link4Life manages high quality sport and leisure facilities 
including fitness, swimming, team sports, outdoor and adventure activities, curates arts, 
heritage and entertainment including exhibitions, outdoor events, live shows, education and 
projects and delivers targeted community programmes which aim to improve people’s health, 
enjoyment and wellbeing. 
 
Fit and Fed is a response to the inequalities of holiday hunger, isolation, and inactivity as this 
innovative campaign offers fun physical activities and nutritious, healthy meals to some of 
society’s most vulnerable young people.  Summer holidays should be a fun time for children 
and families, but those on low incomes can really struggle due to the cost of extra meals as 
they don’t have access to free school meals.  Fit and Fed helped those families in need 
without attaching any stigma to the provision. 

Page 180



 

 

   
Turf Hill Community Centre during the summer holidays and October half term 2018 hosted 
Fit and Fed sessions that provided an opportunity for local children to participate in multi-
sport activities, arts and crafts and receive a healthy lunch.  Sessions were delivered by 
qualified sports coaches from Link4life.  Parents, guardians and other older children assisted 
the coaches and they got involved in helping at lunch and keeping the children safe and 
active.  Families were welcome to take extra food home after the sessions finished at no 
cost.  In addition, parents were given the opportunity to participate in classes to gain food 
hygiene certificates and skills in cooking on a budget and making healthy family meals. 
 
Many families in the UK are finding it increasingly difficult to cover the costs of bringing up 
children with costs rising faster than incomes.  Fit and Fed was successful in engaging 
children from the area that were in need of free provision during the holidays. 

Page 181



“Our project has uncovered a wider breadth 
of history than we initially expected, and 
has also created enduring contacts for the 
Forum” 
Fran Healey 
Trustee 
Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum 

Recipient: Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum CIO 
Project: Rooley Moor Visitor Interpretation Boards & Signage 
Fund: Capital Fund 
Awarded: £2,500 

Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum was established to promote high standards of planning 
and architecture in or affecting the area, educate the public in the geography, history, 
natural history, culture and architecture of the area and secure the preservation, protection, 
development and improvement of features or areas of historic or public interest in the area. 

Visitor interpretation boards located at Catley Lane Head, Prickshaw, Greenbooth and 
Healey Dell and view finders on Knowl Hill and Top of Leach provide information about the 
physical and social history of the area with QR code links to the Rooley Moor 
Neighbourhood Forum’s website.  The interpretation boards contain links to four heritage 
trails where visitors to the area can print their own copy of the route and download GPX 
files.  These heritage trails are short walks that can be joined together to accommodate 
walkers of varying abilities. 

Page 182



Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum has delivered the project with support from 
Touchstones, the Pioneers Museum, the Ramblers Association, Rochdale Connections 
Trust, Rochdale Council and most significantly with a substantial input from the local 
community.  Members of the community have worked together to collate historical records 
about the area which have been summarised into the heritage trails and signage.  Design 
work has also been carried out in the community, and decisions about final signage locations 
have been a collective community decision.  Heritage Lottery Shared Heritage funding of 
£9,400 was secured by Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum and a grant contribution from 
Rochdale Council enabled the Forum to deliver the overall project outcomes. 

Rooley Moor interpretation boards and signage will raise the profile of the history of the 
cotton famine and the road, and educate the public about the heritage of the Rooley and 
Knowl Moors area. 

“The project has engaged with members of the community to research and 
better understand the rich and complex heritage of the area.  The fact that this 
detail is all now recorded on the Forum website (www.RMNF.org.uk), and 
signposted for the public through the visitor interpretation boards and social 
media, and as a result of the publicity drawn by this project, means that the 
outcomes will endure and will have a lasting effect both within and beyond the 
local community” 

Fran Healey 
Trustee, Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum 

Page 183



  

“Only 1 in 5 children in Greater Manchester are active 
enough outside of school (30 minutes per day) and 6 
in 10 children do not meet the Chief Medical Officer’s 
recommendations of 60 minutes of physical activity 
per day.  Clubs such as these can help increase the 
number of children meeting these recommendations 
in turn helping to contribute to reducing obesity levels 
and the risk of developing further health problems in 
the future” 
Leigh-anne Carnall 
Programme Manager, Link4Life 

 
Recipient: Link4Life 
Project: Deeplish Multi Activity Club 
Fund: Communities & Engagement Priority Fund 
Awarded: £1,500 

 
Link4Life is a charity that works in the heart of the Rochdale Borough community, inspiring 
people to live more active, creative and healthy lifestyles.  The organisation connects people 
with their cultural heritage, encourage creativity and foster wellbeing for each and every 
member of our diverse community.  Link4Life manages high quality sport and leisure 
facilities including fitness, swimming, team sports, outdoor and adventure activities, curates 
arts, heritage and entertainment including exhibitions, outdoor events, live shows, education 
and projects and delivers targeted community programmes which aim to improve people’s 
health, enjoyment and wellbeing. 
 
Deeplish Multi Activity Club was established to provide regular weekly sports, fitness, 
physical activity and arts sessions to children 8-12 years old.  The sessions targeted both 
boys and girls from the local and surrounding areas of Deeplish.  Working in partnership with 
Deeplish Community Centre, the Multi Activity Club was designed to target young people 
who do not traditionally engage with sport and physical activity.  Through offering a wider 
programme in the community and ensuring choice and variety, Link4Life aimed to engage 
more young people in physical activity in turn increasing the levels of physical activity among 
young people within the borough.  Sessions aspired to improve the emotional health and 
wellbeing of participants, increase children’s self-esteem, communication skills and 
collaborative approach to sport and physical activity, provide a continued pathway of sport 
and physical activity outside of traditional clubs, bring together young people from different 
backgrounds and keep local children engaged in positive activities in the evenings. 

Page 184



Children and young people contributed to the decisions about the activities they wanted to 
take part in throughout the 25 week programme delivered by Link4Life Sports Coaches and 
young people who exceeded the age limit of the club were given the opportunity to volunteer 
on the activities.  Children engaged in activities such as dodgeball, cricket, football, tennis, 
badminton, fun games and fitness. 

An initial challenge for the multi-sport club was engaging the girls into participating in the 
sport activities.  To help overcome this issue, an arts element was introduced to encourage 
the girls to keep attending the multi-sport club and slowly over the weeks the girls integrated 
into the sports sessions.  The girls now really enjoy taking part in sports, especially learning a 
new skill which builds up their confidence and in turn helps them to participate and compete. 

Deeplish Multi Activity Club has provided opportunities for children to keep active outside of 
the school setting at the right time and at the right place, which echoes the five rights of a 
Doorstep Sport Programme, (the national charity ‘Streetgames’ central programme) activities 
being carried out at the right time, in the right place, with the right people, for the right price 
and in the right style.  Activities delivered not only supported physical health but also 
connected children and young people and promoted wellbeing.  Sport teaches key skills such 
as teamwork, understanding and self-discipline, brings people together, creates pride in a 
community, breaks down social boundaries, and inspires people to make a difference in their 
own lives and for others. 

“The local area of Deeplish houses families from many different cultures and 
backgrounds.  Language can be a barrier when accessing any kind of support 
however an example where sport can overcome this barrier could be seen at the 
multi-sport club.  A young family who had recently moved to this country and to the 
Deeplish area came into Deeplish Community Centre and was encouraged to bring 
their child along to the multi-sport club to help integrate them with the local area.  The 
young boy was very shy and reluctant to join in at first, however, when the group 
started to play football the young boy joined in as he didn’t need any instruction or 
need to understand the sports coach, he just played.  Over the weeks the young boy 
started to practice his English further with the help of another child who happened to 
speak his native language” 
Leigh-anne Carnall 
Programme Manager, Link4Life 

Page 185



Form HT02 

1 

HHEEYYWWOOOODD  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001199--2200 

1. Purpose of the fund

Heywood Township’s vision is for Heywood to offer an attractive location, which is part of a successful 
borough and city region, where people feel proud of the town and enjoy living there.  We want Heywood to 
have a strong sense of identity and community offering a wide range of housing in attractive neighbourhoods 
at excellent value, modern employment opportunities and a thriving town centre with a good range of shops 
and leisure facilities. 

Heywood Township funds can be used to offer support to organisations and projects that are of direct benefit 
to the community and environment of Heywood.  Any local constituted community organisation can request 
funding support from Heywood Township for project support.  Special consideration will be given to groups 
without their own funds/with limited alternative means and those in areas not benefiting from other funding 
opportunities. 

All projects must show how they will address the Heywood Township priorities of: 

 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be

healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable

communities to thrive and develop.

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, work

and invest.

 Prosperity – We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create

the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs.

2. What can be funded

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities.

b) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council.

c) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision.

d) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc.

e) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme.

f) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards, fencing,

lights, CCTV, etc.

g) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs.

h) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc.

i) Publicity materials that recognise the contribution made by the Township.

j) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities.

k) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs).

l) Talented young athletes competing at national/international level supported by a recognised sporting

body.

3. What cannot be funded

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing

services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide.

b) Projects benefiting individuals.

c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider

community benefit.

d) Promoting religious or political causes.

e) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory

functions.

f) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events.

APPENDIX 3

Page 186



Form HT02 

2 

g) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff.

h) General running costs eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc.

i) Parties/day trips out.

j) Purchase of alcohol.

k) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded.

l) Purchasing of vehicles.

m) Purchasing insurance.

4. Terms and conditions

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council.

b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the Heywood

Township priorities.

c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank

account.

d) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be

made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Heywood Township Delegated Sub

Committee’s discretion.

e) Applicants are limited to one Heywood Township grant in any two consecutive financial years.

Community wide annual events in Heywood may be considered for funding at the discretion of Heywood

Township Delegated Sub Committee.

f) Grants are restricted to one application per one event/project. Applications from different user groups of

the same project or centre for the same event at the same time are not eligible.

g) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use

must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Heywood Township Delegated Sub

Committee’s discretion.

h) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be

claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs.

i) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission),

regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place.

j) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on

Council owned land.

k) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have policies

and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe.

l) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to

ensure adequate insurance is in place.

m) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded

by Township Funds.

n) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are not

adhered to.

o) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant.

p) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy

invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as

detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Heywood Township Office within

one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions

being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies.

q) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded.

Page 187



Form HT02 

3 

5. Decision Making Process

a. All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation.

b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and conditions

of the fund.

c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to

the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be

requested to supply additional information.

d) Township Officers will refer projects for funding over £5,000 to the next Heywood Township Delegated

Sub Committee for decision.

e) Township Officers can use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000 or

less.

f) Decisions on Ward Funds are delegated to the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with

the Ward Councillors with the decision based on majority agreement.  Any disputes concerning

allocation of Ward Funds will be referred to the next Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee for

decision.

g) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Heywood Township

Delegated Sub Committee meeting.

h) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a

Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has

not be re-elected.

i) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application.

6. Commissioning Process

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the specification

and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs.

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure

alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future

maintenance/monitoring requirements.

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the

provider and the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee prior to incurring any additional costs.

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of

the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations

with the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee.

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the

variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by

the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide not to accept the

variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the Committee accepts

the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township Funds.

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost

of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage

payments may be agreed.

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving

the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports.

Page 188



Form HT02 

4 

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Heywood

Township Delegated Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service provider, withhold funds (or

withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service).

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service provider

unless agreed otherwise with the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee.

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices.

Page 189



Form MT02 1 

MMIIDDDDLLEETTOONN  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001199//2200 

1. Purpose of the fund

Middleton Township Committee is proud of Middleton’s past and wants to ensure that its future is as rich.  At 
the heart of all the Committee’s decisions is the vision to create a friendly, clean and safe town, with diverse, 
skilled and harmonious communities proud of their heritage and looking towards a prosperous future as part 
of the Manchester City Region. 

Middleton Township funds can be used to offer support to organisations and projects that are of direct 
benefit to the community and the environment of Middleton.  Councillors, Council Services, partner 
agencies, third sector organisations and forums/working parties are invited to submit projects on relevant 
application forms for funding from Middleton Township funds. 

All projects must show how they will address the Middleton Township priorities of: 

• People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be
healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable
communities to thrive and develop.

• Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live,
work and invest.

• Prosperity – We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create
the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs.

2. What can be funded

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities.
b) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council.
c) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision.
d) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc.
e) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme.
f) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards,

fencing, lights, CCTV, etc.
g) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs.
h) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc.
i) Publicity materials for use in your project and recognise the contribution made by the Township.
j) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities.
k) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs).
l) Talented young athletes who reside in Middleton competing at national/international level supported by

a recognised sporting body.

3. What cannot be funded

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces
existing services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide.

b) Projects benefiting individuals.
c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider

community benefit.
d) Promoting religious or political causes.
e) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory

functions.
f) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events.
g) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff.
h) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc.
i) Parties/day trips out (local disability group trips may be considered).
j) Purchase of alcohol.

APPENDIX 3

Page 190



Form MT02 2 

k) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded.
l) Purchasing of vehicles.
m) Purchasing insurance.

4. Terms and conditions

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council.
b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the

Township priorities.
c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank

account.
d) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be

made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Devolved Funding
and Services Sub Committee’s discretion.

e) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use
must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Devolved
Funding and Services Sub Committee’s discretion.

f) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be
claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs.

g) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission),
regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place.

h) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on
Council owned land.

i) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have
policies and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe.

j) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to
ensure adequate insurance is in place.

k) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects
funded by Township Funds.

l) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are
not adhered to.

m) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant.
n) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy

invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as
detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Middleton Township Office within
one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return the Project Evaluation Form and
invoices/receipts will result in restrictions being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for
funding or reclaiming of the grant monies.

o) Applicants who seek to be awarded funds from Middleton Township on successive occasions need to
demonstrate how they have tried to secure funding from other sources.

p) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded.

5. Decision Making Process

a) All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation.
b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and

conditions of the fund.
c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to

the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be
requested to supply additional information.

d) Township Officers can use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000
or less on agreement of the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Committee.

e) Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Ward Councillors to seek their
support and submit for decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project.  Any disputes
concerning allocation of Ward Funds will be referred to the next Middleton Township Devolved FundingPage 191



Form MT02 3 

and Services Sub Committee for decision. 
f) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Middleton Township

Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee meeting.
g) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a

Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has
not be re-elected.

h) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application.

6. Commissioning Process

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the
specification and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs.

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure
alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future
maintenance/monitoring requirements.

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the
provider and the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee prior to incurring
any additional costs.

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of
the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations
with the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee.

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the
variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by
the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide
not to accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the
Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township
Funds.

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost
of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage
payments may be agreed.

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving
the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports.

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Middleton
Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service
provider, withhold funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service).

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service
provider unless agreed otherwise with the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub
Committee.

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices for payment.

Page 192



Form PT02 
1 

PPEENNNNIINNEESS  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001199//2200 

1. Purpose of the fund

Pennines Township’s vision is to create sustainable urban and semi-rural communities in our Township 
where people feel safe and have a sense of community and belonging.  We want the local community to have 
access to appropriate housing, employment, leisure and community facilities, and proper social and family 
support. 

Pennines Township funds can be used to offer support to projects and organisations that are of direct benefit 
to the community and environment of the Pennines area.  Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, 
third sector organisations and area forums can submit projects on relevant application forms for funding from 
Pennines Township Funds. 

All projects must show how they will address the Pennines Township priorities of: 

• People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be
healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable
communities to thrive and develop.

• Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, work
and invest.

• Prosperity – We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create
the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs.

2. What can be funded

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities.
b) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council.
c) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision.
d) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc.
e) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme.
f) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards,

fencing, lights, CCTV, etc.
g) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs.
h) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc.
i) Publicity materials for use in your project and recognises the contribution made by the Township.
j) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities.
k) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs).
l) Talented young athletes competing at national/international level supported by a recognised sporting

body.

3. What cannot be funded

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces
existing services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide.

b) Projects benefiting individuals.
c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider

community benefit or Pennines Township is responsible for the maintenance of the land.
d) Alterations to land solely for parking provision.  Rochdale Council does not have a statutory duty to

provide parking on residential streets.  Being able to park close to a property is viewed as a privilege
as no person has the right to park on the Highway.  Removal of permeable surfaces such as grass
verges increases surface water run-off.  Whilst removing verges in isolated locations will have a small
impact, the accumulative effect on the drainage network will be noticeable and increase the risk of
surface water flooding over time.

e) Promoting religious or political causes.
f) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory

functions. 

APPENDIX 3

Page 193



Form PT02 
2 

g) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events.
h) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff.
i) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc.
j) Parties/day trips out.
k) Purchase of alcohol.
l) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded.
m) Purchasing or hiring of vehicles.
n) Purchasing insurance.

4. Terms and conditions

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council.
b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the

Pennines Township priorities (see section 1).
c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank

account.
d) Applicants will be required to attend the committee considering their grant application to respond to

questions to aid the decision making process.  Failure to attend the committee will result in the
application being deferred to a future meeting.

e) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be
made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Delegated and
Funding Sub Committee’s discretion.

f) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use
must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Delegated
and Funding Sub Committee’s discretion.

g) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be
claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs.

h) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission),
regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place.

i) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on
Council owned land.

j) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have
policies and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe.

k) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to
ensure adequate insurance is in place.

l) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded
by Township Funds.

m) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are
not adhered to.

n) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant.
o) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy

invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as
detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Pennines Township Office within
one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions
being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies.

p) Applicants will be required to participate in any press or media related activities relating to the grant.
q) Applicants who seek to be awarded funds from Pennines Township on successive occasions need to

demonstrate how they have tried to secure funding from other sources.
r) Community/voluntary organisations are limited to one Pennines Township grant in any two consecutive

financial years.  Community wide annual events in the Pennines Township may be considered for
funding at the discretion of the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee.

s) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded.

Page 194



Form PT02 
3 

5. Decision Making Process

a) All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation.
b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and

conditions of the fund.
c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to

the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be
requested to supply additional information.

d) Township Officers will refer projects for funding over £5,000 to the next Pennines Township Delegated
and Funding Sub Committee for decision.

e) Township Officers can use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000
or less.

f) Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Ward Councillors to seek their
support and submit for delegated decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project.

g) Any disputes concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Pennines Township Delegated
and Funding Sub Committee for decision.

h) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Pennines Township
Delegated and Funding Sub Committee meeting.

i) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a
Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has
not been re-elected.

j) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application.

6. Commissioning Process

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the specification
and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs.

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure
alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future
maintenance/monitoring requirements.

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the
provider and the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee prior to incurring any
additional costs.

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of
the change, i.e. time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc. and additional costs, and agree the
variations with the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee.

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the
variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by
the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide not to
accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the
Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township
Funds.

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost
of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage
payments may be agreed.

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving
the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports.

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Pennines
Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service provider,
withhold funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service).

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service provider
unless agreed otherwise with the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee.

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices.

Page 195



Form RT02A 1 

RROOCCHHDDAALLEE  NNOORRTTHH  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001199//2200

Rochdale Township’s vision is to create a friendly, clean and safe Township characterised by harmonious 
and diverse communities.  We want the town to be proud of its co-operative spirit and industrial heritage; to 
build on these qualities for a prosperous future as part of the City Region.  Efforts to increase community 
cohesion and involvement from people of different generations, backgrounds and cultures must permeate 
all activities. 

1. Purpose of the fund

Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, third sector organisations and area forums can submit 
projects on relevant application forms for funding from Rochdale Township Funds.  All projects must show 
how they will address the Rochdale Township priorities of: 

• People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be
healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable
communities to thrive and develop.

• Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live,
work and invest.

• Prosperity - We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create
the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs.

2. Projects must be

a) Within the powers of the Council.
b) Supplement or enhance current Council service provision.
c) Benefit the Township community.
d) Support the Township’s priorities and the Township Plan.
e) Be sponsored by a Rochdale Township Councillor who is prepared to recommend the project/grant and

justify its significance to the Township’s priorities.

3. Who may apply?

a) Council Services.
b) Partner organisations (Link4Life, etc).
c) Non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank account.

4. Activities that can be funded

a) Promoting active citizenship, voluntary effort and democratic involvement.
b) Promoting community-led food-growing, horticulture and landscaping.
c) Promoting community cohesion.
d) Promoting safer neighbourhoods, including diversionary activities for young people.
e) Promoting healthy living.

APPENDIX 3

Page 196



Form RT02A 2 

f) Promoting inter-generational understanding and cooperation.
g) Promoting equality of opportunity for people with disabilities.
h) Promoting cycling, walking and horse riding and developing routes for these.
i) Promoting Rochdale’s heritage.
j) Increasing recycling and waste minimisation.
k) Starting up or reviving community groups, subject to the group working with a recognised agency

(Link4Life, Rochdale Boroughwide Housing, etc).

a) Purchase of street furniture eg seating, paving, railings, bollards, fencing, lights, CCTV.

b) Equipment hire or purchase, eg IT, sports, arts and crafts materials and equipment.
c) Publicity materials that recognise the contribution made by Township.
d) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities.
e) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff in addition to normal duties.
f) Hiring or renting of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs).
g) Hiring of vehicles: short-term hire only, and not where there is viable public transport alternative.
h) Trips and outings with an educational value or part of larger programme.

6. Activities that may not be funded

a) Activities already started before funding is awarded.

b) Work that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing
services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide.

c) Parties.
d) Promoting religious or political causes.
e) Projects to benefit individuals.
f) Improvements to private land, unless there is a demonstrable community benefit.
g) Repairing unadopted roads.
h) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory

functions.
i) Contributing to charitable collections or running fund-raising events.
j) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc.

7. Items that may not be purchased with Township funds

a) Alcoholic drinks.
b) Motor vehicles.
c) Items bought before Township has given written approval.
d) Insurance.

5. Items that can be funded

Page 197



Form RT02A 3 

8. Responsibilities of community groups applying for or in receipt of a grant

a) To submit applications on the correct form.

b) To only submit proposals that meet the terms and conditions and promote agreed priorities and
objectives in a cost-effective way.

c) To use grants only for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use must be
made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion.

d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the
breakdown of expenditure.

e) To make claims for approved funding within 6 months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be
made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion.

f) Successful applicants must complete and return a project evaluation form and provide copy
invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as
detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Rochdale Township Office within
one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions
being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies.

g) To claim VAT on purchases relating to the project only if they cannot claim it back from HM Revenue
and Customs.

h) To ensure that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), regulations (such as health
and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place.

i) To have adequate policies and procedures in place to protect children, young people or vulnerable
adults when applying for a project to work with such people.

j) To ensure adequate insurance (eg public liability) is in place if required.
k) To agree that funding received for a project does not imply any commitment by the Council to continue

funding after the agreed finishing date.
l) To seek approval from the Townships & Communities Manager to dispose of or transfer any items

acquired with the grant.

9. Responsibilities of Services commissioned to deliver projects

a) To abide by the commissioning process set out in Section 15.
b) To complete a project brief and supply supporting documentation.
c) To ensure alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future

maintenance/monitoring requirements.
d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the

breakdown of expenditure or timescale of delivery.

10. Responsibilities of Township Office

a) To ensure the application and decision-making process set out in section 13 is followed.

Page 198



Form RT02A 4 

11. Responsibilities of Townships & Communities Manager

a) To make decisions, in consultation with the Ward Councillors, about the future of the project when a
Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has
not been re-elected.

12. Limitations

a) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded
by Township Funds.

b) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are
not adhered to.

c) The Council reserves the right to add specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the purpose of
the grant and/or the activities to be funded.

13. Application and Decision Making Process

a) Council Member or Officer submits Project Proposal Form to Township Office.
b) Township Office will send Application Form to group or invite Project Brief from Service.
c) Township Office checks application form to see if the project meets the terms and conditions of the

fund.
d) Township Office refers back proposals not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application

forms to the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation, and may request applicants to
supply additional information.

e) Township Office refers proposals for funding over £3,000 to the next Rochdale Township Action and
Resources Committee for decision.

f) Township Office can use the officer scheme of delegation for proposals for funding of £3,000 or less.
g) Township Office will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Area Forum Sub Groups to seek

their support and submit for delegated decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project.
h) Any disputes concerning the allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale Township Action

and Resources Committee for decision.
i) Township Office will notify applicants of decisions in writing within 15 working days of a Committee

decision or within 5 working days of an officer decision.
j) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application.

14. Delegated Decision Making Process

a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition
Spokespersons of Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee, may decide on all projects for
£3,000 or less.

b) Township Office will ask Members to respond in writing within 10 working days.  A nil response is
considered a response in support of the application.

Page 199



Form RT02A 5 

c) Members will make decisions based on the information included in the application form.
d) Township Office will advise applicants in writing within 15 working days of a decision on the outcome of

their application.
e) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application.
f) Township Office will make a written record of the officer decision:

i. Project reference number.
ii. Description of project.
iii. Officer decision.
iv. Date of decision.
v. Reasons for decision.
vi. Comments received from the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokespersons with dates.
vii. Township Office will ask Members to state the reasons for not supporting the officer’s decision.

15. Commissioning Process

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the
specification and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs.

b) Proposed projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant Service to ensure alternative
funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future
maintenance/monitoring requirements.

c) The Service Provider should negotiate with Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee prior
to incurring any additional costs if they wish to make variations in costs or outcomes.

d) Where Township wishes to vary the specification – the Service Provider will identify the implications of
the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations
with the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee.

e) Where a Service Provider wishes to vary the specification, they should submit the variations to the
Townships & Communities Manager with justification prior to incurring additional costs for
consideration by the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee.  The Committee may
decide not to accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if
the Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township
Funds.

f) The Service Provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the
cost of the project on the Townships & Communities Manager receiving evidence of the start of the
project as agreed.  Stage payments may be agreed.

g) The Service Provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving
the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports.

h) Where a Service Provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Rochdale
Township Action and Resources Committee may, after consultation with the Service Provider, withhold
funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service).

i) The Service Provider must bear any unapproved additional costs incurred, unless agreed otherwise
with the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee.

j) Service Providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices for payment.

Page 200



Form RT02B 1 

RROOCCHHDDAALLEE  SSOOUUTTHH  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001199//2200

Rochdale Township’s vision is to create a friendly, clean and safe Township characterised by harmonious 
and diverse communities.  We want the town to be proud of its co-operative spirit and industrial heritage; to 
build on these qualities for a prosperous future as part of the City Region.  Efforts to increase community 
cohesion and involvement from people of different generations, backgrounds and cultures must permeate 
all activities. 

1. Purpose of the fund

Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, third sector organisations and area forums can submit 
projects on relevant application forms for funding from Rochdale Township Funds.  All projects must show 
how they will address the Rochdale Township priorities of: 

• People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be
healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable
communities to thrive and develop.

• Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live,
work and invest.

• Prosperity - We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create
the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs.

2. Projects must be

a) Within the powers of the Council.
b) Supplement or enhance current Council service provision.
c) Benefit the Township community.
d) Support the Township’s priorities and the Township Plan.
e) Be sponsored by a Rochdale Township Councillor who is prepared to recommend the project/grant and

justify its significance to the Township’s priorities.

3. Who may apply?

a) Council Services.
b) Partner organisations (Link4Life, etc).
c) Non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank account.

4. Activities that can be funded

a) Promoting active citizenship, voluntary effort and democratic involvement.
b) Promoting community-led food-growing, horticulture and landscaping.
c) Promoting community cohesion.
d) Promoting safer neighbourhoods, including diversionary activities for young people.
e) Promoting healthy living.

APPENDIX 3

Page 201



Form RT02B 2 

f) Promoting inter-generational understanding and cooperation.
g) Promoting equality of opportunity for people with disabilities.
h) Promoting cycling, walking and horse riding and developing routes for these.
i) Promoting Rochdale’s heritage.
j) Increasing recycling and waste minimisation.
k) Starting up or reviving community groups, subject to the group working with a recognised agency

(Link4Life, Rochdale Boroughwide Housing, etc).

a) Purchase of street furniture eg seating, paving, railings, bollards, fencing, lights, CCTV.

b) Equipment hire or purchase, eg IT, sports, arts and crafts materials and equipment.
c) Publicity materials that recognise the contribution made by Township.
d) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities.
e) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff in addition to normal duties.
f) Hiring or renting of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs).
g) Hiring of vehicles: short-term hire only, and not where there is viable public transport alternative.
h) Trips and outings with an educational value or part of larger programme.

6. Activities that may not be funded

a) Activities already started before funding is awarded.

b) Work that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing
services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide.

c) Parties.
d) Promoting religious or political causes.
e) Projects to benefit individuals.
f) Improvements to private land, unless there is a demonstrable community benefit.
g) Repairing unadopted roads.
h) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory

functions.
i) Contributing to charitable collections or running fund-raising events.
j) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc.

7. Items that may not be purchased with Township funds

a) Alcoholic drinks.
b) Motor vehicles.
c) Items bought before Township has given written approval.
d) Insurance.

5. Items that can be funded

Page 202



Form RT02B 3 

8. Responsibilities of community groups applying for or in receipt of a grant

a) To submit applications on the correct form.

b) To only submit proposals that meet the terms and conditions and promote agreed priorities and
objectives in a cost-effective way.

c) To use grants only for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use must be
made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion.

d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the
breakdown of expenditure.

e) To make claims for approved funding within 6 months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be
made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion.

f) Successful applicants must complete and return a project evaluation form and provide copy
invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as
detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Rochdale Township Office within
one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions
being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies.

g) To claim VAT on purchases relating to the project only if they cannot claim it back from HM Revenue
and Customs.

h) To ensure that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), regulations (such as health
and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place.

i) To have adequate policies and procedures in place to protect children, young people or vulnerable
adults when applying for a project to work with such people.

j) To ensure adequate insurance (eg public liability) is in place if required.
k) To agree that funding received for a project does not imply any commitment by the Council to continue

funding after the agreed finishing date.
l) To seek approval from the Townships & Communities Manager to dispose of or transfer any items

acquired with the grant.

9. Responsibilities of Services commissioned to deliver projects

a) To abide by the commissioning process set out in Section 15.
b) To complete a project brief and supply supporting documentation.
c) To ensure alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future

maintenance/monitoring requirements.
d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the

breakdown of expenditure or timescale of delivery.

10. Responsibilities of Township Office

a) To ensure the application and decision-making process set out in section 13 is followed.

Page 203



Form RT02B 4 

11. Responsibilities of Townships & Communities Manager

a) To make decisions, in consultation with the Ward Councillors, about the future of the project when a
Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has
not been re-elected.

12. Limitations

a) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded
by Township Funds.

b) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are
not adhered to.

c) The Council reserves the right to add specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the purpose of
the grant and/or the activities to be funded.

13. Application and Decision Making Process

a) Council Member or Officer submits Project Proposal Form to Township Office.
b) Township Office will send Application Form to group or invite Project Brief from Service.
c) Township Office checks application form to see if the project meets the terms and conditions of the

fund.
d) Township Office refers back proposals not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application

forms to the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation, and may request applicants to
supply additional information.

e) Township Office refers proposals for funding over £5,000 to the next Rochdale Township Action and
Resources Committee for decision.

f) Township Office can use the officer scheme of delegation for proposals for funding of £5,000 or less.
g) Township Office will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Area Forum Sub Groups to seek

their support and submit for delegated decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project.
h) Any disputes concerning the allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale Township Action

and Resources Committee for decision.
i) Township Office will notify applicants of decisions in writing within 15 working days of a Committee

decision or within 5 working days of an officer decision.
j) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application.

14. Delegated Decision Making Process

a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition
Spokespersons of Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee, may decide on all projects for
£5,000 or less.

b) Township Office will ask Members to respond in writing within 10 working days.  A nil response is
considered a response in support of the application.

Page 204



Form RT02B 5 

c) Members will make decisions based on the information included in the application form.
d) Township Office will advise applicants in writing within 15 working days of a decision on the outcome of

their application.
e) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application.
f) Township Office will make a written record of the officer decision:

i. Project reference number.
ii. Description of project.
iii. Officer decision.
iv. Date of decision.
v. Reasons for decision.
vi. Comments received from the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokespersons with dates.
vii. Township Office will ask Members to state the reasons for not supporting the officer’s decision.

15. Commissioning Process

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the
specification and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs.

b) Proposed projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant Service to ensure alternative
funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future
maintenance/monitoring requirements.

c) The Service Provider should negotiate with Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee prior
to incurring any additional costs if they wish to make variations in costs or outcomes.

d) Where Township wishes to vary the specification – the Service Provider will identify the implications of
the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations
with the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee.

e) Where a Service Provider wishes to vary the specification, they should submit the variations to the
Townships & Communities Manager with justification prior to incurring additional costs for
consideration by the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee.  The Committee may
decide not to accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if
the Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township
Funds.

f) The Service Provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the
cost of the project on the Townships & Communities Manager receiving evidence of the start of the
project as agreed.  Stage payments may be agreed.

g) The Service Provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving
the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports.

h) Where a Service Provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Rochdale
Township Action and Resources Committee may, after consultation with the Service Provider, withhold
funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service).

i) The Service Provider must bear any unapproved additional costs incurred, unless agreed otherwise
with the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee.

j) Service Providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices for payment.

Page 205



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

Who are we?

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members 
(reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions of the 
Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see the 
how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline dates 
are as follows:  

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline
Agenda Publication 
Deadline

Date of meeting

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 7th June, 2019 Monday, 10th June, 2019 Tuesday, 18th June, 2019

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 11th July, 2019 Monday, 15th July, 2019 Tuesday, 23rd July, 2019

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 12th September, 2019

Monday, 16th September, 

2019

Tuesday, 24th September, 

2019

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 14th November, 2019

Monday, 18th November, 

2019

Tuesday, 26th November, 

2019

Budget Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 30th January, 2020 Monday, 3rd February, 2020

Tuesday, 11th February, 

2020

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 12th March, 2020 Friday, 16th March, 2020 Tuesday, 24th March, 2020

What we do

The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors. 

How we do it

The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:

 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 
methodology.

 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 
service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; 

Page 206

Agenda Item 13



corporate financial monitoring and the annual budget development 
consultation, and for overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and 
Directors.

 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals.

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate.

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance.
 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 

performance.
 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 

external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 

Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council.

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate.

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews.

 Consider annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council).

Page 207



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 
2019/20

18th June 2019

23rd July 2019

Work Programme 
Directorate Plans 2019-2020
Corporate Plan (2020 - 2023)
Employment Equality Report 2018/19 
Finance Update Report 2019/20
Budget 2020/21 To 2022/23 Guidelines, 
Timetable And Public Engagement
Health Related Absence Reporting
Township Funds Review
Workforce Wellbeing

24th September 2019

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2018/19

Performance monitoring and 
management

Comprehensive Financial Update – Financial scrutiny

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2018/19

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2018/19)
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance management and 
monitoring

Revenue Finance Outturn Report 
2018/19 

Financial scrutiny

Capital Finance Outturn Report 2018/19 Financial scrutiny
Savings outturn Report 2018/19 Financial scrutiny
Collection Fund Outturn Report 2018/19 Financial scrutiny

Page 208



Presentation.

OD Strategy
Corporate Complaints report

26th November 2019

Work Programme 2019/20 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
 Directorate Plan Update: 1st and 2nd 

Quarter – 2019/20 (April – 
September)

 Resources Directorate
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Services) 
Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation. Including savings, Budget 
Preparation and Insurance.

Financial scrutiny

Performance Monitoring: 1st and 2nd 
Quarters 2019/20 (April – September)

 Corporate Complaints
Health related absences

Financial scrutiny

11th February 2020 (Budget Scrutiny meeting)

24th March 2020

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Update reports: 3rd 
Quarter 2019/20 

Performance monitoring and 
management

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation. Including;

 Council Tax
 Medium Term Financial Strategy
 Revenue and Capital Budgets 

and Council Tax 2019/20  
Robustness of the budget

Budget development

Treasury Management Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Corporate Debt Strategy Budget Scrutiny

Page 209



 Resources Directorate
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Services) 
Directorate
 Comprehensive Financial Update – 

Presentation
Financial scrutiny

Other items to be assigned a meeting

Agilysis report plus visit
Commercial Development

Page 210


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Corporate Plan (2019 - 2022)
	Agenda Item 5 Appendix 1

	6 Directorate Plans 2019-2020
	Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan - 201920

	7 Finance Update Report 2019/20
	Append. 1 for Finance Update Report 2019/20

	8 Budget 2020/21 to 2022/23 Guidelines, Timetable and Public Engagement
	9 Employment Equality Report 2018/19
	10 Health Related Absence Reporting
	11 Workforce Wellbeing
	12 Township Funds Review
	Appendix 1 - Township Funds Review
	Appendix 2 - Township Funds Review
	Appendix 3 - Township Funds Review

	13 Work Programme Report

